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SECTION | i GENERAL DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

This Draft Letter of Offer uses certain definitions atdbreviations set forth below, which you should consider when
reading theinformation contained herein. The following list of certain capitalized terms used in this Draft Letter of
Offer is intended for theonveniencefthe reader/prospective investonly andis notexhaustive.

Unless otherwise specified, the capitalized terms used in this Draft Letter of Offer shall have the meaning as defined
hereunder.References to any legislations, acts, regulation, rules, guidelines, circulars, notificatioicgegpot
clarifications shall be deemed toclude all amendments, supplements eenactments and modifications thereto
notified from time to time and any reference tstautoryprovisionshall includeany subordinate legislation made

from timeto time undersuchprovision.

Provided that terms used in the sections/ <chapters tit
i Fi nalnrcfi arl mia$ t @ tnabIpecraaxB e n e MiOtug & ,t latigatian angMaterialDe vel opment s O
andf $sueRelated nf or mat i obh2D, 68481048 andjlédsespectively, shall, unless indicated otherwise,

have the meanings ascribed to stietmsin the respective sectionstiapters.

GeneralTerms

Term Description

ACompanyo, fi o] IGC INDUSTRIES LIMITED a public limited company incorporated under t

it G@Gempaftylde s org Companies Act, 1956, having its registered offickZzaGovernment Place (East), 15

ASl LO Floor Formerly Hemanta Basu Sarani, Kolkata400069.

fi wefou, oEd,our 0O Unlessthecontextotherwiseindicatesor implies, refersto our Companyi.e. IGC
INDUSTRIES LIMITED (Formerly known as IGC Foils Limited)

Company RelatedTerms

Term Description
The audited financial statements @air Company, prepared as per Ind A8 the
i Audi t e drinancial periodendedonMarch 31,2024 and limited reviewed quarterly statements ending
St at ement so June 30, 202preparedn line with Ind AS notified underthe Companieéct, 2013, as
amended read with the Companies (Indfsstounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
amended.

AArti dleArotiadl

T N Articles/ Articles of Associatiornof our Companyasamendedromtime to time.
Associ/BADAQOD panya

The Committee of the Board of Directors constitutedoas Co mpany 6
committee inaccordanceavith Regulationl8 of the Securitiesand ExchangeBoardof
Au@o mmi t t ee 0 | India (Listing Obligationsand Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
amended (ASEBI Li sSectiondl77REte Compdnie0ARH D
For det@urVMasageme e o i Sobthgs®raféLetterof Offer.
AAudit br ¢ St at | Statutory and Peer Review Auditor of Our Company, naniély, ADV &

Audi fi ®eReview Associates, Chartered Accountants

Auditoro
Boa/fidoafDd r e c{ Boardofdirectorsof our Companyor aduly constitutedcommitteethereof.

=13

=13

=11

C h FirarficialOfficer/ C F ( Ms. Supriya Dilip Gaikwadthe Chief Financial Officer of our Company.

C o mp a®egretary and | Mr. Arpit Jain the Company Secretary and the Compliance Officer of our Comp
ComplianceOf f i cer o

*APr omot er s ( s)| Ms.Disha Abhishek Mehta

* PROMOTER - DISHA ABHISHEK MEHTA holding only 100 Eq. Shares i.e. 0.001% of paid up equity share capital of the company, and
Disha AbhishekMehta has already submitted application dated 31/07/2024 under Regulation 31(A) of SEBI LODR Regulations 2015 for
reclassifying her as public shareholder, the Board of Directors in its meeting dated 08/08/2024 has approved her application
reclassificaion as Public Shareholder and further formalities and application to stock exchange is under process.

=11




ACor por Socel
Responsibility
Committee/ CSR
Commi tteeo

The committeeof the Board of directorsconstitutedas our C o mp a noypGate
socialresponsibilitycommitteein accordancevith Sectionl 350f the Companiegict,
2013.FordetailsseeffOur Management page & of this Draft Letter of Offer

ADi rector (s)o

The director(s)on the Board of our Company,unlessotherwisespecified,as
describedinthec hapt er t i t | e donpa@ebsoftHis®nafalgterne
Offer

=13

EquShtayr ehol der

A holderof Equity Shares

=13

E q uSihtayr e s 0

Equity sharesof our Companyof facevalueof 10 eachunlessotherwisespecified
in contexthereof.

fi Ex e cluitrieveet or s

ExecutiveDirectorsof our Company.

AFi ndmdioalmat i | Collectivelythe AuditedFinancialStatementsjnlessotherwisespecifiedin context
thereof.
A1 nde peinrdesentto r ThelndependenbDirector(s)of our Companyjn termsof Section2(47)andSection

149(6)of theCompaniedct, 2013.

fi K e yManagement
Per s o/fi KMIP®

Key Management Personnel of our Company in terms of the Companies Act
and the SEBIICDR Regulations as described n t he subsec
Management Key ManageriaP e r s oampage &mf this Draft Letterof Offer.

i Memor amfdum
Associ/aMo Ad O

Memorandunof Associationof our Companyasamendedromtimeto time.

i Nomi na tamdo n
Remuneratio®€ o mmi t t e

The committeeof the Boardof directorsreconstitutecasour C 0 mp a Noynination
andRemuneration Committee in accordance with Regulation 19 of the SEBI L
Regulations ansect i on 178 of the Compani e
Ma n a g e me nt Dof thisDrafi leetheeof CBfer.

fi N eExecutiveandndepender
Directoro

Non-Executiveandindependenbirectorsof our Companyunlessotherwisespecified

N eerecutiveDi r ect o

=13

NonexecutiveDirectorsof our Company.

APromérnaeu o

Mrs. DISHA ABHISHEK MEHTA only a single promoter of the company,

however she has made application for reclassifying her as public shareholder,
is holding only 100 Eq. Shares i.e. 0.001% of paid up equity share capital of t
company a on her application dated 31/07/2024 under Regulation 31(A) of SEF
LODR Regulations 2015 for reclassifying her as public shareholder, the Board
Directors in its meeting dated 08/08/2024 has approved her application f
reclassification as Public Shawader and further formalities and application to
stock exchange is under process.

As there was only one promoter Individuals and entities forming part of the Pro
and Promoters group in accordance BiitBI ICDR Regulations.

A RIi dssues

Commi tteeo

TheRight Issue @mmitteehas been constituted on 08/08/2028bwardof Directors irits
meeting dated 08/@@024for purpose®f thelssueandincidentalmattershereof the
right issue committee is as follows

Mr. Salman Mahibub Sayyad Chairman of Right Issue Committee
Ms. Supriya Dilip Gaikwad Member of Right Issue Committee
Ms. Hemlata- Member of Right Issue Committee

iShar ehol dEguitg
Sharehol der so

TheEquity Shareholdersf our Companyfromtimeto time.

i St ak e h Relaienship
Commi tteeo

The Committeeof the Boardof DirectorsconstitutecasourCo mp a8ty é ke h
RelationshipgCommittee in accordance with Regulation 20 of the SEBI Lis
Regulations. For details, séeO uMra n a g e mepage6d of this Draft Letter of




Offer.

Materiality Policy

Policy on determinationof materiality of eventsadoptedby our Companyin
accordancevithRegulation30 of the SEBI ListingRegulations.

IssueRelatedTerms

Term

Description

ASBA Circular

Collectively, SEBI Circular bearing reference number
SEBI/CFD/DIL/ASBA/1/2009/30/12lated December 30, 2009, SEBI circular bea
reference number CIR/CFD/DIL/1/2011 datagdril 29, 2011, SEBI circular bearin
reference numbeSEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/18latedJanuary22, 2020, SEBI
circular bearingreferencenumberSEBI/HO/CFD/SSEP/CIR/P/2022/é&atedMay 19,
2022andanyothercircular issued b$EBI inthisregardandanysubsequertircularsor
notificationsissuedby SEBI inthisregard.

AbridgedDraft Letterof Offer

AbridgedDraft Letterof Offer to be sentto the Eligible Equity Shareholders with
respecto thelssuein accordance witkheprovisionsof the SEBI ICDR Regulations
andthe Companies Act.

Allot/Allotment/Allotted

Allotmentof RightsEquity Sharegpursuanto thelssue.

AllotmentAccount

The account opened with the Banker(s) to the Issue, into which the Application N
lying to the credit of the escrow account(s) and amounts blocked by Applic
Supported by Blockedmount in the ASBA Accountwith respect to successf
Applicants will be transferred on thigansfer Date irmccordancevith Section40(3)
of the Companiesct.

AllotmentAdvice

Note,adviceor intimationof Allotment sentto eachsuccessfuRpplicantwho hasbeen
oristo beAllotted the RightsEquity Sharepursuanto the Issue.

AllotmentDate

Dateonwhichthe Allotmentis madepursuanto thelssue.

Allottee(s)

Person(syvho areAllotted RightsEquity Sharegpursuanto the Allotment.

Applicant(s) Investor(s)

Eligible Equity Shareholder(sand/orRenouncee(syho makeanapplicationfor the
RightsEquitySharegpursuanto thelssuein termsof this Draft Letterof Offer,
includingan ASBA Investor.

Application

Application made through submission of the ApplicatiBorm or plain pape
Application to theDesignated Branch of the SCSBs or online/ electronic applicq
through the website of tHeCSBs (if made available by such SCSBs) under the A
process, to subscribe to the Rightuity Sharesat the Issue Price.

ApplicationForm/ Common
Application Form (CAF)

Unless the context otherwise requires, an application form (including online appli
form available for submission of application though the website of the SCSBs (if
available by suctsCSBs) underie ASBA process) used by an Applicant to make
application for the Allotmemif RightsEquity Sharesn this Issue.

ApplicationMoney

Aggregateamountpayablein respecbf the RightsEquity Sharesappliedfor in the
IssueatthelssuePrice.

Application Supported by
Blocked Amount/ASBA

Application(whetherphysical orelectronic)usedby ASBA Applicantsto makean
applicatiorauthorizinga SCSBto blockthe ApplicationMoneyin the ASBA Account

ADirector(s)o

The director(s)on the Board of our Company,unlessotherwisespecified,as
describedinthec hapt er t i t | e donpa@etsofthis®dmafalgtierroe n
Offer




13

EquSihtayr ehol del

A holderof Equity Shares

=13

E g uSihtayr e s 0

Equity shareof our Companyof facevalueof 10 eachunlessotherwisespecified in
contexthereof.

fi Ex e cluitri evoet or 9

ExecutiveDirectorsof our Company.

AiFi ndmdioalmat i

Collectivelythe Audited FinancialStatementgnlessotherwisespecifiedin context
thereof.

il nde pBeinrdeecntto r

Thelndependenbirector(s)of our Companyijn termsof Section2(47)andSection
149(6)of theCompaniedict, 2013.

fi K e yManagement
Per s o/fi KMIP®

Key Management Personnel of our Company in terms of the Companies Act, 20
the SEBILODR/ICDR Regul ati ons as described
Management Key ManageriaP e r s oampage &of this Draft Letterof Offer.

i Memor amfdum
Associ/lmaMo Ad O

Memorandunof Associationof our Companyasamendedromtimeto time.

i Nomi na tamdo n
Remuneratio®© o mmi t t ¢

The committeeof the Boardof directorsreconstitutecasour C o0 mp a Nomination
andRemuneration Committee in accordance with Regulation 19 of the SEBI L
Regulations andSection 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 Fo r det a
Ma n a g e me nt 9of thisDrafi letheeof Gfer.

i N eBExecutiveand
Independendi r ect or

Non-ExecutiveandindependenDirectorsof our Companyunlessotherwisespecified.

fi N eerecutivedDi r ect ¢

Non-executiveDirectorsof our Company.

APr oméneu o

Mrs. DISHA ABHISHEK MEHTA only a single promoter of the company, howg
she has made application for reclassifying her as public shareholder, she is hold
100 Eq. Shares i.e. 0.001% of paid up equity share caypitak company as on h
application dated 31/07/2024 under Regulation 31(A) of SEBI LODR Regulations
for reclassifying her as public shareholder, the Board of Directors in its meeting
08/08/2024 has approved her application for reclassificatoPublic Shareholder a
further formalities and application to stock exchange is under process.

As there was only one promotedividuals and entities forming part of the Promot
and Promoters group in accordance BiftBI ICDR Regulations.

ARegi st eande d
CorporateOf f i ce 0

TheRegisteredffice of our Companylocatedat
12 Government Place (East), 1st Floor Formerly Hemanta Basu Sarani, Kolkatg
400069.

The CorporateOffice of our Companylocatedat:
Corporate Office: 22-A, Floor-2, 30f,Vasudev Mansion, Cawasji Patel Road,
Horniman Circle, Fort, Mumbai -400001

ARegi st rofar

C o mp a mii ReosCoo/

Registrarof CompaniesMumbai having its office at Registrar Of Companies,
Nizam Palace, 2nd MSO Building, 2nd Floor, 234/4, A.J.C.B. Road, Kolkata
700020, West Bengal

=11

Ri glédste€ o mmi t t

Thecommitteeof our Boardconstitutedor purpose®f thelssueandincidentalmatters
thereof.

AShar ehol dEquitg
Sharehol der so

TheEquity Shareholdersf our Companyfromtimeto time.




i St ak e h Relaienship
Commi tteeo

The Committeeof the Boardof DirectorsconstitutedasourCo mp a 8ty &k e h
RelationshipCommittee in accordance with Regulation 20 of the SEBI Lis
Regulations. For details, séeO uMra n a g e mepage6d of ¢this Draft Letter of
Offer.

Materiality Policy

Policy on determinationof materiality of eventsadoptedby our Companyin
accordancewvithRegulation30 of the SEBI ListingRegulations.

ASBA Account

Accountmaintainedwith a SCSBandspecifiedin the ApplicationFormor plain paper
applicationasthe casemaybe, for blockingthe amounmmentioned irthe Application
Formor the plainpapeapplication,in caseof Eligible Equity Shareholders, ahe case
maybe.

ASBA Applicant/ ASBA
Investor

As perthe SEBI CircularSEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/18atedJanuary22, 2020,
all investors (including renouncee) shall make an application for a rights issug
through ASBAfacility.

ASBABid

A Bid madeby an ASBA Bidderincludingall revisionsand modificationstheretoas
permittedinder theSEBI ICDRRegulations.

Banker(s}othelssue

Collectively,theEscrowCollectionBankandthe RefundBanksto thelssue.

Bankers to the Issue

Agreement

Agreement to be entered into by and among our Company, the Regidtnarlssue
and the Bankers to the Issue for collection of the Application Money fi
Applicants/Investors, transfef funds to the Allotment Account and where applical
refunds of the amounts collected froApplicants/Investors,on the termsand
condtions thereof.

Basisof Allotment

Thebasison whichthe RightsEquity Shares wilbe Allotted to the successful
applicantdn thelssueandwhichis describedn i T e rofhsh e | spageld® o

ConsolidatecCertificate

The certificatethat would be issuedfor Rights Equity SharesAllotted to eachfolio
in caseofEligible Equity Shareholdersvho holdEquity Sharesn physicalform.

Controlling Branches/
Controlling Branchesof the
SCSBs

Suchbranche®f the SCSBswhich coordinatewith the Registrarto the IssueandBSE
Limited, alist of which is available on the website of SEBI updated from time to t
or at such othewebsite(slasmaybe prescribedy the SEBI fromtime to time.

Demographi®etails

Details of Investors including tHe n v e saddcessiiameof thel n v e datherf 6
husbandnvestorstatus, occupatioandbankaccounidetails,whereapplicable.

Designated SCSB Such branches of the SCSBs which shall collect the Applications, used by the In

Branches and a listof whichis available on the website of SEBI and /or such other websit
may be prescribed IBEBI from time totime.

Designated Stock BSELimited.

Exchange

Depository(ies) NSDL andCDSLor anyotherdepositoryregisteredvith SEBlunderthe Securitiesand
Exchang8oard of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018 as am
from time to timeread withthe Depositorieg\ct, 1996.

Draft Letter of TheDraft Letterof Offer dated08™ August, 2024iled with the StockExchange.

Offer/DLoF/DLOF

EscrowAccount One or more no-lien and nonrinterestbearingaccountswith the Escrow Collection

Bank(s)for thepurposes of collecting th&pplication Money from resident investor$
eligible equity shareholdeeson recorddatemakingan applicationthroughthe ASBA
facility.

EscrowCollectionBank

Bankswhichareclearingmembers&ndregisteredvith SEBlasbankerdo anissueand
with whomEscrowAccount(s)will beopened, inthiscasebeing[ 6] .




Eligible EquityShareholders

Existing EquityShareholders as on the Record Date. Please note that the in
eligible to participate in the Issue exclude certain overseas shareholders. For
details, 6agefohmigedde to

FraudulenBorrowers(s)

FraudulenBorrowersasdefinedunderRegulatior2(1)(lll) of SEBI(ICDR)
Regulations2018.

Issue/ Rightslssue

Issueof up to[ OHquity Sharewof facevalueof 1 0 ofew €Companyfor cashat
apriceof [ 0-JpérRightsEquity Share(includinga premiumof [ 0-]pérRights
EquityShareaggregatingpto 490000 Lakhsonarightsbasisto the Eligible Equity
Shareholder®f our Companyin theratio of [ 6 ] R iEqguitytSharesfor every[ &
Equity Shareseldby the Eligible Equity Shareholdersf our CompanyntheRecord
Date.

IssueClosingDate

[ 0]

IssueOpeningDate

[ 0]

IssuePeriod The period between the Issue Opening Date and the Issue Closing Date, inclu
both days,during which Applicants/Investors can submit their applications
accordance with th6EBIICDR Regulations.

IssueMaterial Collectively, the Draft Letter of Offer, the Abridged Draft Letter of Offer, the
CommorApplication FormandRightsEntitlementLetter.

IssuePrice [ 0-berRightsEquity Share.

IssueProceeds Grossproceed®fthelssue.

IssueSize Amountaggregatingipto 490000 Lakhs

Draft Letterof Offer/LOF

Thefinal Draft Letterof Offer to befiled with the StockExchangesndSEBI.

Listing Agreement

Theuniformlisting agreement enteredto betweerour Companyandthe Stock
Exchangeintermsof the SEBI LODRRegulations

NetProceeds ProceedsfthelssuelessourC o mp a sharéfdssuerelatedexpensed-orfurther
informatioraboutthe Issuerelatedexpensesseefi O b | & thel ss s an@age40 of this
Draft Letter of Offer.

Non-ASBA Investor/ Investors other than ASBA Investors who apply in the Issue otherwise than throy

NonrASBA Applicant

ASBA process comprising Eligible Equity Shareholders holding Equity Shar
physical form or whadntend torenounce their RightEntitlementin partor full and
Renouncees.

Non-InstitutionalBidders

orNllIs

An Investorotherthana RetailIndividual Investoror Qualified InstitutionalBuyeras
definedunder Regulatio2(1) (jj) of the SEBI ICDRRegulations.

Off MarketRenunciation

The renunciation of Rights Entitlements undertaken by the Investor by transf
them throughoff market transfer through a depository participant in accordance
the SEBI Rights Issu€ircularsandthe circularsissuedby the Depositoriesfrom time
to time,andotherapplicabldaws.

OnMarketRenunciation

The renunciation of Rights Entitlements undertaken by the Investor by trading
over thesecondary market platform of the Stock Exchange through registered
brokerin accordancevith the SEBI Rights Issue Circulars and the circulars issue
the Stock Exchanges, from tintetime,andotherapplicable lawspnor b e f o

QIBs or Qualified

InstitutionalBuyers

QualifiedinstitutionalbuyersasdefinedunderRegulatior?(1)(ss)of theSEBIICDR
Regulations.

RecordDate

Designatedlatefor thepurposenf determiningheEquity Shareholdersligible to apply
for RightsEquity Shares, bein@SE Limited.




RefundBank(s)

TheBanker(s}o thelssue withwhomthe Refund Account(syvill be openedin this
casebeind 0 ]

ARegi st noar the

Companyo

Satellite Corporate Services Pvt Ltd

=t

Re g itethelr @as/u e o

=t

Registraro

PurvaSharegistryl) PrivateLimited

CIN: U67120MH1993PTC074079

Unit no. 9, Shiv Shakti Ind. Estt. J. R. Boricha Marg, Lower Parel (E) Mumbai 400 01
Telephone: +91 22 4961 4132; Facsimile: +91 22 22 3570 0224;

RegistratAgreement

Agreementdated[ O dnteredinto amongour Companyand the Registrarin
relation to theresponsibilitiesand obligation®f the Registrar to théssuepertainingto
thelssue.

Renouncee(s)

Person(syvho has/haveacquiredhe RightsEntitlementfrom the Eligible Equity
Shareholdersnrenunciation.

RenunciatiorPeriod

The period duringwhich the Investors can renounce or transfer their Ri
Entitlements whichshall commencefrom the IssueOpeningDate. Suchperiod shall
closeon [ 0Oih caseof On MarketRenunciation. Eligible Equity Shareholders
requested to ensure thrahunciation through offnarkettransferis completedn sucha
mannerthatthe RightsEntitlementsarecreditedto the demaaccountof the Renounces
onor priorto the IssueClosingDate.

Retail Individual
Bidders(s)/Retail

Individual
RII(s)/RIB(s)

Investor(s)/

An individual Investor (including an HUF applying through Karta) who has applie
RightsEqui ty Shares and whose Appl00,608-t
(Rupees Two Lakhs Onlyip the Issue as defineghder Regulatior2(1)(vv) of the
SEBI ICDRRegulations.

REISIN

ISIN for RightsEntitlementi,e,[ 0 ]

RightsEntitlement

Thenumberof RightsEquity ShareghatanEligible Equity Shareholdeis entitledto in
proportiorto the numberof Equity Sharesheld by the Eligible Equity Shareholdeon
the RecordDate,beind ORights Equity Sharedor every[ 0 ] EShpareishelgon
[ 0] .

The Rights Entitlements with a sepgd
account befor¢he date of opening of the Issue, against the equitsesheeld by the
Equity Shareholders as t¢ime RecordDate.

RightsEntitlement_etter

Letterincludingdetailsof RightsEntitlementof the Eligible Equity Shareholders.

RightsEquity Shares

Equity Shareof our Companyto beAllotted pursuanto thisIssue.

SEBIRightsissueCirculars

Collectively, SEBI circulars bearing reference number

0SEBI/HO/ CFD/ DI L2/ CIR/P/2020/13 dat
0SEBI/HO/ CFD/ CI R/ CFD/ DI L/ 67/ 2020 da
6SEBI/HO/ CFD/ DI L2/ CIR/P/2020/78 dat
6SEBI/HO/ CFD/ DI L1/ CIR/P/2020/136 dalf
6SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/ P/ 2021/ 13 dat

Self-Certified Syndicate
Banlbsdo ASCSBs

Selfcertified syndicate bank(s) registered with SEBI, which acts as a banker
Issue andwhich offers the facility of ASBA. A list of all SCSBsis availableat
www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmidi=
or suchotherwebsite asipdatedrom time to time.

StockExchange(s)

StockExchangenherethe Equity Sharesarepresenthfisted,beingBSE.



http://www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intmId=3

TransferDate

Thedateon whichtheamountheldin the escronaccount(shndtheamountblockedin
the ASBAAccount will betransferredo the Allotment Account,uponfinalization of
theBasisof Allotment,n consultatiorwith the Designated Stodkxchange.

Willful Defaulter
andFraudulenBorrower

Companyor personasthe case maype, categorizedasa willful defaulterby anybank
or financialinstitution (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013) or conso
thereof, in accordance withe guidelineson willful defaultersssuedby RBI.

Working Day

All daysotherthansecondandfourth Saturdayf the month,Sundayor apublicholiday,
onwhichcommercialbanksin Kolkata are openfor businessprovided however,
with referenceto (a)

announcement of Price Band; and (b) Bid/lssue Period, Term Description the
Working Day shall mean all days, excludin§aturdays, Sundays and public
holidays, on which commerciabanks inKolkata are open for business; and (c) t
time period between the Bid/Issue Closibate and the listing of the Equity Shares
the Stock Exchange. tiading daysrofgh Shek Exchasgh
excluding Sundays and bank holidays, as per the ciraskued bySEBI.

BusinesandIndustryrelatedTermsor Abbreviations

Term Description

CAGR CompoundednnualGrowthRate
Covid-19 CoronavirudDisease019

FDI ForeignDirectInvestment

GDP GrossDomesticProduct

GNI GrossNationallncome

GVA GrossValue Added

P Indexof IndustrialProduction
IMF InternationaMonetaryFund

INR IndianRupeq )

IT InformationTechnology

QoQ QuarteronQuarter

ROHS Restrictiononcertainhazardousubstances
RowW Restof World

USA/US United Statesof America
USD/US$ USDollar

WEO World EconomicOutlook

YoY YearoverYear

TPA TonnePerAnnum

ConventionaiindGenerallermsor Abbreviations

Term Description

Alc Account

AGM AnnualGeneraMeeting

AlF Alternative InvestmentFund, as defined and registeredwith SEBI underthe
SecuritiesandExchangeBoardof India (Alternativelnvestmenfunds)Regulations, 201

AS AccountingStandardsssuedby the Instituteof CharteredAccountantf India

BSE BSELimited

CAGR Compounded\nnualGrowthRate

CDSL CentralDepositoryServicegIndia) Limited




CFO ChiefFinancialOfficer

CIN CorporatddentificationNumber

CIT Commissioneof IncomeTax

CLRA Contract_abour(RegulatiorandAbolition) Act, 1970

Companies Act, 2013 | Companiedct, 2013alongwith rulesmadethereunder

/Companiedict

Companie#\ct 1956 Companiedct, 1956,andtherulesthereundefwithout referenceo the provisionsthereof
thathaveceasedo haveeffectuponthe notificationof the Notified Sections)

CS CompanySecretary

CSR CorporateSocialResponsibility

Depository(ies) A depositoryregisteredvith SEBlunderthe SecuritiesandExchangeBoardof India
(DepositorieandParticipantsRegulations1996

Depositorieghct TheDepositoriesAct, 1996

DIN DirectorIdentificationNumber

DPID DepositoryP a r t i cldeptiicatibond\Nsimber

EBITDA Earningdheforelnterest,Tax, DepreciatiorandAmortization

EGM ExtraordinaryGeneralMeeting

EPFAct E mp | o PreveenundandMiscellaneou$rovisionsAct, 1952

EPS Earninggpershare

ESIAct E mp | o $tatensubanceict, 1948

FCNRAccount ForeignCurrencyNon-Residen{Bank)accounestablishedh accordancevith the FEMA

FEMA TheForeignExchangevlanagemenfct, 1999readwith rulesandregulationghereunder

FEMA Regulations TheForeignExchangevlanagemen(Transferor Issueof Securityby a PersorResident

Outsidelndia) Regulations2017

FinancialYear/Fiscal

Theperiodof 12 monthscommencingn April 1 of theimmediatelyprecedingcalendar
yearandendingon March 31 of thatparticularcalendaryear

FPIs

A foreign portfolio investor who has been registered pursuahet8EBI FPI Regulations
providedthatanyFIl who holdsa valid certificateof registrationshallbe deemedo bean
FPI untilthe expiry of the block of three years for which fees have been paid as g
Securities an@&ExchangeBoardof India (Foreigrinstitutionallnvestors)Regulations1995

Fugitive EconomicOffendel

An individual who is declareda fugitive economicoffenderunder Section12 of the
FugitiveEconomicOffendersAct, 2018

FVCI ForeignVentureCapitallnvestorgasdefinedunderthe Securitiesand ExchangeBoardof
India(ForeignVentureCapitalinvestors) Regulation2000)registeredvith SEBI

GDP GrossDomesticProduct

Gol/ Government TheGovernmenbf India

GST GoodsandServicesT ax

HUF(s) HinduUndividedFamily(ies)

ICAI Instituteof CharteredAccountant®f India

ICSI Thelnstituteof CompanySecretariesf India

IFRS InternationaFinancialReportingStandards

IFSC IndianFinancialSystemCode

IncomeTaxAct/IT Act

IncomeTaxAct, 1961

Ind AS

The Indian Accounting Standardgeferredto in the CompanieqIndian Accounting
StandardiRules,2015, asamended

IndianGAAP

GenerallyAcceptedAccountingPrinciplesin India

InsiderTradingRegulations

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations
2015, aamended fronime totime

InsolvencyCode InsolvencyandBankruptcyCode,2016,asamendedromtimeto time
INRo r or IndianRupeetheofficial currencyof the Republicof India.

ISIN InternationaSecuritieddentificationNumber

IT InformationTechnology

MCA The Ministry of CorporateAffairs, Gol

Mn/ mn Million

Mutual Funds

Mutual fundsregisteredvith the SEBI underthe SecuritiesandExchangeBoardof India
(MutualFunds)Regulations, 1996

10



N.A. or NA Not Applicable

NAV NetAssetValue

Notified Sections Thesectionf the Companiedict, 2013thathavebeennotified by the MCA andare
currentlyineffect.

NSDL NationalSecuritieDepositoryLimited

OoCB A company, partnership, societyother corporatbodyowneddirectlyor indirectlyto the
extenbf at least60% by NRIs including overseagrusts,in which not lessthan60% of
beneficialinterests irrevocably held by NRIs directly or indirectly and which was
existence on October 3, 2088d immediately before such date was eligible to under
transactions pursuant to gengrakmissiorgranted to OCBsinder FEMA.OCBsarenot
allowed to investn thelssue.

p.a. Perannum

P/ERatio Price/EarningRatio

PAN PermanenfccountNumber

PAT Profit After Tax

Paymenbf BonusAct Paymenbf BonusAct, 1965

Paymenbdf GratuityAct Paymenbf GratuityAct, 1972

RBI TheReserveBankof India

RBI Act ReserveBankof India Act, 1934

RegulationS RegulatiorS underthe SecuritiesAct

R&D ResearclandDevelopment

SCRA SecuritiegContract(Regulation)Act, 1956

SCRR TheSecuritieContractgRegulation)Rules, 1957

SEBI TheSecuritiesandExchangeBoardof India constitutedunderthe SEBI Act, asamended

SEBIAct TheSecuritiesandExchangeBoardof India Act, 1992 ,asamended

SEBIAIF Regulations

SecuritieandExchangaBoardof India (Alternativelnvestment$unds)Regulations2012
asamended

SEBIFPIRegulations

Securitiesand ExchangeBoard of India (Foreign Portfolio Investors) Regulations,
2014, asamended

SEBIICDR Regulations

The Securitiesand ExchangeBoard of India (Issueof Capital and Disclosure
Requirement$}egulations2018, asamended

SEBIListing Regulations

Securitiesand ExchangeBoard of India (Listing Obligationsand Disclosure
Requirement$}egulations2015,asamended

SEBI Takeover
Regulation®r
SEBI(SAST)
Regulations

The SecuritiesandExchangeBoardof India (Substantial Acquisitionf Sharesaand
Takeoverdregulations2011, aamended

SEBIVCF Regulations

SecuritiesandExchangeBoardof India (VentureCapitalFunds)Regulations1996 ,since
repealednd replacety the SEBI (AIF) Regulations

SIPCOT StatelndustriesPromotionCorporationof Tamil Nadu

SecuritieAct TheUnited StatesSecuritiesAct of 1933.

STT SecuritiesTransactiorl ax

StateGovernment TheGovernmenof astatein India

Trademarkg\ct Trademark#\ct, 1999,asamended

TDS TaxDeductedatSource

US$/USD/USDollar United State<Dollar, the official currencyof the United Statesof America

USA/U.S./US United Stateof America,its territoriesandpossessiongnystateof the United State of
Americaand the District ofColumbia

U.S.GAAP GenerallyAcceptedAccountingPrinciplesin the United Statesof America

VAT ValueAddedTax

VCFs Venture Capital Funds aefined in and registered with the SEBI under the Securities
ExchangeBoardof India (VentureCapital Fund) Regulations, 1996 or the Securitiesand
Exchang8oardof India (Alternative Investmertunds)Regulations2012 asthecasemay
be

w.e.f. With effectfrom
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NOTICE TO INVESTORS

Thedistributionof this Draft Letterof Offer, the Draft Letterof Offer, the AbridgedDraft Letterof Offer, Application
Formand Right€Entitlement Letter and the issue of Rights Entitlemert o | | elssud Materdialp ) Aand Ri ght s
Equity Shares to persons in certairisdictions outside India may be restricted by legal requirements prevailing in
those jurisdictions. Persons into whose possessioithifs Letter of Offer, the Abridged DfaLetter of Offer or
Application Form may come are required to inform themselves abouttemaivesuchrestrictions Our Companyis
makingthis Issueon arightsbasisto the Eligible Equity Shareholderandwill electronicallglispatch through email
andphysical dispatch through speed post the Draft Letter of Offer / Abridged Draft Letter of Off@pplichtion

Form and Rights Entitlement Letter only to Eligible Equity Shareholders who have a registered address in India or
who have provided an Indiarddress to our Company. Further, the Draft Letter of Offer will be provided, through
email and speed post, te Registrar on behalf of our Company to the Eligible Equity Shareholders who have
provided their Indian addresses to our Companyho arelocated in jurisdictionswherethe offer and saleof the
RightsEquity Sharess permittedunderlaws of suchjurisdictionsandn eachcasewho makea requestn thisregard.
InvestorscanalsoaccessheDraft Letterof Offer, theDraft Letterof Offer, the AbridgedDraft Letter ofOffer andthe
Application Formfrom the websitef the Registrarour Companyand theStockExchanges.

No actionhasbeenor will betakento permitthe Issuein anyjurisdiction whereactionwould be requiredfor that
purpose.Accordinglythe Rights Entitlements or Rights Equity Shares may not be offered or sold, directly or
indirectly, and this the Draft Letter of Offer, tAbridged Draft Letter of Offer or any offering materialsor
advertisements connectionwith the Issuemay notbe distributed,in wholeor in part, in any jurisdiction, except in
accordance with legal requirements applicable in such jurisdiction. Receipt of this Draft dfe@éfer or the
AbridgedDraft Letterof Offer will not constituteanoffer in thosejurisdictionsin whichit would beillegal to make

suclan offer and, in those circumstances, this the Draft Letter of Offer and the Abridged Draft Letter of Offer must
be treated as sent fmformation purposes only and should not be acted uposutascription to the Rights Equity
Shares and should not be copiedettistributed. Accordingly, persons receiving a copy of this Draft Letter of Offer

or the Abridged Draft Letter of Offer or Applicatidiormshould notjn connectiorwith theissueof the RightsEquity
Shareor the RightsEntitlementsdistributeor sendthis Draft Letteiof Offer or the Abridged Draft Letter of Offer to

any person outside India where to do so, would or might contravene local setawities regulations. If this Dfea

Letter of Offer or the Abridged Draft Letter of Offer or Application Form is received by any peraop $ach
jurisdiction, or by their agent or nominee, they must not seek to subscribe to the Rights Equity Shares or the Rights
Entitlementgeferred o in this Draft Letter of Offer, theAbridgedDraft Letter ofOffer or theApplication Form.

Any personwho makesan applicationto acquirethe Rights Entitlementsor the RightsEquity Shareofferedin the

Issuewill bedeemetb have declaredepresented, warranted and agreed that such person is authorised to acquire the
Rights Entitlements or the RighEgjuity Shares in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations prevailing in
his jurisdiction. Our Company, the Registrar, or@thgrperson acting on behalf of our Company reserves the right

to treat any Application Form as invalid where they believe Amgtlication Form is incomplete or acceptance of
such Application Form may infringe applicable legal or regulatory requirementsesstthllnotbeboundto allot or
issueanyRightsEquity Sharesr RightsEntitlementin respecbf anysuchApplication Form.Neithethe delivery of

this Draft Letter of Offer nor any sale hereunder, shall, under any circumstances, create any impilatdtiere has
been no change in our Companyo6s affairs from the date |
contained hereiris correctasat anytime subsequerto the dateof this Draft Letter of Offer or the date ofkuch
information.

Neither the delivery of this Draft Letter of Offer, the Draft Letter of Offer, the Abridged Draft Letter of Offer,
Application Form andRights Entitlement Letter nor any sale hereunder, shall, under any circumstances, create any
implication that there has been no changen o ur Companyés affairs from the d
information or that the information contained herein is correct asydime subsequertb thedateof this Draft Letter

of Offer andthe AbridgedDraft Letterof Offer andthe ApplicationFormandRightEntitlementLetteror the date of
suchinformation.

THE CONTENTS OF THIS DRAFT LETTER OF OFFER SHOULD NOT BE CONSTRUED AS LEGAL,
TAX ORINVESTMENT ADVICE. PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS MAY BE SUBJECT TO ADVERSE
FOREIGN, STATE OR LOCAL TAX OR LEGAL CONSEQUENCES AS A RESULT OF THE OFFER
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RIGHTS OF EQUITY SHARES OR RIGHTS ENTITLEMENTS. ACCORDINGLY, EACH INVESTOR
SHOULD CONSULT ITS OWN COUNSEL, BUSINESSADVISORAND TAX ADVISOR

AS TO THE LEGAL, BUSINESS, TAX AND RELATED MATTER S CONCERNING THE OFFER OF
EQUITY SHARES. IN ADDITION, NEITHER OUR COMPANY IS MAKING ANY REPRESENTATION TO
ANY OFFEREE OR PURCHASER OF THE EQUITY SHARES REGARDING THE LEGALITY OF AN
INVESTMENT IN THE EQUITY SHARES BY SUCH OFFEREE OR PURCHASER UNDER ANY
APPLICABLE LAWS OR REGULATIONS.

NO OFFER IN THE UNITED STATES

The RightsEntitlementsandthe Rights Equity Shareshave notbeenandwill not be registeredunderthe Securities

Act or the securitietaws of any state of the United States and may naiffeeed or sold in the United States of
America or the territories or possessidinsreof( Winited State® )exceptin atransactiomot subjectto, or exempt

from, theregistratiorrequirementsf the SecuritiesAct andapplicable state securities laWée offering to which this

Draft Letter of Offer relates is not, and under no circumstances isdonsérued asanoffering of anyRightsEquity
Share®r RightsEntitlementfor salein theUnited Statesr asasolicitationthereinof anoffer to buyany of the Rights
Equity Shares or Rights Entitlement. There is no intention to register any portion of the Issue aharseofirities
described herein in the United States or to conduct a public offering of securities in the United States. Accordingly
this Draft Letter of Offer / Abridged Draft Letter of Offer and the enclosed Application Form and Rights Entitlement
Letters should not bierwarded to or transmitted in or into the United States at any time. In addition, until the expiry
of 40 days aftethe commencement tie Issue, an offer or sale of Rights Entitlements or Rights Equity Shares within
the United States by a dealer (whether or notptigicipatingin thelssue)mayviolatethe registratiomequirements

of the SecuritiesAct.

Neitherour Company nor any person acting on our behalf will accept a subscription or renunciation from any person,
or the agent oény person, who appears to be, or who our Company or any person acting on our behalf has reason to
believe is in the United Stateghen the buy order is made. Envelopes containing an Application Form and Rights
Entitlement Letter should not be postmarked inthiged States or otherwise dispatched from the United States or
any other jurisdiction where it would be illegal to make #erpandall persons subscribing for the Rights Equity
Shares Issue and wishing to hold such Equity Shares in registered form must prcaitiess for registration of

these Equity Shares in India. Our Company is making the Issue on a rights lidigjbte Equity Shareholderand

the Draft Letterof Offer / AbridgedDraft Letterof Offer and ApplicationFormandRightsEntitlement_etterwill be
dispatched only to Eligible Equity Shareholders who have an Indian address. Any person who acquises Right
Entitlements and thRights Equity Shares will be deemed to have declared, represented, warranted and agreed that,
(i) it is not and that at the time efibscribing for such Rights Equity Shares or the Rights Entitlements, it will not be,

in the United &tes, and (ii) it is authorized tcquirethe Rights Entitlementsand theRights Equity Sharesin
compliancewith all applicabldawsand regulations.

Our Company reserves the right to treat any Application Form as invalid which: (i) does not incloeiification

set out in theApplication Formto the effect thatthe subscriber isauthorisedo acquirethe RightsEquity Sharesor
RightsEntitlement incompliancevith all applicabldawsandregulations(ii) appearso usor our agentgo havebeen
executedn or dispatchedrom the United States;

(iif) where a registered Indian address is not provided; or (iv) where our Company believes that Application Form is
incomplete oacceptancef suchApplicationFormmayinfringe applicabldéegalor regulatoryrequirementsand our
Companyshall notbe bound tallot or issueany RightsEquity Sharesor RightsEntitlementin respecibof anysuch
ApplicationForm.

RightsEntitlementsnaynotbetransferred osoldto anypersonn the United States.

The Rights Entitlementsand the Equity Shareshave not beenapprovedor disapproveddy the US Securitiesand
ExchangeCommissiof t HUE SE® ) , any state securities commission in the
authority, nor have any of tHeregoingauthoritiespasseduponor endorsedhe meritsof the offering of the Rights
Entitlementsthe Equity Sharesor the accuracyor adequacyf this Draft Letter of Offer. Any representatioro the

contraryis acriminal offencein the United States.
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The above information is given for the benefit of the Applicants / Investors. Our company are not liable for any
amendments anodification or changes in applicable laws or regulations, which may occur after the date of this Draft
Letter of Offer. Investrs areadvised to make their independent investigations and ensure that the number of Rights
Equity Shares applied for do not exceedapplicabldimits underlawsor regulations.

THIS DOCUMENT IS SOLELY FOR THE USE OF THE PERSON WHO RECEIVED IT FROM OUR
COMPANY OR FROM THE REGISTRAR. THIS DOCUMENT IS NOT TO BE REPRODUCED OR
DISTRIBUTED TO ANY OTHER PERSON.

ENFORCEMENT OF CIVIL LIABILITIES

The Companyis a Public Limited (Listed) Companyunderthe laws of India andall the Directorsandall Executive
Officersareresidentsf India. It may not be possible or may be difficult for investors to affect service of process upon
the Company or these other persoatside India or to enforce against them in courts in India, judgments obtained in
courts outsiddndia. India is not a party to anwnternationaltreaty in relation to the automatic recognitioror
enforcemenbof foreignjudgments.

However, recognition and enforcement of foreign judgments is provided for under Sections 13, 14 and 44A of the
CodeofNilPr ocedur e, 190 &ivil Proseduser@edadd)e.d S(etchtei oin 44 A of t he Ci
provides that where a certifi@dpyof adecreef anysuperiorcourt(within themeaningof thatsection)in anycountry
orterritoryoutsidelndiawhichthe Governmendf India has by notification declared to be a reciprocating territory, is

filed before a district court in India, such decree may be exdoutedia as if the decree has been rendered by a
district court in India. Section 44A of ti@vil Procedure Code is applicable onlyrtmnetary decrees or judgments

not being in the nature of amounts payable in respect of taxes or other charges of a similar natespemtiffines

or otherpenalties Sectiond4A of the Civil ProcedureCodedoesnotapplyto arbitrationawardsevenif suchawards
areenforceable as a decree or judgment. Among others, the United Kingdom, Singapore, Hong Kong and the United
Arab Emirates haveeendeclaredby the Governmenof India to bereciprocatingerritorieswithin the meaningof
Sectiod4A of the Civil Procedur€ode.

The United States has not been declared by the Government of India to be a reciprocating territory for the purposes
of Section 44A othe Civil Procedure Code. Under Section 14hef Civil Procedure Code, an Indian court shall, on
production of any documepurportingto be a certified copyof aforeignjudgment,presumehatthe judgmentwas
pronouncedy a courtof competenjurisdictionunlessthe contraryappear®n the recordput suchpresumption may

be displaced bgroving wantof jurisdiction.

A judgment of a court in any neneciprocating territory, such as the United States, may be enforced in India only by
a suit upon thégudgment subject to Section 13 of the Civil ProgedGode, and not by proceedings in execution.
Section 13 of the Civil Proceduf@ode,whichis the statutorybasisfor the recognitionof foreignjudgmentgother
thanarbitrationawards) stateghataforeignjudgmenshall be conclusive as to any matténectly adjudicated upon
between the same parties or between parties under whom they or theynafaim litigating underthe same title
exceptwhere:

0 Thejudgment hasiotbeenpronouncedy acourtof competenjurisdiction;

0 Thejudgmenthasnotbeengivenonthe meritsof thecase;

0 Thejudgmentappearson the face of the proceedinggo be foundedon anincorrectview of international
law or a refusaltorecognizethe lawof India incasesvhere suchaw is applicable;

0 Theproceedingin whichthejudgmentwasobtainedareopposedo naturaljustice;

0 Thejudgmenthasbeenobtainedby fraud;and/or

0 Thejudgmentsustains claimfoundedonabreachof anylawin forcein India.
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A suit to enforce a foreign judgment must be brought in India witlriee years from the date of the judgment in the
same manner ay other suit filed to enforce a civil liability in India. It is unlikely that a court in India would award
damages on the same basis &reign court if an action is brought in India. lddition, it is unlikely that an Indian

court would enforce foreign judgments itibnsidered the amount of damages awarded as excessive or inconsistent
with public policy or if the judgments are in breach otontrary to Indian law. A party seekingeaforce a foreign
judgment in India is required to obtain prior approval from ReserveBank of India to repatriate any amount
recovered pursuant to execution of such judgment. Any judgment in a foreign currencybeawddverted into
Rupees on the datd such judgment and not on the date of payment and any such ameyube subject to income

tax in accordance with applicable laws. The Company cannot predict whether a suit brought in an Indian court will
be disposed of in timely manneior be subjecto considerable delays.

THIS PAGEHAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY KEPT BLANK
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PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Certain Conventions

Al r ef er e rcentised in this PrhafinLdtieraobOffer are to the Republic of India and its territories and
possessionsand alle f er ences herein to the AGovernment o, Al ndi an
the fAState Goveavernmenbftindia @mntralor staie asappkcable.

Unl ess otherwise specified or the context otherwise re
or OU. .Uk i dre direSehedJhitedStatesof America and itserritoriesand possessis.

Unl ess ot herwise specified, any time mentionl8Td)in t hi s
Unless indicatedtherwise, all references a yearin this Draft Letterof Offer are toa calendaryear.

A referencdo thesingularalsorefersto thepluralandonegenderalsorefersto anyothergenderwhereverapplicable.

Unlessstatedotherwiseall referenceso pagenumbersn this Draft Letterof Offer areto thepagenumbersof this Draft
Letterof Offer.

Financial Data

Unlessstated otherwise or the context otherwise requires, the financial information and financial ratios in this Draft
Letter of Offer habeenderived fromour FinancialStatementsFor details,pleaseseefiFinancial Informatiord on
page69.0urC o mp a fimgnéiad yeacommences on April 01 and ends on March 31 of the next year. Accordingly,
all references to a particular financial year, unless sttfeetwise, are tohe twelve (12)monthperiod endedn
March31 ofthatyear.

The Gol has adopted the Indianc count i ngindsASandawtdscliiare converged wi-t
Financial Reportingt andar ds of the InternatlFRBapl aAdconanitfhgdStuad
133 of the Companies Act read wittie CompaniegIndian Accountirg Standards) Rules, 201&s amendedthe

filnd ASRulesd ) .

The Audited Financial Statements of Our Company for the Financial Years ended Matan@d@ar period ended

30™ June 2024 prepared in accordance with Ind AS as prescribed under Section 133 of Companies Act read with the
Ind AS Rules and other theelevant provisions of the Companies Act and in accordance with the SEBI ICDR
Regulations and the Guidance Note on ReportSampany Prospectusegevised),2019,issued bythe ICAI. Our
Companypublishedts financial statementé Rupees.

In this Draft Letter of Offer, anydiscrepancieg anytablebetweenthe totaland thesumsof the amountdisted are

dueto roundingoffandunlessotherwisespecifiedall financialnumbersn parenthesisepresenhegativefigures.Our
Companyhaspresentedll numerical nf or mati on in this Draft Letter of Off
where the numbers have been too small to sgmteinlakh. One lakhrepresent4,00,000and one milliorrepresents

1,000,000.

There are significant differences between Ind AS, US GAAP and IFRS. We have not provided a reconciliation of the
financial information to IFRS or US GAAP. Our Company has attémpted to also explain those differences or
quantify their impact on thitnancialdataincludedin this Draft Letterof Offer, andyouareurgedto consult youown
advisorgegardingsuchdifferencesandtheiimpacton our financial data.

Accordingly, the degreeto which the financial information included in this Draft Letter of Offer will provide
meaningfulinformationisentirelydependenbnther e a dleyel di familiarity with Indianaccountingpoliciesand
practices|nd AS, the CompaniesAct andtheSEBI ICDR Regulations. Any reliance by persons not familiar with
these accounting principles and regulations on our finadielosures presented in this Draft Letter of Offer should
accordingly be limited. For further informatios,e Einaficial Informatior on page 69.

Certain figures contained in this Draft Letter of Offer, including financial information, have been subject to rounded
off adjustmentsAll figures in decimals (including percentages) have been rounded off to dme atecimals.
However, where any figures that mhagve been sourced from thipdirty industry sources are rounded off to other
than two decimal points in their respective sources, gonesappearin this Draft Letter of Offer roundedoff to
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suchnumberof decimalpointsas providedin suchrespectivesourceslin thisDraft Letter of Offer, (i) the sumor
percentagehangeof certainnumbers mapotconformexactlyto thetotalfigure given;and(ii) thesum of the numbers

in a column or row in certaitables may not conform exactly to the total figure given for that column or row. Any
suchdiscrepancieare due taoundingoff.

Currency and Units of Presentation

All referenceso:
fiRuperésawii | N& D abetolIndianRupeetheofficial currencyof the Republicof India;

AUSDd USS 0 dietotnited State®ollar, theofficial currencyof the UnitedStates
of America;ani Euobo 0 it 0 ar e t o EurobtlseEurdpdatnionf fi ci al currency

Our Company has presented certaio me r i ¢ a | information in this Draft Lett
lakh represent,00,000andonemillion represent4,000,000All thenumbersn thedocumenhavebeenpresented

in lakh or in whole numberswherghe numbers have been temall to present in lakh. Any percentage amounts, as

set f &iskFactoién OuffBusiness fiMa n a g e Msaudsidnand Analysisof Financial Conditionsand

Resultsof Operatiord and elsewheran this Draft Letter of Offer,unlessotherwiseindicated,have beercalculated

basedonour AuditedFinanciallnformation.

ExchangeRates

This Draft Letter of Offer containsconversion®f certainother currencyamountdnto IndianRupeeghathavebeen
presented solelyocomply with the SEBI ICDRRegulations. These conversions should not be construed as a
representation that these currency amocotsgd have been, @anbe converted inttndianRupeesatanyparticular

rate or agll.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicatedyrimiation with respect to the exchange rate between the
Indian Rupee andther foreigncurrencies:

Currency Exchangerate ason

March 31, 2024 March 31,2023 March 31,2022
1USD 83.30 82.22 75.81
1Euro 89.94 89.61 84.66

(Sourcewww.rbi.org.inandhttps:/ivww.fbil.org.in/#/hompg

Industry and Market Data

Unlessstatedotherwise jndustryand marketdatausedin this Draft Letterof Offer hasbeenobtained oderived from
publicly availablénformationaswell asindustrypublicationsandsources.

Industry publications generally state that the information contained in such publicatiobsemasbtained from
publicly availabledocuments from various sources believed to be reliable but their accuracy and completeness are
not guaranteed and their reliabilitgnnotbe assured.

Although we believe the industry and marketdata usedin this Draft Letter of Offer is reliable,it has notbeen
independentlyerified byus. The data used in these sources may have been reclassified by us for the purposes of
presentation. Data from these sources maynalisbe comparable Such datainvolves risks, uncertaintiesand
numerousassumptionsindis subjectto changebasedn various factors, nc | udi ng t h Riskdracids cussed
on page 2, this Draft Letter of Offer. Accordingly, investment decisions should nobdsed solelyon such

information.

The extent to which the market and industry data used in this Draft Letter of Offer is meaningful depends on the
r eader 6 s with anch undarstanding of the methodologies used in compiling such data. There are no standard
data gathering methodologié theindustry in which the business of our Company is conducted, and methodologies
and assumptions may vary widely among diffeiadtistrysources.
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FORWARD - LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Draft Letter of Offer containscertainfi f o r-akingds t a t e nkerwarddabking statementsappear

throughoutthis Draft Lettero f  Of f er including, wi t h o uRisk Factore tCarfii on, ut
Business aMdnd@égement 6 s DBnalgsis ofscsmanciah Coaditiatland Results of Operatiods a n d

filndustry Overview . F olooWirgy rstdtements include statemecdsicerningour C o mp a plangabjectives,
goals,strategiesfuture events future revenue®r financial performancecapitabxpenditures, financing neegsans

or intentions relating to acquisitions,ConpanCypds amwsdisn &

strategy and the trends our Company anticipates in the industries and the political and legal environment, and
geographicdlocations,jn whichour Companyperatesandotherinformationthatis nothistoricalinformation.These
forward-lookingstatementgenerallycanbe identified by wordsor phrasesuchasfi ai fma nt i cibped ti eev,e 0,
ficont Ncadi@oufidppédesd|i mat eo, Aintendo, Aili kel yo, imay o0
fiprojecto, Apur sueo, fishalflwi,l |A speuerks uteodd,, HAifwoirlelcoa,s tfowi Idlt
phrases of similar import. Similarly, statements that desthibstrategiegbjectives, plans or goals of our Company

are also forwardooking statements. However, these are not the exclusive meadentifying forward-looking

statements.

Al statements regarding our Coultspod opgrdtiens, busipesscplarsagndf i n a n «
prospects are forwatidoking statements. Theseforwdrdo o ki ng st atements include stat
business strategy, planned projemtsenue and profitability (including, without limitation, aftyancial or operating

projections or forecasts), new business and otfaters discussed in this Draft Letter of Offer that are not historical

facts. These forwartboking statements contained in this Diadtterof Offer (whether madéy our Companyor any

third party), arepredictionsandinvolve knownand unknownrisks, uncertaintiegssumptiongandotherfactorsthat
maycauseheactualresults performancer achievementsf our Companyto be materiallydifferenfrom anyfuture

results performancer achievementexpressed amplied bysuchforwardlooking statementsr otherprojections.

Actual results may differ materially from those suggested by the forlwaking statements due to risks or
uncertainties associatedth ourexpectations with respect to, but not limited to, regulatory changes pertaining to the
industry in which our Company operagasdour ability to respond tdhem,our ability to successfullymplement our
strategy, ougrowthandexpansion, theompetitionin ourindustry and markets, technological changes, our exposure
to market risks, general economic and political conditions in Indigkahally which have an impact on our business
activities or investments, the monetary and fiscal policies of Indiationi, deflation,unanticipated turbulence in
interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity prices or other rates or prices, the performance of thendirkatsial

in India and globally, changes in laws, regulations and taxes, incidence of naturatiealand/or acts of violence.
Importanfactorsthatcould causeactualresultsto differ materiallyfrom ourC o mp a expeétationinclude,butare
notlimited to, thefollowing:

Changesn governmentpolicies and the regulatoryframeworkssupportingrenewableenergydevelopment;
Declinein marketelectricityprices;

We maynot haveadequaténsurancdo coverthehazardof ourbusiness;

We maybeunableto keeppacewith technicalandtechnologicabevelopments ourindustry;

Changedn weatheiconditions which mayaffectwind patterns;

Economicpolitical andsocialdevelopment® Indiaandotherjurisdictionsin which we operate;
Risksarisingfrom interestrateandcurrencyratefluctuations;

Changeén legislationgoverningthetaxregimesunderwhich we operate.

O¢ O« O« O¢ O« O¢ O¢ O«

For further discussion of factors that could cause the actual results to differ from our estimates and expectations, see
fiRisk Factors fiOur Business aMadndgement 6s Discussion and Analysis of
Operation® b egi nni ndp9 andO8 mwrspeckvely, ¢f this Draft Letter of Offer. By their nature, certain

market risk disclosures are only estimates and coulddierially different from what actually occurs in the future.

As a result, actualains or losses could materially differ from those tiatebeenestimated.

18



We cannot assure investors that the expectations reflected in these flmoking statements will prove to be correct.
Given theseincertaintiesinvestorsarecautionechotto placeunduerelianceonsuchforward-looking statementand
notto regardsuchstatemeni@sa guarantee dhture performance.

Forwardlooking statementseflectthe currentviews of our Companyasof the dateof this Draft Letter of Offer and
arenotaguarantee f f ut ur e performance. These statements are bas
which in turn are based on currendlyailableinformation. Although we believethe assumptionsiponwhich these
forward-looking statementarebasedarereasonableanyof these assumptions could prove to be inaccurate, and the
forward-looking statements based on these assumptions could be inddai¢ioer our Company, our Directors, Our

Promoters and Promoters Group nor any of their respectivataf§ilor advisors have awpligationto updateor
otherwisereviseany statementseflectingcircumstancearisingafter the datehereofor to reflect the occurrencef
underlyingevents, eveif the underlyingassumptionsio notcome tofruition.

In accordancevith the SEBI ICDR RegulationsQur Companywill ensurethatinvestorsareinformedof material
developmentfromthedateof this Draft Letterof Offer until the timeof receiptof thelisting and tradingpermissions
from the StockExchange.

THIS PAGEHAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY KEPT BLANK
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SUMMARY OF THIS LETTER OF OFFER

The following is a general summary of the terms of this Issue, and should e ceagunction with and is qualified
bythemored et ai |l ed i nformation appearing in thRskF&aoraft Lett
filntroduction of The Issué fi C a p Bttuaur® , Objécts of the Issde, OurfiBusiness , Industry Overvievd |,
fiOutstanding Litigation and Material Developmeits afifedmsof the Issué  pages24, 33 40, 42, 59, 51, 104
and118respectively.

Summary of primary Business

IGC INDUSTRIES LIMITED (Formerly Known asFormerly known as IGC Foils Limited), the company was

originally incorporated aMaxwell Traders & Exporters Limited under the Companies Act, 1956 with the Registrar of
Companieskolkataandconsequentlg certificateof incorporatiordatedAugust 26, 1980, Latethenameof thecompany
waschangefl r om A Maxwel | Traders & Exporters Limitedd to @Al GC
consequent upon change of nafi®OC | et t er no NCR/ CN/ 3 2tené@nedf theCOmpangvd@d . Subse
changed fromil GC Foi | #s preserdnoa meo Al GC I ndustries Limitedo vide fo
consequent upon change of nathat e d Oc t o thased ilddkata I5C Isih ¢he business of 1) To carry on

the business as traders, exporters, agents, representagiaiess dproducers, stockists, importers or distributors of

industrial, commercial, agricultural, scientific, household, domestic, farm and forest products, goods, plants,
machineries, equipments, apparatus, gadgets, appliances, accessories, spa@hparts@mchandise including tea,

coffee, jute and jute goods, textiles, cotton, yarn, wool and woollen goods, handicrafts, piece of arts, jewellery,
ornaments, minerals, electronic, musical and sports goods, cloth, dresses, garments, transport wehprted,iés,

live stocks, books, reading and educative materials, paper and paper products, 2) To purchase, acquire, hold and
dispose of or otherwise deal and invest in any shares, debentures and other securities in or of any company or
companies, real eses or properties either out of its own funds or out of funds that the company might borrow by

issue of debentures or from bankers or otherwise howsoever in any other manner whatsoever, etc. as per Object Clause

of MOA of the Company.

IGC INDUSTRIES LIMITED strategy revolves around practicality, responsiveness to market demandslizngd
Promoters' expertise to maintain a strong positioitsisector For further detailspleasereferto the Chaptertitled
fiOurBusinesd at 9pfahip Braftdetterof Offer.

Objectsof the Issue

TheNetProceedsreproposedo beusedin the mannersetoutin thefollowing table:

( "in Lakhs)
Sr. No. Particulars Amount (In Rs.Lakhs)

1 GrossProceeddgo beraisedthrough this Issue Up To4,900
Less:Adjustmentof businesadvanceandinter-corporatalepositsagainsthe Nil
entittementof members
Less:ssueRelatedExpenses 80

2 Net Proceedsfrom the Issue 4,820

3 Utilization of Net Proceeds

A $ Working CapitalRequirement 3,615
GeneralCorporatdPurposes 1,205
Total Net Proceeds 4,900

*Thelssuesizewill notexceed 4,90000 Lakh (Rupeegs-orty-Nine Crore Only). If thereis anyreductionin theamounton
accountof or atthe time of finalization oflssuePrice and RightsEntitlementsRatio, thesamewill be adjusted against
GeneralCorporatePurpose.
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$ To purchase and acquire the equity shares or other securities of other companies for the purpose of:
Establishing Business Relationships:

Creating subsidiaries or wholly ownedbsidiaries.
Forming associate companies.
Entering into joint ventures.

Exploring Business Opportunities:

Expanding the business by acquiring other businesses through the purchase of equity shares from existing
shareholders or through other means.

Investing in Financial Instruments:

Dealing in and investing in shares, debentures, and other securities as part of the strategic business expansion.
This version makes it clearer that the purpose is to explore and expand business opportunitiesthatagit
acquisitions and investments.

Intention and extentof participation by the Promotersand Promoters Group
a.We hereby inform that there is only one promoter Mrs. DISHA ABHISHEK MEHTA holding only 100 Eq. Shares
i.e. 0.001% of paid up equitghare capital of the company, and Disha Abhishek Mehta has already submitted
application under Regulation 31(A) of SEBI LODR Regulations 2015 for reclassifying her as public shareholder dated
31/07/2024, the Board of Directors in its meeting dated 08/@&/2@s approved her application for reclassifying her
as Public Shareholder and further formalities and application to stock exchange is under process.

b. We hereby inform that Mrs. DISHA ABHISHEK MEHTAromotershas declare and confirm that she has filed
applicvation with the Company as on®31uly 2024 to reclassify her as N®momoter (public) shareholdaes she

fulfills all the criteria and requirements of Regulation 31(A) of SEBI LODR Regulations 2015 for reclassifying her as
public shareholder, thefor she shall no be counted as promoter of the company thereafter, and she also confirm and
declare that shevould not subscribe, either jointly or severally, to the Rights Entitlemel@©findustries Limited
(Formerly known as IGC Foils Limitediy theforthcoming rights issue.

c. Furthermore, the promoters confirm that the promoters will not subscribe to the extent of our Rights Entitlement in
this Issue, even if it is renounced in the promoters favor by any other Promoters or Member(s) of the Brompte

of our Company, in accordance with Regulation 10(4)(b) and other applicable provisions of the SEBI Takeover
Regulations.

d. Additionally, the promoters acknowledge that we may renounce the promoters rights entitlement in the rights issue.

In accodance with Regulation 86 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, if our Company does not receive the minimum
subscription of aleast 90% of the Issue of the Equity Shares being offered under this Issue, on an aggregate basis, our
Company shall refund the entisaitscription amount received within 4 (four) days from the Issue Closing Date in
accordance with the SEBI circular bearing referemgmber SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/47 dated March 31,

2021. If there is a delay in making refunds beyond such peripdeasibed by applicable laws, our Company will

pay interest for the delayed period at rates as prescribed under the applicalrita@@mpany is in compliance with
Regulation 38 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations and will continue to comply with the minipuliic shareholding
requirements undapplicablelaw, pursuanto thisIssue.

Summary of Outstanding Litigation

A summaryof thependingtax proceedingsindothermateriallitigationsinvolving our Companypur Promoterspur
DirectorsandourSubsidiariess providedbelow:
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~ in Lakhs)

Nameof Entity |Criminal Tax Proceedings{Statutory or Disciplinary Material Civil Aggregate
Proceedings Regulatory actions by the [Litigations amount
Proceedings SEBI or Stock
Exchanges !nvolved (Rs
inLakhs)
Company
By theCompan] nil nil Nil nil nil nil
* Againstthe nil 14 Nil nil nil 1431.35
Company
Directors
By the Directors nil nil Nil nil nil nil
Againstthe nil nil Nil nil nil nil
Directors
Subsidiaries
By the nil nil Nil nil nil nil
Subsidiaries
Against the nil nil Nil nil nil nil
Subsidiaries

Note: ThelssuerCompanydoesnothaveanysubsidiaries.

*

(@) The Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Act,
Provident fundEmployees State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Customs, duty of Excise,
Value Added Tax, Cess and other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities during the year. According to the
information and explanations given to us, no igpdted amount payable in respect of the aforesaid dues were
outstanding as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. Except

Following,
Name of Status Nature of Dues Period to which | Amount From Where
amount relates (InRs.) Dispute is
Pending
Income tax Act, 1961 Income Tax AY 2014-15 1,19,950 Commissioner
of IncomeTax
Income tax Act, 1961 Income Taxinterest AY 2014-15 10,112 Commissioner
of IncomeTax
Income tax Act, 1961 Income Tax AY 201516 19,40,490 Commissioner
of IncomeTax
Income tax Act, 1961 Income Taxinterest AY 201516 1,55,312 Commissioner
of IncomeTax
Income tax Act, 1961 Income Tax AY 201617 6,34,840 Commissioner
of IncomeTax
Income tax Act, 1961 Income Taxinterest AY 201617 50,864 Commissioner
of IncomeTax
Income tax Act, 1961 Income Tax AY 2017-18 6,76,74,350 Commissioner
of IncomeTax
Income tax Act, 1961 Income Taxinterest AY 2017-18 54,14,024 Commissioner
of IncomeTax
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Income tax Act, 1961 Income Tax AY 201819 4,26,94,410 Commissioner
of IncomeTax

Income tax Act, 1961 Income Taxinterest AY 201819 34,15,632 Commissioner
of IncomeTax
Income tax Act, 1961 Income Tax AY 201920 93,54,430 Commissioner
of IncomeTax
Income tax Act, 1961 IncomeTax-Interest AY 201920 7,48,352 Commissioner
of IncomeTax
Income tax Act, 1961 Income Tax AY 201920 2,24,610 Commissioner
of IncomeTax
Income tax Act, 1961 Income Taxinterest AY 201920 18,048 Commissioner
of IncomeTax
Income tax Act, 1961 IncomeTax AY 2020-21 85,43,993 Commissioner
of IncomeTax
Income tax Act, 1961 Income Taxinterest AY 2020-21 21,35,975 Commissioner

of IncomeTax

For further details,pleaserefer the chapter titlediOutstandingLitigation and Material Developmentson pagel04 of
this Draft Letterof Offer.

Risk Factors

Pleaseseethechaptert i t RiskFhctdih beginningonpage?4 of this Draft Letterof Offer.

Summary of Contingent Liabilities

For detailsof contingentiabilities for the FY 202425, pleaseseethesectiontitted A F i n a mcf i oar | rheginmingom o
page 69.

Summary of RelatedParty Transactions

Fordetailsof relatedpartytransactions fotheFY 202425, pleaseseethesectiortittedi F i n d md ioa Inbaginningn 0
onpage9.

Issueof equity sharesmadein last oneyear for considerationother than cash

OurCompanyhas notmadeanyissuancesf equitysharesn thelastoneyearfor consideratiorotherthancash.
Split or consolidationof Equity Sharesin the lastoneyears

Our Companyhasnot undertakera split or consolidatiorof equitysharesn thelastoneyear.

Exemption from complying with any provisions of securitieslaws, if any, granted by SEBI

Our Companyhas notapplied foror receivedany exemptionfrom the SEBI from complying with any provisionsof
securitiedaws,anthe date othis Draft Letter of Offer.
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SECTION Il - RISK FACTORS

An investment in the Equity Shares involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully considénfahntia¢ion

in this Draft Letteof Offer, including the risks and uncertainties described below, before making an investment in the
Equity Shares. In making amvestment decision, prospective investors must rely on their own examination of us and
the tems of the Issue including the merits &skis involved. The risks described below are not the only ones relevant
to us, our equity shares, the industry or the segment in winabperate.Additional risks and uncertainties not
presentlyknownto usor thatwe currentlydeemimmaterialmayarise or maybecomenaterial in the future and may

also impair our business, results of operations and financial condition. If any of the following riskbgorrisks

that are not currently known or are now deemmadhiaterial, actually occur, our business, results of operations, cash
flowsand financial condition could be adversely affected, the trading price of our Equity Shares could decline, and
as prospective investoymumayloseall or part of yourinvestmentYou shouldonsultyourtax, financialand legal
advisorsabout particular consequencetoyou of an investment in this Issue. The financial and other related
implications of the risk factors, wherever quantifiable, have tdisdosedin the risk factors mentionedbelow.
However,there are certain risk factors where the financial impactis not quantifiable and therefore, cannobe
disclosedn suchrisk factors.

Toobtainacompletainderstandingyoushouldreadthissectionn conjunctiorwiththesectionsi | nd ©Os eryi ewo,
AOwBrusi aAaegdsd Management 6s Discussion and Analysis of Fir
pagesb5l, 59 and 98 of this Draft Letter of Offer, respectively. The industefated information disclosed in this

section has been derived from publicly availaeEcuments from various sources believed to be reliable, but their

accuracy and completeness are not guaranteed and their reliatdlitpot be assured. Neither our Company, nor

any other person connected witte Issue has independently verified the informatiahéindustry reportor other

publicly available informatiorcitedin this section.

This Draft Letter of Offer also contains forwalmbking statements that involve risks, assumptions, estimates and
uncertainties. Ouactualresultscoulddiffer materiallyfrom thoseanticipatedin theseforward-lookingstatementas
aresultof certainfactors,includingthe considerationglescribed belovand,in the sectiontitled i F o r w.aokimgy

St at e wrepagels8 afthis Draft Letterof Offer.

Unless specified or quantified in the relevant risk factors below, we are not in a position to quantify the financial or
other implicationsf any of the risks described in this section. Unless the context requiersvise, the financial
information of our Company has begarived from the Audited Financial Information, prepared in accordance with
Ind AS and the Companies Act and in accordancetwéSEBIICDR Regulations.

Materiality:

The Risk Factors have beentetenined on the basis of their materiality. The following factors have been considered
for determiningthe materialityof Risk Factors:

A Someeventamaynot be materialindividually but maybefound materialcollectively;
A Someeventamayhavematerialimpactqualitativelyinsteadof quantitatively;and
A Someeventanaynotbe materialat presenbut mayhavea materialimpact infuture.

Thefinancialandotherrelatedimplicationsof risksconcernedwherevermuantifiablehavebeendisclosedn therisk
factorsmentionethelow.However therearerisk factorswheretheimpactmaynotbequantifiableandhencethesame
hasnotbeendisclosedn suchriskfactors. The numbering of the risk factors has been done to facilitate ease of reading
and referencand does not in any manner indi¢ghesimportance obne riskover another.

In this Draft Letter of Offer, any discrepancies in any table between total and sums of the amount listed are due to
rounding off. In thisection, unless the context requireseothwi s e, any reference IO Aweod,
Industries Limited (Formerly known as IGC Foils Limite@he riskfactorsare classified aanderfor the sake of
betterclarity and increasednderstanding.

NOTE:
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The risk factors are disclosedhs envisaged by the management along with the proposals to address the risk if

any. Unlessspecified or quantified in the relevant risk factors below, we are not in a position to quantify the

financial implication of any of the risks describedin this section.In this Draft Letter of Offer, any discrepancies

in any table betweentotal and the sumsof theamount listed are due to rounding off. Any percentage amounts,

as set forth in ARI SK FACT ORteof Gifer dnlesslotheswed ipdicaged,ihass t hi s
been calculated on the basis of the amount disclosed in our audited financigthtements. Unless otherwise
specifically provided in the respective Risk factors given below, the amounts of impact of rislepecified
hereunder, on our financial conditions, are not quantifiable.

INTERNAL RISK FACTORS
1. We operatein ahighly competitive industry.

We operate in a highly competitive agricultural commodities trading sduisiness as of traders/exporters, agents,
representatives, dealers, producers, stockers, importers or distributors of various commodities, business of
manufacturers, producers, processors, Importers, Exporters, Buyers, Sellers of and dealers infdibidrel$abrics

and textile and hosiery goods, prepared or manufactured from cottdrotitalomestically and internationakéynd

the company also deals in to purchase, acquire, hold and dispose of or otherwise deal and invest in activities in any
Share, Debenture and other Securities in or of any company or companies and real estate or properties out of owned
or borrowed fundsThis industry is characterized by numerous participants, many of whom are larger and benefit from
greater economies of scaladaoperational efficiencies. To maintain our competitiveness, we must continually
optimize our trading processes, reduce costs, enhance distribution efficiency, and innovate our approach.

Risks and Potential Impacts:

Market Share and Financial Performance:

Any inability to compete effectively may lead to a decline in market share or reduced operating margins, which could
negatively impact our financial performance.

Investment Risks:

We may incur substantial expenses to meet anticipated customer requs;graeticularly when adapting our trading
operations to align with new customer products. These investments may not always be fully recoverable and could
affect our operational efficiency.

Technology and Strategy:

There is no guarantee that we will reamaompetitive in terms of technology, trading strategies, or service quality.
Future negotiations with significant customers could also result in less favorable pricing terms.

Revenue and Profitability:

The competitive nature of the industry may leadbteer prices for our traded commodities, reducing profit margins
and significantly impacting our revenue and overall profitability.

2. Wehavelimited operating history.

The Company has a limited track record in the trading of agricultural commoditieshianidck of extensive
operating history posesncertainties regarding its ability to successfully navigate and thrive in this market. The
absence of a proven track record may makhatlenging for the Company to anticipate and address indsjségific
challenges and market dynamics, potentially impactingviésall performance anduccess.

3. We do not own our registeredoffice from which weoperate.

Our Registered Office is located Government Place (East), 1st Floor Formerly Hemanta Basu S¢otaita
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400069 Theregistered officés notowned byus.Ourcompanyhastakenpremiseon monthlyrentalbasisfor aperiod
of 11 months.

We cannot assure you that we will be able to renew our lease in the future, on commercially acceptable terms or at
al. We also cannagissure you that, if required to vacate our current premises, we would be able to obtain alternative
arrangements for the premises,cammercially acceptable terms or at all. Relocation of our business operations may
disrupt ouroperations and entail substantial costhjch could havean adverseeffect on our businessprospects,

resultsof operationsand financial condition. Further, the leasedeedsforour propertiesmay not be adequately
registeredr stamped andonsequentlymaynotbe acceptedisevidencan acourtof law andwemaybe requiredo
paypenaltiesor inadequate stamjuty or registration.

4. All our Promotersare not the original promoters of the Company.

Our current Promoters have taken over control fronpoevious management and there may be unanticipated legacy issues

in the futureconcerning the past of the company. While the current management has taken a comprehensive review
of the company's history, thecan be no absolute assurance that such issagsnot arise, which may have a
significantly adverse effect on our business operatmakfinancial health.

5. Insurancecoverageto protect usagainst certainoperating risks and this may havean adverseeffecton
the resultsof our business.

We arenotinsured for a risks associated with our businessdvVéerhéveour assets and stoeklequatelynsured,
however oupolicy of coveringtheserisksthroughinsurancenaynotalways beeffective oradequatewithout having
insurance we& a n 0 tasswranegt@tanydamage or loss to company will proieatierthe insurancepolicies in partor
ontime, to coverall materiallossesTo the extentthatwe sufferanylossor damagehatis not coveredby insurance
or exceed®urinsurancecoveragepur businesand result®f operationsould be adverselgffected.

6. If weare unableto sourcebusinessopportunities effectively,we may not achieveour financial objectives.

Ourability to achieveour financialobjectiveswill dependnourability to identify, evaluateandaccomplistbusiness
opportunitiesTogrowourbusinesswe will needto hire, train, superviseandmanagaewemployeesexpandoursales
channehndto implementsystemsapable of effectively accommodating our growth. Howevemamnot assure that
any such employees or marketing agents euititributeto the successf our busines®r thatwe will implementsuch
systemeeffectively. Our failure to sourcebusinessopportunitiegffectively could havea materialadverseeffecton
our businesdjnancialconditionand result®f operations. lis alsopossible that thetrategies used by us in the future
may be different from those presently in use. No assurance can be given that our analysis aomgitl@tsand
other datar the strategieshat wemayusein futureto usewill besuccessfulinder variousnarketconditions.

7. The purposes for which the proceeds of the Issue are to be utilized have not been appraised by any bank
or financial institution. In the event of any upward revision in the estimates, our proposed expenditure
would increase which couldadversely affect our results of operations, profitability and our ability to
effectively implementour businessplans.

We intendto usethe proceedshat we receivefrom the Issuefor the purposesiescribedn section"Useof Proceeds"
beginningon page42 of the Draft Letter of Offer. The estimated project cost has not been appraised by any bank or
financial institutionor registered valueiThe fundrequirements are based oranagement estimates and on current
market conditions. In view of the competitive nature of our industeymnay have to revise our management estimates
from time to time and consequently our funding requirements may also changaayhissult inthe rescheduling

of our expenditur@rogramsor increase in our proposed expenditure for our objects and whiclhdwayselaffect
ourresultsof operationgrofitability andourability to effectivelyimplemenbourbusinesplans.Further theutilization

of theproceed$romthelssuewill bemonitored byour Board and isiotsubjecto anymonitoringby anyindependent
agency.

8. Our salesare geographicallyconcentrated.

Our salesareparticularlyconcentrateéh whole India Any adverselevelopmentsr challengesn sellingour products
in India, or adeclinein demandromthis key market,coulddisproportionatehaffectour overallrevenueandfinancial
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stability. We recognize the importance of diversifying our salesinels to reduce dependency on specific regions
and mitigate theisksassociateavith geographical concentration.

9. We have high working capital requirements. If we experienceinsufficient cashflows to meetrequired
paymentson our debtand working capital requirements, theremay be anadverse effect orour results of
operations.

Our businessequiresa significantamountof working capitalandfinancing. Presentlyhe companyis notavailing

any working capitafacilities from any banks and treame is being met by internal accruals and arrangements.
Moreover, we may need to incur additiomadlebtedness in the future to satisfy our working capital needs. The
inability of our Company to obtain such financing, in a timabnner, on commerciallafourable terms to us, or at

all may impair our business, results of operations, financial conditioprasdectsPresentl}company doerotavail
anycreditfacilities from anyBanksor Financiallnstitutions.

10. Our Company had negativecashflows asper the StandaloneFinancial Statements.

Our Companyhadnegativecashflows from our operatingactivities,andfinancingactivitiesin someof the previous
year(s)asper theAudited Standalone Financigtatementsand the samare summarizedsunder:

Particulars March31,2024
NetCash(used)in operatingactivities (517.50)
NetCash(used)in investingactivities 517.85
NetCash(used)in financingactivities (0.20)

Cash flow of a company is a key indicator to show the extent of cash genkeostedperations to meet capital
expenditure, padividends, repay loans and make new investments without raising finance from external resources.
If we are not able to generasafficient cashflow in future, it may adverselyaffect our businessand financial
operations.

11. We have certain contingent liabilities, which have not beenprovided for. Crystallization of any of these
contingentliabilities may adverselyaffect our financial condition.

TheContingent_iabilities of our Companynot providedfor ascertifiedby our Boardof Directors

12. Legal proceedingshavebeeninitiated againstour Company and Promoters any adversedevelopmentsin
any or all of suchlitigations could adversely affect our businesseputation, financial condition and results
of operations.

We are involved in various tax proceedings in the ordinary course of our business. These legal proceedings are
pending at differentevels of adjudication before various courts, tribunals, statutory and regulatory authorities/ other
judicial authorities. These legptoceedingsnaynotbedecidedin our favor andwe mayincur significantexpenses
andmanagemertime in suchproceedingandmayhave to make provisions in our financial statements, which could
increase our expenses diabilities. If any new developments ariger example rulingsagainstus by the appellate

courtsor tribunals,we may face lossesand may haveto make provisionsin our financiaktatements, which could
increase our expenses and our liabilities. If stlaims are determined against us, there could be a matdviaise

effect on our reputation, liquidity, business, financial condition and results of operations, which could adversely affect
thetradingprice ofour EquityShares.

For further details oftte legal proceedings which materially affect our financial condition and results of operations,
please refer tdOutstanding Litigatiorand Material Developments pagel04.

13. Our successlependdargely onour seniormanagementand our ability to attract andretain our key
personnel.

Our success depends on the continued services and performance of our senior management. Competition for senior
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employees in thandustry is intense and we may not be able to retain our existing team members or atteteirand
new team members in the futufighe loss of any member of our key team may adversely affect our business, results
of operations and financial condition. We do matintaink e y  rlife insbirancdor our Promotersseniormembers

of our managemerteamor other keypersonnel.

14. In addition to normal remuneration or benefits and reimbursement of expenses, our Promoters, our
Directors and KeyManagerial Personnelare interestedin our Company to the extent of their
shareholding,and dividend entitlementsetc.

Our Promoters, Directors and Key Management Personnel are deemed to be interested to the extent of the Equity
Shares held by thewn, their relatives,dividend entitiements,and benefitsderiving from the directorship irour
Company.

15. We are exposedo the risk of delaysor non-paymentby our clientsand other counter parties, which may
alsoresult in casHlow mismatches.

We are exposedto counterpartycredit risk in the usualcourseof our businesgdealings withour clients or other
counterpartiesvho maydelay or fail to make payments or perform their other contractual obligations. The financial
condition of our clients, business partnexgppliers and other counterparties may be affected by the performance of
their business which ay be impacted by several factémsluding generaleconomicconditions.We cannotassure

you of the continued viabilityof our counterpartiesr that wewill accuratelyassess their creditworthiness. We also
cannot assure you that we will be abletdlect the whole or any part of any overdue payméntg.material non
payment or noiperformance by our clients, business partners, suppliers or other counterparties could affect our
financialcondition, result®f operationsaandcash flows.

16. Third party industry and statistical data in this Draft Letter of Offer may beincomplete,incorrect or
unreliable.

We have not independently verified data from industry and other publications contained herein and although we
believe thessourcedo bereliable,we cannotassureyou that theyarecompleteor reliable.Suchdatamayalso
beproduced omadifferentbasigrom comparable information compiled with regard to other countries. Therefore,
discussions of matters relating to India anédsnomy are subjead the caveat that the statistical and other data
upon which such discussions are based have not been vbyifisthtndmaybe incompleter unreliable.

EXTERNAL RISK FACTORS
17. Our businesss dependentonthe Indian economy.

The performance and growth ofir business are necessarily dependent on economic conditions prevalent in India,
which may bemateriallyandadverselaffectedby centreor statepolitical instability or regionalconflicts, ageneral

risein interestrates,inflation, andeconomicslowdownelsewhereén the world or otherwise Therehavebeenperiods

of slowdownin the economicgrowth of India. | n d écanénsic growth is affected by various factors including
domestic consumption and savings, balance of trade movements, retpetydemand and movements in key
imports (oil and oil products) may impact the transportation cpgtobal economic uncertainty and liquidity crisis,
volatility in exchange currency rates and annual rainfall which affects agricultural produttioim may inpact
adversely our busines#ny continued or future slowdown in the Indianonomy or a further increase in inflation
could have a material adverse effect on the price of our raw materials and demandfodoats and, as a result,

on our business arithancial results. The Indian financial market and the Indian economy are influeneedrimmic

and market conditions in other countries, particularly in emerging market in Asian countries. Financial turmoil in
Asia, EuropetheU.S.andelsewherén theworld in recentyearshasaffectedthelndianeconomyAlthougheconomic
conditionsarediffereni n each country, investorsé reactions to deve
on the securities of companies in otleuntries,including India. A loss in investor confidencein the financial
systemsof other emergingmarketsmay causeincreasedolatility in Indian financial markets and, indirectly, in the
Indian economy in general. Any worldwide financial instability, includimgfinancial crisis and fluctuations in the
stock markets in China and further deterioration of credit conditions in the U.S. or Eunogré@ts couldalsohave

a negativeimpact on the Indian economy.Financialdisruptionsmay occur againand could harmour businesand
financial results.
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18. Regionalhostilities, terrorist attacks,communaldisturbances,civil unrestand other actsof violenceor
war involving Indiaand other countries may resultin a lossof investor confidenceand adversely affect
the financial markets and our business.

Terroristattackscivil unrestandotheractsof violenceor war maynegativelyaffectthe Indian marketson which our
Equity Shareswill trade and also adversely affect the worldwide financial markets. In additioAsitue region has
from time-to-time experiencethstances of civil unrest and hostilities among neighboring countries. Hostilities and
tensions may occur in the future and on a witale. Military activity or terrorist attacks in India, may result in
investor concern about stability in the region, which may adveeddgt the price of our Equity Shares. Events of
this nature in the future, as well as social and civil unrest within other countries wotht could influencethe
Indianeconomyandcould haveanadverseffectonthemarketfor securitieof Indiancompaniesncludingour Equity
Shares.

19. Changing laws, rules and regulations and legal uncertainties in India, including adverse application
of tax laws andregulations, may adverselyaffect our businessand financial performance.

Ourbusinessndfinancialperformanceouldbeadverselaffectedby changesn law or interpretation®f existing,or
thepromulgatiomf new, lawsrulesandregulationsn Indiaapplicableo usandourbusinesskorfurtherdetailsplease
referto thechapterfi Go v e rand@therA p p r o enpdgel @ for detailsof thelaws currentlyapplicableto us.
Therecanbeno assurancg¢hatthe centralor the statggovernments in India may not implement new regulatems$
policies which will require us to obtain approvals and licenses frorogheal or the state governments in India and
other regulatory bodies or impose onerous requirements and conditions on our opAratisush changes and the
related uncertairgs with respect to the implementation of the new regulations may have a material affeetea

all ourbusinessfinancialconditionandresultsof operationsln addition,we mayhaveto incur capitalexpenditure$o
complywith the requirementsf any newregulationswhich mayalso materiallyharmour resultof operations.

20. Instability in financial markets could materially and adverselyaffect our resultsof operationsand financial
condition.

The Indian economy and financial marketssgnificantly influenced by worldwide economic, financial and market
conditions. Anyfinancial turmoil, especially in the United States of America or Europe, may have a negative impact
on the Indian economy. Althougtconomicconditionsdiffer in eachcourtry, i n v e seltabiango &nysignificant
developmentm onecountrycanhaveadverseffectsn the financial and market conditions in other countries. A loss

in investor confidence in the financial systems, particularly in @hergingmarketsmaycauseancreasedolatility

in IndianfinancialmarketsTheglobalfinancialturmoil, anoutcomeof thesubprimemortgage crisis which originated

in the United States of America, led to a loss of investor confidence in worldwide financial madietsfinancial

markets have also experienced the contagion effect of the global financial turmoil, evident from the sharp decline in
SENSEX, BSE6s benchmark index. Any prolonged financi a
economy and us, theret@gultingin a materialand adverseffect on our businesspperationsfinancial condition,
profitability and priceof our Equity Shares.

21. Natural calamitiescould havea negativeimpact onthe Indian economyand causeOur C o mp a husifesgo
suffer.

India hasexperiencechatural calamitiessuchas earthquakestsunami,floods etc. In recentyears,the extentand
severityof thesenaturatiisasters determine their impact on the Indian economy. Prolonged spells of abnormal rainfall
or other natural cataities could have aegative impact on the Indian economy, which could adversely affect our
business, prospects, financial condition and resulipefationsaswell asthe price othe EquityShares.

22. Government regulation of foreign ownership of Indian securities may have an adverseeffect on the
price of the Equity Shares.

Foreign ownership of Indian securities is subject to government regulation. Under foreign exchange regulations
currently in affect inIndia, transfer ofshareshetweennonresidentsand residentsare freely permitted(subjectto
certainexceptionsjf theycomply withthepricing guidelines and reporting requirements specified by the RBI. If the
transfer of shares, which are sought to be transferred, ia nompliancewith suchpricing guidelinesor reporting
requirement®r fall underanyof theexceptiongeferredto above thenthe priorapprovalof the RBI will berequired.
Additionally, shareholderarho seekto converttherupeegproceedsromthesaleof sharesn Indiainto foreign currency
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and repatriate that foreign currency from Indiél require a no objection/ tax clearance certificktam the IncomeTax
authorities.Therecanbeno assurancthatanyapprovalrequired from thdrBI or anyother governmerdgencycan
beobtained.

23. Our performance is linked to the stability of policies and the political situation in India. The
Government of India hadraditionally exercised,and continuesto exercise,a significant influenceover
many aspectsof the economy

Our business, and the market price and liquidity of our Equity Shares, may be affected by interest rates, changes in
government policyaxation,socialandcivil unrestandotherpolitical, economic ootherdevelopment& or affecting
India.Sincel991 successivéndiangovernments have pursued policies of economic liberalization and financial sector

reforms. The current Government has announcegiét e r a | intention to continue I
financial sector liberalization and deregulatjoolicies. However, there ca@ no assurance that such policies will be
continued and a significant <change i nbusiness ang ecoromict me nt 0 s

conditions in India and could also adversely affect our businesspgets, financial condition and results of
operations. Any political instability in India may adversely affect the Indian securities markets in general, which could

also adverselaffect the trading price of our Equity Shares. Any political instabilitydcaelay the reform of the

Indian economy and could havenaaterial adverse effect on the market for our Equity Shares. There can be no
assurance to the investors that these liberalization palitiesntinue under the newly elected government. Protests

against privatization could slow down the pace of liberalizatiordanelgulation. The rate of economic liberalization

could change, and specific laws and policies affecting companies in the indecptiifainent manufacturing sectors,

foreign investment;urrency exchange rates and other matters affecting investment in our secouitieshange as

well . A significant change in Indiabs economic |iberal
economicconditionsin India andtherebyaffectour business.

RISKS RELATING TO THE EQUITY SHARES

24. Failure to exercise or sell the Rights Entitlements will cause the Rights Entitlements to lapse without
compensation andesult in a dilution of shareholding.

The Rights Entitlements that are moercised prior to the end of the Issue Closing Date will expire and become null

and void, andligible Equity Shareholders will not receive any consideration for them. The proportionate ownership
and voting interest in oCompany of Eligible Equity Shahnelders who fail (or are not able) to exercise their Rights
Entitlements will be diluted. Even if yoelectto sell your unexercisedRightsEntitlementsthe consideratioryou

receive fothemmay not be sufficientto fully compensategoufor the dilutionof your percentage ownership of the

equity share capital of our Company that may be caused as a result of th&&ssuencee(s) may not be able to

apply in case of failure in completion of renunciation throughnudfket transfer in such a manrkeat tre Rights
Entitlements are credited to the demat account of the Renouncee(s) prior to the Issue Closing Date. Further, in case,
theRights Entitlements do not get credited in time, in case of On Market Renunciation, such Renouncee will not be
able to applyn this Issuewith respecto suchRightsEntitlements.

25. Any future issuance of the Equity Shares, or convertible securities by our Company may dilute your future
shareholding and sales of the Equity Shares by our Promoters or other major shareholders of ou
Company may adversely affect therading price of the Equity Shares.

Any future issuance of the Equity Shares, or convertible securities by our Company, including through exercise of
employee stockptions or restricted stock units may lead to dilutibgaur shareholding in our Company, adversely
affect the trading price of tHequity Shares and our ability to raise capital through an issue of our securities. Further,
any future sales of the Equity Shares by Bremotersand membersof our PromotersGroup, or other major
shareholdersf our Companymayadverselaffectthetradingprice ofthe Equity Shares.

26. There is no guarantee that our Equity Shares will be listed in a timely manner or at all, and any trading
closures at theStock Exchangesmay adversely affect the trading price of ourEquity Shares.

In accordance with Indian law and practice, final approval for listing and trading of the Equity Shares will not be
granted by the Stodkxchanges until after those Equity Shares have been issuedl@tetl. Approval will require

all relevant documents authorizing tissuingof Equity Sharego be submitted. Thereould be afailure or delayin

listing the Equity Shareson StockExchangesAny failureor delayin obtainingtheapprovalwould restrictyour ability
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to disposeof your Equity SharesFurther,historicaltradingprices,thereforemay not be indicative of the prices at

which the Equity Shares will trade in the future. Secondary market trading in our Equity Slagrbs halted by a

stock exchange because of market conditions or other reasons. Additionally, an exchange or market may also close
orissuetradinghaltsonspecificsecuritiespr theability to buyor sell certainsecuritiesr financialinstrumentsnaybe

restricted whichmayadverselyimpactthe ability of our shareholder$o sell the Equity Shareor the price at which
shareholdersmaybeableto selltheirEquity Sharesata particulapointin time.

27. Holders of Equity Shares could be restricted in their ability toexercise preemptive rights under Indian
law and couldthereby suffer future dilution of their ownership position.

Under the Companies Act, any company incorporated in India must offer its holders of equity shareptiwe

rights to subscribend pay fo a proportionate number of shares to maintain their existing ownership percentages
prior to the issuance of any new equstyares, unless the peenptive rights have been waived by the adoption of a
special resolution by holders of thrfmurths of the shresvoted on such resolution, unless our Company has obtained
government approval to issue without such rights. However, if the ldlegtirisdiction that you are in doesnot

permit the exerciseof such pre-emptive rights without us filing an offering documentor registration statement

with the applicable authority in such jurisdiction, you will be unable to exercise such pre emptive rightsvanless
make such a filing. We may elect not to file a registration statement in relation-émmptive rightsotherwise
available by Indiatiaw to you. To the extent that you are unable to exercise preemptive rights granted in respect of
the Equity Shares, your proportioniaterestsn uswould be reduced.

28. There may not be anactiveor liquid market for our Equity Shares, which maycause theprice of the
Equity Shares to faland maylimit your ability to sell the Equity Shares

The price at which the Equity Shares will trade after this Issue will be determined by the marketplace and may be
influenced by manyactors,including:

Aourfinancialresultsandthefinancialresultsof thecompaniesn thebusinesses/e operaten;
Athehistoryof, andtheprospectsor, our businessindthe sectorsn which we compete;
Athevaluationof publicly tradedcompanieshatareengagedn businessctivitiessimilarto us;and
Asignificantdevelopments; | n d ecandmidiberalizationandderegulatiompolicies.

In addition, the Indian equity share markets have from time to time experienced significant price and volume
fluctuations that havaffected the market prices for the securities of Indian companies. As a result, investors in the
Equity Shares may experience a decrigatbe value ofthe Equity Sharesegardles®f our operatingperformance or
prospects.

29. No market for the Right Entitlements may developand the price of the Right Entitlements may be volatile.

No assurance can be given that an active trading market for the Rights Entitlements will develop on the Stock
Exchanges during thRenunciation Period or thétere will be sufficient liquidity in Rights Entitlements trading
during this period. The trading price of tRéghtsEntitlementswill not only dependon supplyanddemandfor the
RightsEntitlementswhich maybe affectedby factorsunrelatedo the traling in the Equity Shares, but also on the
quoted price of the Equity Shares, amongst others. Factors affecting the voldtitpote of the Equity Shares, as
described herein, may magnify the volatility of the trading price of the Rigittdements, and decline in the price

of the Equity Shares will have an adverse impact on the trading price of the Rights Entitlements. Since tlu# trading
the Rights Equity Shareswill be on a separatesegmentcomparedto the Equity Shareson the floor of the Stock
Exchangesthetradingof RightsEquity Sharesnaynottrackthe tradingof Equity Shares.

30. The Rights Entitlement of Eligible Equity Shareholdersholding Equity Sharesin physical form
( A PhyS$Hh arad h onay lepsesinadgse theyfail to furnish the details of their demat accountto the
Registrar.

Inaccordancevith theSEBICircularSEBI/HO/CFD/DIL2/CIR/P/2020/18ated)anuary2,2020 thecreditof Rights
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EntitlementandAllotment of Equity Sharesshall be madein dematerializedorm only. Accordingly, the Rights
Entitlementsof the PhysicalShareholders shall be credited in a suspense escrow demat account opened by our
Company during the Issue Period. The Phys@&lsreholders are requested to furnish the details of their demat
accoun to the Registrar not later than two Working Days prior tdskae Closing Date to enable the credit of their

Rights Entitlements in their demat accounts at least one day before the Issue B#teinghe Rights Entitlements

of the Physical Shareholdewho do not furnish the details of their demat account to the Registiaterahan two

Working Days prior to the Issue Closing Date, shall lapse. Further, pursuant to a press release dated December 3,
2018issued by the SEBI, with effect from April 2019, a transfer of listed Equity Shares cannot be processed unless

the Equity Shares aheld indematerializedorm (exceptin case otransmissioror transpositiorof Equity Shares).

31. Applicants to the Issueare not allowedto withdraw their Applications after the IssueClosing Date.

In terms of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, Applicants in the Issue are not allowed to withdraw their Applications after

the Issue Closingpate. The Allotment in the Issue and the credit of such Equity Shares fopghe| i cant 6s dem
account with its depository participasitall be completed within such period as prescribed under the applicable laws.

There is no assurance, however, that material adebegges in the international or national monetary, financial,

political or economic conditions or other events in the nature of for@gure, material adverse changes in our
business, results of operation or f i n aecsionddinvestontheéi t i on,
Rights Equity Shares, auld not arise between the Issue Closing Date and the date of Allotment in the Issue.
Occurrencef anysuchevents after théssueClosingDatecould alsampactthe marketprice ofour Equity Shares.

The Applicants shall not have the right to withdreir applications in the event of any such occurrence. We cannot

assure you thahe marketprice of the Equity Shareswill not declinebelowthelssuePrice.To the extentthe market

pricefor theEquity SharesleclinebelowthelssuePriceafterthelssueClosingDate,theshareholdewill berequired

to purchas&rightsEquity Sharestapricethatwill be higher than the actual market price for the Equity Shares at that

time. Should that occur, the shareholder will suffer an immediatealized los as a result. We may complete the

Al'l ot ment even i f such event s may Sharesafterthe Isshem cadsghel i cant s
tradingprice ofour EquitySharedo decline.
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SECTION Il 7 INTRODUCTION THE ISSUE

This Issue has been authorized through a resolution passed by our Board at its meeting\hglost@®) 2024, pursuant to
Section 62(1)(a) of the Companies Act. The terms of the Issue including the Record Date and Rights Entitlement ratio, have
beerapproved by resolutionpassedy the RightslssueCommittee at its meetingeldon[ 6 ] .

The following is a summary of this Issue, and should be read in conjunction with and is qualified entirely by, the informatio
detailed inthe chapter titlediTermsof thelssu® pagell8of this Draft Letterof Offer.

Particulars Detailsof Equity Shares

Equity Sharesproposedto beissued Upto[ OHquityShares

Rights Entitlement [ OEquity Share(sfor every[ Ofglly paidup Equity Share(sheldonthe
Recordate

Fractional Entitlement For Equity Shares being offered on a rights basis under the Issue,

shareholdingof any of the Eligible Equity Shareholderss lessthan[ o(] [ (¢
Equity Sharesor is notin multiplesof[ &(][ &Hefractionalentittemenbf such
Eligible Equity Shareholdershall be ignored for computation of the Rig
Entittement. However, Eligible Equityshareholders whose fractior
entittements are being ignored earlier will be giypeaferencén the Allotment
of oneadditionalEquity Shareeach,if suchEligible EquityShareholders hay
applied for additional Equity Shares over and above their Rigftifement,

if any.

RecordDate [ 0]

Facevalue per Equity Shares* 10F

IssuePrice per Rights Equity Shares [ O-T7

IssueSize Up _ to [ 6] Equity Shares of fac
[ 6-YIdcludingapremiumof [ 0-)pérRightsEquity Sharenotexceedingn
amount
of 490Q00Lakhs.

Voting Rights and Dividend TheEquity Sharesssuedpursuanto thisIssueshallrankpari pasuin all

respects witlthe existingequityshareof our Company.
Equity Sharesissued subscribedand paid | 22,40,00CEquity Sharef 10/ each.

up prior to the Issue
Equity Sharessubscribedand paid-up Upto[ OEquity Shares
after the Issue(assumingfull subscription
for and allotment of the Rights
Entitlement)

Equity Sharesoutstandingafter thelssue | [ OEjuityShares

(assumingfull subscription for
and Allotment of the Rights Entitlement)

Money payableat the time of [ o/

Application

Security Codesfor the Equity Shares ISIN: INE099S01016
BSE: 539449

ISIN for Rights Entitlements ISIN: [ O]

Useof IssueProceeds For details pleaseeferto the chaptettitied fiObjectsof thelssueé onpage
40 ofthis Dratft Letter of Offer.

Terms of the Issue Fordetalls pleaseeferto the chapterifled T ermsof theIssu® on pagel18of
this Draft Letterof Offer.

Pleaseeferto the chaptettitled ATermsof thelssu® on pagel18of this Draft Letterof Offer.

IssueSchedule

Thesubscriptiorwill openuponthecommencemerdf the bankinghoursandwill closeuponthecloseof
bankinghouronthe datesnentionedbelow:

Event Indicative Date

IssueOpeningDate
LastDatefor OnMarketRenunciatiorof Rights**
IssueClosingDate*

———
O¢| O¢| O«

]
]
]
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*The Board of Directors or a duly authorized committee thereof will have the right to extend the Issue period as it may
determine from time to time, provided that the Issilienot remain open in excess of 30 (thirty) days from the |Sgpening
Date.

** Eligible Equity Shareholders are requested to ensure that renunciation throughaokiet transfer is completed such

a manner that the Rights Entitlements are creditethe demat account of the Renouncees on or prior to the Geamg
Date.
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Our Company was originally incorporated as Maxwell Traders & Exporters Limited under the Companies Act, 1956 with
the Registrar oCompanies, Kolkata and consequently a certificate of incorporation dated August 26, 1980. Later, the

name of the company was changed from fiMaxwell Traders &
of incorporation consequentuponchangof name AROC | etter no NCR/CN/ 329500
the Company was changed from Al GC Foils Ltdo to its pr

incorporation consequent upon change of name dated October 339201

RegisteredOffice of Our Company.

12 Government Place (East), 1st Floor Formerly Hemanta Basu Sarani, Kolkat400069
TEL: 022 28020017/18

EMAIL: igcfoils@gmail.com

WEBSITE: ww.igcindustriesltd.com

CIN: LO1100WB1980PLC032950

Registration Number: 032950

Registrar of Companies

OurCompanyis registeredwith the Registrarof Companieskolkata whichis situatedatthe

following address:

TheRegistrarof CompaniesKolkata

Nizam Palace 2nd MSO Building 2nd Floor, 234/4, A.J.C.B. Road Kolk@@0020

Board of Directors of our Company

Setforth belowarethe detailsof our Boardof Directorsasonthe dateof this Draft Letter of Offer:

Name Designation Address DIN
SALMAN MAHIBUB Managing Director At Post, Awati Tal Karmala, Awati, 09837263
SAYYAD Solapur, No. 5, Amrit Vihar, Burari,

Karmala, Maharashtra13203
SUPRIYA DILIP GAIKWAD |Additional Executive C-10/41, Building No. C/10, Sahayadri 09837251

Director Nagar, Chark, Edkar Marg, Kandivlai
West, Maharashtra400067
AVANI SAVJIBHAI Additional NonExecutivg Sai Sahara Apt Room No 17 Tulinj Rog 10387729
GODHANIYA Independent Directors | Vasai Mahara, Edkar Marg, Vasai,
Maharashtra401209
HEMLATA Additional NonExecutivg C/O Satish Chander Notiyal, Khasra 10417881

Independent Directors | No.18/16 Al Bl No. 5, Amrit Vihar,
Burari, Delhi 110084

For detailedprofile of ourdirectors pleasaeferto thechaptettitted i O Mra n a g e om@aya6of this Draft Letter
of Offer.

Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Supriya Dilip Gaikwadis the ChiefFinancialOfficer of our CompanyHer contact detailare seforth
hereunder:

12 Government Place (East),

1st Floor Formerly Hemanta Basu Sarani, Kolk&@@069

TEL: 022 28020017/18
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EMAIL: igcfoils@gmail.com
FaxNo.: N.A.

Company Secretaryand ComplianceOfficer
ARPIT JAIN, CompanySecretariandComplianceOfficer of our CompanyHis contact detailare et fortthereunder:

12 Government Place (East),
1st Floor Formerly Hemanta Basu Sarani, Kolk&@069

TEL: 022 28020017/18

EMAIL: igcfoils@gmail.com
FaxNo.:N.A.

InvestoramaycontactComplianceOfficer or Registrarto the Issuefor anypre-issue/ postissuerelatedmatterssuchas
non-receiptofletters of allotment/ sharecertificates/ refund orders, etc. All grievancesrelating to the ASBAprocessmay
beaddressedo the Registrato thelssue with a copyto theSCSBdor grievanceselatedto ASBA giving full detailssuch
asname addresoftheapplicant, emailid of the first holder, folio number @lemat account number, number of Rights
Equity Shares applied for, amount blocked (in cageSBA process), ASBA account number and the Designated Branch
of the SCSBs where the plain paper application was submittéioebtSBA Investors along withpdnotocopy of the
acknowledgement slip (in case of ASBA process). For further details on thepA&®RAspleaserefer to the section
tittedi T e rofthel s s legimningon pagell8of thisFinal Draft Letterof Offer.

Detailsof Key Intermediaries pertaining to this Issue
of our Company:REGISTRAR TO THE ISSUE:

PURVA SHAREGISTRY (INDIA) PRIVATE LTD.
CIN: U67120MH1993PTC074079

Unit no. 9, Shiv Shakti Ind. Estt. J. R. Boricha Marg,
Lower Parel (E) Mumbai 400 011. Telephone: +91 22
4961 4132;

Facsimile:+91 22 22 3570 0224;

E-mail: support@purvashare.com

Website: https://purvashare.com;

Contact person: Deepali Dhuri, Compliance Officer
Investor grievancesuppot@purvashare.com

SEBI Registration No: INRO00001112

Validity of Registration: Permanent

Statutory and PeerReviewAuditor of our Company

Name:M/s. ADV & Associates, Chartered Accountants.

AddressB-wing, 601605, Raylon Arcade, RK mandir roddyndivita, Andheri Eas#00059
Telephone8976982742

Email: advassociates@gmail.com

Website:www.sraco.in

MembershipNo.: 421679

Firm Registration No.128045W

PeerReviewCertificateNo.: 013067

Bankersto the Issue/Refund Bank
TheBankerto thelssuethe Refund
Bankareasunder[ 0] *

Bankerto thelssueshall befinalizedprior to filing of the Draft Letterof Offer with the StockExchange.

Designatedintermediaries

36


mailto:support@purvashare.com
mailto:support@purvashare.com
mailto:advassociates@gmail.com
http://www.sraco.in/

Self-Certified Syndicate Banks

The list of banks that have been notified by SEBI to act as SCSBs for the ASBA process is provided at the website
of the SEBIhttps:/www.sebi.gov.in/sebiweb/other/OtherAction.do?doRecognisedFpi=yes&intrhldng8updated

from time to time. On Allotment, the amountwill be unblockedandthe accountwill be debitedonly to theextent
requiredto payfor the Rights Equity Sharegllotted. For further details on the ASBA process, please refer to the
details given in ASBA form and also please refer todaptert i t | e doftfilfee r Ims s uom@agedlBar t i ng
this Draft Letter of Offer.

Expert Opinion

Exceptfor thereportsof the Auditor of our Companyonthe auditedFinancialStatementsandStatemenbf Tax
Benefits,included irthis Draft Letter of Offer, our Companyhasnot obtainedanyexpertopinions.

Statementof inter seallocation of Responsibilitiesfor the Issue

The Companyhasnotappointecanymerchanbankerto the lssueandhencethereis no inter-seallocationof
responsibilities.

Monitoring Agency
Astheissuesizeisbelow 1 0 0 (Giomonitersigagencyhasbeenappointed.
Investor grievances

Investors may contact the Company Secretary and Compl@fficer for any prelssue/ postssue related matters
such as nomeceiptf Lettersof Allotment/ share certificateslematcredit/RefundOrders, etc.

Investorsareadvisedto contactthe Registrar tahelssueor our CompanySecretaryand ComplianceOfficer for any

pre- Issueor postissuerelatedproblemssuchasnonreceiptof AbridgedDraft Letterof Offer/ ApplicationFormand
RightsEntitlementLetter/ LetterofAllotment, Split Application Forms, Share Certificate(s) or Refund Orders, etc.
All grievances relating to the ASBA process matdressed to the Registrathe Issue, with a copy to the SCSBs,
giving full details such as name, address of the applicant, AS&&untnumberandthe Designatedranchof the
SCSBsnhumberof Equity Sharesappliedfor, amountblocked,wherethe ApplicationForm and Right€&Entitlement
Letter or the plain paper application, in case of Eligible Equity Shareholder, was submitted by thinveSBAs
throughASBA process.

Credit Rating

Asthisis anlssueof Equity SharesCreditRatingis notrequired.
DebentureTrustees

Asthelssueis of Equity Sharestheappointmenbf Debenturdrusteess notrequired.

Changesin Auditors during the lastthree years

There has been change in the Statutory Auditor of our Company in last thredeafdDV & Associates, Chartered
Accourtants, have been appointed as Statutory auditors of the Company in 40th Annual General Meeting held in the
FY 20202021 for a period of 5 years till the conclusion of the 45th Annual General Meeting

Underwriting Agreement
ThislIssuels notunderwritterandour Companyhasnotenterednto anyunderwritingarrangement.
IssueSchedule

Thesubscription willopenuponthecommencemerdf the banking hourandwill closeuponthe closeof bankinghours
onthedatesnentioned below:

Event Indicative Date

IssueOpeningDate [ 0]
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LastDatefor On MarketRenunciation

[ 6]
[ 6]

(@]

Last Date for receivingrequestsor Application Formand
RightsEntitlementlLetter**

IssueClosingDate* [ 0]

*The Board of Directorsor a duly authorizedcommitteghereofwill havethe right to extendthelssueperiod asit
maydeterminefromtime to time, providedthat the Issuewill hot remain operin exces®f 30 (thirty) daysfrom the
Issue Openin@ate.

“Eligible Equity Shareholderare requestedo ensurethat renunciationthroughoff-markettransferis completedn
sucha mannerthatthe RightsEntitlementsare credited tothe demataccountof the Renouncee(s)on prior to the
IssueClosing Date.

** Investors are advised to ensure that the Application Forms are submittedefoos the Issue Closing Date. Our
Company and/dghe Registrar to the Issue will not be liable for any loss on account eutamission of Application
Forms or on before the Iss@osing Date.

Theaboveschedulas indicativeanddoesnot constituteanyobligationon our Company.

Pleasenotethatif Eligible Equity Shareholdersolding Equity Sharesn physicalform ason Record Datédiavenot
provided thedetailof their demat accounts to our Company or to the Registrar, they are required to fireiide
demat account details to our CompantheRegistramotlaterthantwo (2) Working Daysprior to thelssueClosing
Date,i.e.,[ 6tdenablehecreditof theRightsEntitlementby wayof transfeffromthedematsuspensescrowaccount
to theirrespectivalemataccountsat leastonedaybeforethe IssueClosingdate,i . e . [ 6] .

Investors are advised to ensure that the Applications are submitted on or before the Issue Closing Date. Neither Our
Company nor th&egistrar to the Issue will be liabler any loss on account of nesubmission of Applications on

or before the Issue Closing Dateurther, it is also encouraged that the applications are submitted well in advance
before Issue Closing Date. For details on submitfiagymon Applicatiofrorms,seefi T e rofithel s s hegirning

on pagell18of this Draft Letter of Offer.

Please note that if no Application is made by the Eligible Equity Shareholders of Rights Entitlements on or before
Issue Closing DatesuchRightsEntitlementsshall getlapsedandshallbe extinguishedhfterthe IssueClosingDate.

No Equity Sharesfor suchlapsedRightsEntitlements will be credited, even if such Rights Entitlements were
purchased from market and purchaser will lose the amount pEiduethe RightsEntitlements.Personsvho are
creditedthe RightsEntitlementsarerequiredto makeanapplicationto applyfor EquitySharesffered under Rights
Issuefor subscribingo the EquityShareoffered undetssue.

The details of the Rights Entitlements with resgeceach Eligible Equity Shareholders can be accessed by such
respective Eligibld&equity Shareholders on the website of the Registrar at hitpsy/jourvashare.condfter keying

in their respective details alongth either security control measures implemented there at. For further details, see
i Ter ms o fonpdyel8ofthis Draftd etter oOffer.

Minimum Subscription

a. We hereby declare that the promoters would not subscribe, either jointly or severtily Rights Entitlement of

IGC Industries Limited (Formerly Known as IGC Foils Limitédhe forthcomingrightsissue.

b. Furthermorethe promotersconfirm thatthe promoters willnot subscribeo the extentof our RightsEntitlement

in this Issuegvenif itis renounced in the promoters favor by any other Promoters or Member(s) of the Promoter
Group of our Company, in accordance wibgulatioriLl0(4)(b) andtherapplicable provisionsfthe SEBITakeover
Regulations as the promter has already mitted the application under Regulation 31 (A) of (SEBI) LODR,
Regulations 2015 for reclassifying her in Public Category as per her request letter dated 31/07/2024

c. Additionally, thepromoters acknowledgbat wemayrenouncehepromotergightsentittemenin therightsissue.

In accordanceawvith Regulation86 of the SEBI ICDR Regulationsjf our Companydoesnot receivethe minimum
subscriptiorof atleas®0% of the Issue of the Equity Shares being offered under this Issue, on an aduasizate
our Company shall refund the entgebscription amount received within 4 (four) days from the Issue Closing Date
in accordance with the SEBI circular bearing referemeeber SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/4¥ated March

31, 2021.f there isa delayin makingrefundsbeyondsuchperiodasprescribedy applicablelaws, our Company
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will payinterestfor thedelayedoeriodatratesasprescribedindertheapplicabléaws. The allotment of Equity Shares
subscribed by the Promoters and other membetedPromoters Group in this Issue shalkbgible for exemption

from open offer requirements in terms of Regulation 10(4)(a) and 10(4)(b) of the SEBI Takeover Regillations.
Issueshallnotresultin achangeof control of the managementf our Companyin accordancavith provisionsof the

SEBI TakeoveRegulations. Our Company is in compliance with Regulation 38 of the SEBI LODR Regulations and
will continue to comply with theninimum public shareholding requirementmder applicable law, pursuaio this

Issue.

Underwriting

Thelssueis notunderwritten.

Filing

SEBI vide its circular bearingnumber SEBI/HO/CFD/CIR/CFD/DIL/67/2020ated April 21, 2020 hasgranted
certainrelaxationswithrespect to rights issues under the SEBI ICDR Regulatidns. of those relaxations is the
increase of threshold of the rights issue $idiling of the Final Draft Letter of Offer with SEBI. The threshold of
the rights issue size under Regulation 3 of the SEBI I&2Bulations has further been increased ftemcrores to

fifty crores. Since the size of this Issue falls below the threshold, thell2tedt ofOffer will notbefiled with SEBI.
TheDraft Letter of Offer will be filedwith the stockexchange.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

TheEquity Sharecapitalof our Companyasonthe dateof this Draft Letter ofOffer and aftemiving effectto the

Issueis setforthbelow:

S.No. | Particulars Amount (in exceptsharedata)
Aggregate Aggregate
valueat valueat
nominal value IssuePrice

A. Authorized ShareCapital

1,00,00,00EquityShareof 10each 10,00,00,00 -
0
Total 10,00,00,00 -
0
B. Issued,Subscribedand Paid-Up ShareCapital beforethe Issue
22,4Q0000Equity Shareof facevalueof 10each 224,00,000 -
C. Presentlssuein terms of this Draft Letter of Offer®
Upto[ OEquityShareof 210each [ 0] [ 0]
D. Issued,Subscribedand Paid-Up ShareCapital after the Issue
[ 6 BquityShareof facevalueof 10each [ 0] [ 0]
E. Securities Premium Account
Beforethelssue nil
After thelssue [ 0]

O Thepresentissuehasbeenauthorizedvidea resolutionpassedit the meetingof the Board of DirectorsdatedAugusts,
2024.

NOTESTO CAPITAL STRUCTURE
Details of outstanding instruments ason the date of this Draft Letter of Offer:

As on date of this Draft Letter of Offer, our Company has not issued any Equity Shares under any employee stock
option scheme ocemployeestockpurchaseschemeFurtherno convertiblesecuritiesareoutstandindgor conversioras
of dateof thisDraft Letterof Offer.

Intention and extentof participation by our Promotersand Promoters Group in the Issue:

a. We hereby declare that the promoters would not subscribe, either jointly or severally, to the Rights Entitlement of

IGC Industries Limited (Formerly Known as IGC Foils Limitédthe forthcomingrightsissue.

b. Furthermorethe promotersconfirmthatthe promoters willnot subscribeo the extentof our RightsEntitlementin

this Issuegvenif itis renounced in thpromoters favor by any other Promoters or Member(s) of the Promoter Group

of our Company, in accordance wikegulation10(4)(b) andother applicable provision®f the SEBI Takeover

Regulations.

c. Additionally, the promotersacknowledgehatwe mayrenouncehe promotergightsentitlementn therightsissue.

d.PROMOTER- DISHA ABHISHEK MEHTA holding only 100 Eq. Shares i.e. 0.001% of paid up equity
share capital of the company, and Disha Abhishek Mehta has already submitted application dated
31/07/2024 undeRegulation 31(A) of SEBI LODR Regulations 2015 for reclassifying her as public
shareholder, the Board of Directors in its meeting dated 08/08/2024 has approved her application of
reclassification as Public Shareholder and further formalities and appiitat&tock exchange is under
process.
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In accordance with Regulation 86 of the SEBI ICDR Regulations, if our Company does not receive the minimum
subscription of ateast 90% of the Issue of the Equity Shares being offered under this Issue, on an abgsigjate

our Company shall refund the entsebscription amourreceivedwithin 4 (four) daysfrom the IssueClosingDate

in accordancevith the SEBI circular bearingreferencenumber SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/47 dated March

31, 2021. If there is a delay making refunds beyond such periodpasscribed by applicable laws, our Company

will pay interest for the delayed period at rates as prescribed under the applicabBua@smpany is in compliance

with Regulation 38 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations amill continue to comply with the minimunpublic
shareholdingequirements undeapplicablelaw, pursuanto this Issue.

In theeventof renouncement bgnyPromotersand/ or memberof the Promoters groupf the lssuerCompanyother
thanrenunciatiomvithin the promoters / Promoters group, the promoters and the Promoters group shall not be eligible
for exemption available und&egulationl0(4)(b) ofthe SEBI SASTRegulations, 2011.

Shareholding pattern of our Company as per the last quarterly filing with the StockExchangein compliance
with the SEBIListing Regulations

The shareholding pattern of our Company can be accessed on the website of the BSE at:

https://www.bseindia.com/stoghareprice/igcindustries

Itd/igcil/539449/shareholdingattern/

Shareholdingof Promoters and Promoters Group:

Thedetailsof Equity Shares held bghe PromotersandPromotersGroup includinghedetailsof lock-in, pledgeand
encumbrancensuchEquity Sharesanbe accessednthe website othe BSE at:

https://www.bseindia.com/stogdhareprice/igcindustriesltd/igcil/539449/shareholdirgattern/

Detailsof specifiedsecuritiesacquired by the Promotersand Promotersgroup in the last oneyear immediately
precedingthedate of filing of the Draft Letter of Offer:

Our Promotersand membersof PromotersGroup have acquiredEquity Sharesin the last one yearimmediately
precedinghedateoffiling of the DraftLetter ofOffer andthe detailof the samere asinder:Not Applicable.

Sr. No. Name of Promotersand Number of Shares Percentage to  Totall Mode of Acquisition
Promoters Group Acquired Capital
1 No Acquision - - -

Details of the shareholdersholding more than 1% of the issuedand paid-up Equity Sharecapital:

The details of shareholdersair Company holding more than 1% of the issued and-ppi&quity Share capital

of our Company, are available on the website of BSE at:
https://www.bseindia.com/corporates/shpdrPercnt.aspx?scripcd=539449&qtrid=122.00&CompName=IGC%?20Ind
ustries%20Ltd&QtrName=JuP4&Type=TM

Declarations:
Theex-rightsprice of the RightsEquity Sharesaasper Regulation10(4)(b)of the TakeoverRegulationss [ 06-] /
perequityshareAt anygiventime,there shalbe onlyonedenominatiorof the Equity Sharef our Company.

All Equity Sharesarefully paid-up and thereareno partly paidup EquitySharesason the dateof this Draft Letter
of Offer. Furtherthe Equity Sharesallottedpursuanto the Issueshallbe fully paid up.

Therewill benofurther issuef equityshares whether hiyayof apublicissue qualified institutiongplacementissue

of bonussharegyreferential allotment, rights issue or in any other manner during the period commencing from filing
of this Draft Letter of Offer wittStock Exchange until the Equity Shares have been listed on the Stock Exchanges,
or all application monies have been reded, as theasemaybe.
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OBJECTSOF THE ISSUE

Weintendto utilize thegrossproceedsaisedthroughthelssug( t h e FiIGo © eaftatdedudtinghelssuerelated
expense¢ i Watoceeds 0) fabjectsicdiiestivdlypréfdrredeasthei Obj ect s 0) :

The Objectsof the Issueare: -

1. Working Capital requirements;
2. GeneralCorporate Purposesand

3. To purchase and acquire the equity shares or other securities oftar companies for the purpose as
follows:

a) Establishing new Business through:

Creating subsidiaries or wholly owned subsidiaries.
Forming associate companies.

Entering into joint ventures.

b) Exploring Business Opportunities:

Expanding the business by acquiring other businesses through the parfobaisity shares from existing
shareholders or through other means.

¢) Investing in Financial Instruments:

Dealing in and investing in shares, debentures, and other securities as part of the strategic business expansion.

This Object of fund raisings to explore and expand business opportunities through strategic acquisitions and
investments.

The main objects clause of our Memorandum enables our Company to undertake the activities for which funds are
being raised in théssue.The existingactivitiesof our Companyare within the objectsclauseof our Memorandum.

Thefund requiremenanddeploymenis basedon internalmanagemengstimatesand hasotbeenappraised bany

bankor financial institution.

FUND REQUIREMENTS

Our funding requirements adependent on a number of factors which may not be in the control of our management,
changes in ouiinancial condition and current commercial conditions. Such factors may entail rescheduling and / or
revising the planned expenditaedfundingrequiremenandincreasingr decreasingheexpenditurdor aparticular
purposdrom the planned expenditure.

We intendto utilize theproceed®f the Freshssue,in the mannersetforth below:

Sr. No. Particulars Amount (In Rs.
Lakhs)

1 GrossProceeddo beraisedthrough this Issue Up To 4,900
Less:Adjustmentof businessadvancesndinter-corporatedepositsagainsthe Nil
entitlemeniof members
Less:ssueRelatedExpenses 80

2 Net Proceedsfrom the Issue 4,820

3 Utilization of Net Proceeds

A $ Working CapitalRequirement 3,615

B GeneralCorporatePurposes 1,205
Total Net Proceeds 4,900
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*The Issuesize will not exceed 4,90000 Lakh (RupeesForty-Nine Crore Only). If thereis anyreductionin the
amounton accountof or atthe time of finalization of IssuePrice and RightsEntitlementsRatio, the samewill be
adjusted againskeneralCorporatePurpose.

The requirements of the objects detailed above are intended to be funded from the Proceeds of the Issue.
Accordingly, we confirm that there is no requirement for us to make firm arrangements of finance through
verifiable means towards at leas?75% of the stated meansof finance, excludingthe amount to be raised from

the proposedlssue.

The fund requirement and deployment are based orinternal management estimates and have not been
appraised by any banlor financial institution. These are based on current conditions and are subject to change
in light of changes in externalcircumstancesor costs, other financial conditions, businessor strategy, as
discussedurther below.

In case of variations in the actual utilization of funds allocated for the purposes set forth above, increased fund
requirements for particular purpose may be finano@dmay be Investenh securities of other compees/entitiedy

surplus funds, if any, available in respect of the other purposes for which funds are beingttassdue. If surplus
fundsareunavailabletherequired financing wilbethroughourinternalaccrualsand/ordebt.

We may have toevise our fund requirements and deployment as a result of changes in commercial and other external
factors, whichmay not be within the control of our management. This may entail rescheduling, revising or cancelling
the fund requirements andcreasing ordecreasing the fund requirements for a particular purpose from its fund
requirements mentioned below, at the discretbour managementn caseof any shortfall or costoverruns,we

intendto meetour estimatedexpenditurdrominternalaccrualsand/ordebt.In caseof anysuchre-schedulingit shall
bemadeby complianceof therelevantprovisionsof the Companiegict, 2013.

Details of Utilization of IssueProceeds

1. To Meettheworking Capital Requirement

The company remained operational until Masdh 2022, with strong business turnover until March 2019. However,
the COVID-19 pandemic led to a significant decline in turnover, resulting iropamational status from FY 2023

to FY 202324. Now, under the new management team led by Mr. Salman Mn8iyyad (Managing Director) and
Ms. Supriya Dilip Gaikwad (Executive Director cum CFO), the company is poised to restart operations.

To address liquidity challenges and support growth, the company plans to raise funds through a rights issue up to Rs.
490 . 00 Lakh, with an estimated 3615. 00 Lakbessedforl ocat ed
AObject of | ssued a s45rnmeadditiondonttetlorkiognCapttal pguireMents of £LOmpany

acquisition of businesses through the purchase of equity shares or securities of companies, potentially forming
subsidiaries, wholhowned subsidiaries, joint ventures, or associate companies. The goal is to expand and diversify

the company's operationsithin the same business segment or into new segments, leveraging the best available
opportunitieso make the company operational and profitable

The current objective is to recapitalize the company and restart operations by raising funds for workahg capi
Recognizing the importance of involving all stakeholders in the company's turnaround, the management has chosen a
rights issue as the most inclusive method of fundraising. The funds raised will be used to address liquidity challenges
caused by variatins in payment cycles between creditors and debtors.

The company proposes to ut i Balxz08Lakhnto meetttheseaworkimy capitalo u n t 0
requirements.

Working Capital Requirements

Detailsof Estimationof Working Capitalrequirementareasfollows:
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( "in Lakhs)

31-03-2024 31-03-2025 31-03-2026

Particulars Audited Projected Projected
Current Assets
TradeReceivables 0.12 80.66 371.55
Inventories 55.71 73.4 338.75
CashandCashEquivalents - 0.17 0.17
ShorttermLoansandAdvances - 5.00 -
OtherCurrentAssets 11.21 1.63 1.63
Total (A) 160.86 712.10
Current Liabilities
Borrowings - 5.00 -
Tradepayables 4.06 36.70 83.60
Inventories - 73.40 334.40
Provisions 8.12 0.04 0.04
Currenttaxliabilities - - -
Othercurrentliabilities - 71.85 71.85
Total (B) 186.99 489.89
Total Working Capital Gap 117.35 622.35
Key assumptionsfor working capital projections madeby the Company:
Particulars 31/03/2024 31/03/205 31/03/20%

Audited Projected Projected
Debtorg(in days) 60Days 90Days 120Days
Creditorg(in days) 60Days 45Days 30Days
Inventoriegin days) 60Days 90Days 120Days

Key assumptionsfor working capital projections madeby the Company:

Particulars Justification

TradeReceivables | The increase in trade receivables refleqisaactivesalesstrategyjncludingextendedtcredit terms
to support projected revengeowthandfoster customer loyalty.

The progression in trade payables signdidsliberate extension of payment cyclegtimizing
cashflows, negotiatingfavorableterms,andpotentiallycapitalizingon earlypaymentdiscounts.

TradePayables

Therisein inventorylevelsalignswithanticipatedoroductionandsalesgrowthensuringthe
company maintains adequati®ck levels to meet demand and suppgp#rationakfficiency.

Inventories

ExpandedRationale:

1.1 Increase in Revenue GrowthThe anticipated fourfold surge in revenue is underpinned by strategic initiatives and
operationalmprovementsed by the new management team. These efforts are expected to unlock previously untapped
market potential, drivingubstantiatop-line expansion.

1.2Increase in Debtor Days and ReceivablesThe extension of debtor days from 90 to 120 is a strategic move to
accommodate diverselient paymentcycles, fosteringstrongercustomerrelationships.This adjustmentaligns with
industrynorms providingflexibility whileensuringsustainedevenue growth.

1.3 Changein Creditor Daysand Payables The reductionin creditordays from45 to 30 is a tactical adjustment
aimedat optimizingash flows. By negotiating favorable terms with suppliers, the company seeks to leverage early
payment discounts, thereby enhandiggidity andimproving overallworking capitalefficiency.

1.4 Increasein Inventory Daysand Inventory: Theextensiorof inventorydays fromB0to 120is adeliberatemeasure
to align stocKevels with the anticipated increase in sales. This strategic adjustment ensures the company is well
positioned to medieightenedlemandpreventingstockoutsandpotentialdisruptionsin the supplychain.
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1.5 Change in Trade Receivables The i ncr ease i nO0lAekhad(suditeccas ef BMaad)ltoes f r on

8 0 . 6 6(Prbjectechas of 3Mar-25) and furtherto 37 1. 55 L akhs -Ma&a-e6preflects b mrahcties of 3
sales strategy, includingxtended credit terms. This strategic decision is aimed at fostering customer loyalty and
accommodating varied payment preferenebie supportingthe projectedeverue growth.

1.6 Change in Trade Payables The progr essi on 4i06akhs (Aaditer aspoh 3Mar4) s fr om

36. 7 0(Pbjectethas of 3Mar-25) and subsequently to -MaB26)&GiQnifieksak hs (P
deliberate extension of paentcycles with suppliers. This strategy is designed to optimize cash flows, negotiate
favorable terms, and potentially capitalize on epdymentiscounts, contributintp improvediquidity management.

1.7 Change in Inventories The rise ininventory lex| s f r om 0.00 LM&aB4 ¢(AudivrBedOasta
(Projected as @&1-Mar-25) andfurther to 3 3 4Lakh$)(Projectedasof 31-Mar-26) aligns with the anticipated

increasan productionandsales.Thisstrategicadjustmentnsureghatthe companymaintainsadequatetocklevelsto
meetgrowingdemandpreventingpotentialstockoutsand supporting@perational efficiency.

2. GeneralCorporate Purpose

OurCompanyintendsto deploythebalanceNet Proceed$or GeneralCorporatedPurposesubjecto suchutilization not
exceedin@5%of the Net Proceeds, in compliance with the SEBI Regulations, including but not limited including but
not restricted to, strategiaitiatives, strengthening our marketing network & capability, meeting exigencieg] bran
building exercises in order to strengthen operations. Our management, in accordance with the policies of our Board,
will have flexibility in utilizing the proceeds earmarked @@neralCorporate Purposes.

3. IssueExpenses

The estimated expenses tbis Issue include issue management fees, underwriting fees, registrar fees, legal advisor
fees, printing andlistribution expenses, advertisement expenses, depository charges, and listing fees to the Stock
Exchange, among others. The ta@apensesor thislssue are estimated notexceed 80.00Lakh.

Thebreakup of the sames asfollows:

( In Lakh)
%  of total
0
Particulars Amount estimated S/?ng ol
expenses
Feeto theprofessionaserviceprovidersandRegistrato the 5.00 6.25 0.10%
Issue
Advertising Newspaper,)Printingexpensesshareholder 7.00 8.75 0.1%%
outreachetc.
Feespayableto regulators,including. depositoriesand 20.00 25 00 0.41%
StockExchanges.
Other expensegqincluding miscellaneousexpensesand 48.00 60.00 0.9
stammluty)
Total estimatedlssueexpenses* 80.00 100.00 1.63%

*Includes applicable taxes. Subjectfioalization of Basis of Allotment. In case of any difference between the estimated
Issue relateexpenses and actual expenses incurredshiogtfall or excess shall be adjusted with the amount allocated
towards general corporatpurposes.

Note: Subject to finalization of Basis of Allotment. In case of any difference between the estimated Issue related expenses
and actualexpensesncurred, the shortfall or excessshall be adjustedwith the amountallocated towardsggeneral
corporatepurposes.

DEPLOYMENT OF FUNDS

As estimatedy our managementheentireproceedsrom the lssueshallbe utilized asfollows:
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( "in Lakhs)

Particul Total Funds
articulars required ProposedSchedulefor Deployment

FY 202425 FY 202526
Working CapitalRequirement* 3615.00 1900.00 1715.00
GeneralCorporatePurpose** 1205.00 705.00 500.00
IssueExpenses 80.00 80.00 -
Total*** 4900.00 26,85.00 2215.00

*Any portion of the Net Proceeds not deployed for the stated Objects in a particular Financial Year will be
deployed by our CompaimynextFinancial Yearand/or aheadof the estimatedcheduleof deployment.

** Subjecto thefinalizationof the Basisof Allotmentandthe Allotment.Whiletheamountis subjectto adjustment
uponfinalizationoflssuerelatedexpensediowever, in n@ventshall generalcorporatepurposesexcee®5% of

the Gros$Proceeds.

***  Assumingfull subscriptionin the Issueand subjectto finalization of the Basisof Allotmentand to be adjusted
per the Right€Entitiementatio.

Thefundrequiremenanddeployments basedninternalmanagemergstimatesndourc 0 mp acuriedtaisiness
planis subjectochange in light oEhanges in external circumstances or costs, other financial conditions, business or
strategy. These estimates havebeen appraised by any bank or financial institution. Any amount, deployed by our
Company out of internal accruals towards df@ementioedobjectdtill the dateof receiptof IssueProceedshallbe
recoupedy our Companyfrom the IssueProceed®f thelssueln caseof delaysin raisingfundsfrom the Issue,our
companymaydeploycertainamountgowardsanyof theabove- mentionedObjectshrough a combination of Internal
Accruals or Loans (Bridge Financing) and in such case the Funds raised shall be utilized riepeanaiendf such
Loansor recoupingof Internal Accruals. However, weonfirmthatno bridgefinancinghasbeenavailed asndate,
whichis subjectto beingrepaidfromthelssueProceeds.

Pending utilization for the purposes described above, our Company intends to invest the funds in with scheduled
commercial banksncluded in the second schedule of Reserve Bainkndia Act, 1934. Our management, in
accordance with the policies establishedhy Board of Directors from time to time, will deploy the Net Proceeds.
Further, our Board of Directors hereby undertake thatrédbvery of the said interim investmentsal be made

without any sort of delay as and when need arises for utilization of proceke ddjectsof the issue.

MONITORING UTILIZATION OF FUNDS

As t he Net Proceeds of the | ssue wild/| be | esisnott han
mandatory for us tappointa monitoringagency.

OurBoardandthemanagementill monitortheutilization of the NetProceedshroughits auditcommittee Pursuant

to Regulatior82of the SEBI(Listing Obligationand DisclosureRequirementsRegulation2015,ourCompanyshall

on quarterlybasisdiscloseto theAudit Committee the applications of the proceeds of the Issue. On an annual basis,
our Company shall prepare a statement of furtdiged for purposes other than stated in this Diafter of Offer

and place it before the Audit Committee. Such disclosures shalhtle only until such time that all the proceeds of
the Issue have been utilized in full. The statement will be certified by the Statwtditprsof our Company.

No part d the Issue Proceeds will be paid by our Company as consideration to Our Promoters, Our Directors, Key
ManagemenPersonnebr companiegpromoted bythe Promotersexceptasmaybe required irthe usualcourseof
business.

APPRAISAL BY APPRAISING AGENCY

Thefundrequiremenanddeploymentrebasedninternalmanagemergstimatesandhavenotbeerappraisedy any
bankor financialnstitution.

SHORTFALL OF FUNDS

Any shortfallin meetingthefund requirementsvill be metby way of internalaccrualsandor unsecured.oans.
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INTERIM USEOF FUNDS

Pending utilization for the purposes described above, our Company intends to invest the funds in a fixed/term deposit
with scheduledcommercialbanksincluded in the secondscheduleof ReserveBank of India Act, 1934. Our
managementn accordancevith the policieestablishedy our Boardof Directorsfromtime to time, will deploythe
NetProceedskurther,our Boardof Directorsherebyundertakéhat full recovery of the said interim investments shall

be madewithout any sort of delay as and when need arises for utilizatiprooésdor the object®f the issue.

BRIDGE FINANCING FACILITIES

Our Companyhasnot raisedanybridgeloansfrom anybankor financial institutionason the dateof this Draft Red
HerringProspectusyhich are proposed to be repaid from the Net Proceeds. However, depending on business exigencies,
our Company may consider raisihgdgefinancingfor the Net Proceedsr Objectof the Issue.

VARIATION IN OBJECTS

In accordance witlapplicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and applicable rules, except in circumstances
of busines&xigenciespur Companyshallnotvarythe Objectsof thelssuewithout our Companybeingauthorizedo

do sobythe Shareholderbyway o a speciakesolution through Postalaiot/EOGM. In addition, the notice issued

to the Shareholders in relation to the passing of suphe c i a | resolution (the O6Post al
prescribed details as required under the Companies Act ancapeliules. The Postal Ballot Notice shall
simultaneously be published in the newspapers, one in English and one in Hindi, the vetaagukgeof the
jurisdictionwhere theRegisteredffice is situated.

INTEREST OF PROMOTERS, PROMOTERS GROUP AND DIRECTORS, AS APPLICABLE TO THE
OBJECTSOF THE ISSUE

ThePromotersPromoterssroupandDirectorsarenotinterestedn anyobjectsof thelssue.

THIS PAGEHAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY KEPT BLANK
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STATEMENT OF TAX BENEFITS
To,

TheBoardof Directors,

IGC Industries Limited (Formerly Known as IGC Foils Limited)
Imax Lohia Square, Office No. 4B,

4th Floor, Premises No. 23,

GangadharBabu Lane,

Kolkata- 700012, West Bengal.

Sub: Statement of possible special tax benefits available K6C Industries Limited (Formerly Known as IGC
Foils Limited)
and its shareholders under theapplicable direct and indirect taxation lawsinIndia ( it he St at ement 0)

Re: Proposed rights issue of equity sharl@sindastriesf ace v al
Limited (thefi Co mp a n ysuchoafnfder i ng, t he f#fl ssueod)
DearSirs,

We hereby report that the enclosed annexure prepared by the managetr@himdustries Limited (Formerly

Known as IGC Foils Limited), states the special tax benefits available to the Company and the shareholders of the
Company under thehcometax Act, 1961, The Central Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017, The Integrated Goods
and Services Tax Act, 2017, The State Goods and Services Tax Act as passed by respective State Governments from
where the Company operates and applicable to the Company, Customs Act, 1962 and Foreign Trade Rolicy 2015
2020, as amended by the Finance Act&02., applicable for the Financial Year 2623 relevant to thassessment

year 202526, presentlyn force in India. Several of these benefits are dependent on the Company or its shareholders
fulfilling the conditions prescribed undtre relevant pragions of the Act. Hence, the ability of the Company or its
shareholders to derive the tax benefits is dependent fipfilling such conditions which, based on business
imperatives which the Company may face in the future, the Company may ootwpo® tofulfil.

This statement of possible special tax benefits is required as per Schedule VI (Part A) (9)(L) of the Securities and
Exchange Board dhdia(lssueof CapitalandDisclosureRequirementsiRegulations2018asamended 6 S EEBR

Re gul a Whilethededmé.s p ¢ aixalbenefi tsé has not been defined und
assumed that with respect to special tax benefits availableGompanyjts shareholderandits subsidiaryandthe

samewould includethosebenefitsasenumeratedn the statementThe benefitgliscussed in the enclosed statement

cover the possible special tax benefits available to the Company, its Shareholders and do amy geveral tax

benefits available to them. Any benefits under the TaxatiomsLather than those specified in the statement are
considered to be general tax benefits and therefore not covered within the ambit of this statement. Further, any benefits
available undeany other laws within or outside India, except for those spedificantioned in the statement, have

not been examined and coveltgthis statement.

Thebenefitsdiscussedn theenclosedAnnexurecoveronly specialtax benefitsavailableto the Companyanddo not
coveranygeneralaxbenefitsavailableto the CompanyFurther thepreparatioof enclosedtatemenandthecontents
statedthereinis theresponsibilitypf the Company'snanagemeniVe areinformedthatthis Statemenis only intended

to providegeneralnformationto theinvestorsands neitherdesigned nor intended to be a substitute for professional
tax advice. In view of the individual nature of the tax consequemthe changing tax laws, each investor is advised
to consult his or her own tax consultant with respect to the specifimpicationsarisingout of their participation

in the proposed initiapublic offering of Equity shareg"the Issue"by the Company.

Wedonotexpressanyopinionor provideanyassurancasto whether:

1. TheCompanyor its shareholdersiill continueto obtainthesebenefitsin future;or

2. Theconditionsprescribedor availingthebenefitshavebeen/wouldbemet

3. Therevenueauthoritiescourtswill concurwith theviewsexpressetherein.

48



The contents of the enclosed statement are based on infornexfiemations and representations obtained from the
Company and othebasisof our understanding dhe businesactivitiesandoperationf the Company.

No assurance is given that the revenue authorities/Courts will concur with the view experssedOur views are
based on existingrovisionsof law andits implementationwhich aresubjectto changefrom time to time. We do not
assumeanyresponsibilityto updatethe views consequento suchchanges.

Our views are based on facts aassumptions indicated to us and the existing provisions of tax law and its
interpretations, which areubjectto changeor modificationfrom time to time by subsequeniegislative,regulatory,
administrativepr judicial decisionsAny suckchangeswhich couldalsobe retrospective, could have effiectonthe
validity of our viewsstatedherein.

We assume no obligation to update this statement on any events subsequent to its issue, which may have a material
effect on theliscussions herein. This reportinding enclosed annexure are intended solely for your information and

for the inclusion in the DraRrospectudProspectusr anyotherissuerelatedmaterialin connectiorwith theproposed

initial public offer of the Companyandis notto be usedteferredto or distributedfor anyother purposevithout our

prior writtenconsent.

ADV & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN.128045W

SdF-

Prakash Mandhaniya Partner
Membership No.: 421679
Place: Mumbai

Dated: 229 August, 2024
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ANNEXURE TO THE STATEMENT fOF TAX BENEFITS

The information provided below sets out the possible special tax benefits available to the Company and the Equity
Shareholder sundéineIncometax Act, 1961, The Central Goods aérvices Tax Act, 2017, The Integrated Goods

and Services Tax Act, 2017, The State Goods and Services Tax Act as passed by respective State Governments from
where the Company operates and applicable to the Company, Customs Act, 1962 and Foreign Tya2@lBolic

2020, as amended by the Finance Act, 2024, i.e., applicable for the Financial Ye@b2eVant to the assessment

year 202526, presentlyn forcein India. It is notexhaustiveor comprehensivandis notintendedo beasubstitutefor
professionahdvice Investorsareadvisedo consult their own tax consultant with respect to the tax implications of an
investment in the Equity Shares particularly in view ofdkgthatcertainrecentlyenacted legislation maythave
adirectlegalprecedenor mayhaveadifferentinterpretatioronthe benefitswhich aninvestor caravail.

YOU SHOULD CONSULTYOUR OWN TAX ADVISORSCONCERNINGTHE INDIAN TAX IMPLICATIONS
AND CONSEQUENCESOF PURCHASING,OWNING AND DISPOSINGOF EQUITY SHARESIN YOUR
PARTICULAR SITUATION.

A. SPECIALTAX BENEFITSTO THE COMPANY: NIL
B. SPECIALTAX BENEFITSTO THE SHAREHOLDER:NIL
Note:

1. All theabovebenefitsareasperthe currenttaxlawsandwill be availableonly to the sole/ first nameholder
wherethesharesareheldoy joint holders.

2. The above statement covers only certain relevant direct tax law benefits and does not cover any indirect tax
law benefits or benefitnder anytherlaw.

3. No assursnce is given that the revenue authorities/courts will concur witlvighes expressed herein. Our
views are based on tlegisting provisions of law and its interpretation, which are subject to changes from time
to time. We do not assume responsibilityufdate the views consequent to such changes. We do not assume
responsibity to update the views consequent to such changeshalinotbeliableto anyclaims liabilities or
expenseselatingto thisassignmenéxceptto the extentof feesrelatingto this assignmengsfinally judicially
determinedo haveresultedprimarily from badfaith or intentionalmisconductWe will not be liable to any
othempersonn respecbf this statement.

ADV & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN.128045W

SdF-

Prakash Mandhaniya Partner
Membership No.: 421679
Place: Mumbai

Dated: 229 August, 2024

50



SECTION IV: ABOUT OUR COMPANY INDUSTRY OVERVIEW
Indian EconomyReviewand Outlook

Strong economic growth in the first quarter of FY23 helped India overcome the UK to become laegifiteconomy

after it recovered from the COVHD9 pandemic shock. Nominal GDP or GDP at Current Prices in the yea?22023
estimated at Rs. 295.36 lakh crores (US$ 3.54 trillion), against the First Revised Estimates (FRE) of GDP for the year
202223 of Rs. $9.50 lakh crores (US$ 3.23 trillion). The growth in nominal GDP during 20213 estimated at 9.6%

as compared to 14.2% in 20223 . Strong domestic demand for consumption
continued emphasis on capital expendituie seen as among the key driver of the GDP in the second half of FY24.
During the period Aprid une 2025, I ndi aébs exports stood at US$ 109. 1

Petroleum Products (18.33%) and electronic goods (7.73%) being thedepekported commodity. Rising employment
and increasing private consumption, supported by rising consumer sentiment, will support GDP growth in the coming
months.

Future capital spending of the government in the economy is expected to be supporteddsifak as tax buoyancy,

the streamlined tax system with low rates, a thorough assessment and rationalisation of the tariff structure, and the
digitization of tax filing. In the medium run, increased capital spending on infrastructure antwikkeg projects

is set to increase growth multipliers. The contaaded services sector has demonstrated promise to boost growth by
unleashing the pentp demand. The sector's success is being captured by a number of HFI-rgdjgancy
Indicators) that are pfarming well, indicating the beginnings of a comeback.

India has emerged as the fastgsiwing major economy in the world and is expected to be one of the top three
economic powers in the world over the next1Byears, backed by its robust democracystrehg partnerships.

India’'s appeal as a destination for investments has grown stronger and more sustainable because of the current period
of global unpredictability and volatility, and the record amounts of money raised byfbedised funds in 2022 are
evidence of investor faith in the "Invest in India" narrative.

MARKET SIZE

Real GDP or GDP at Constant (2012) Prices in the year 20281 is estimated at Rs. 173.82 lakh crores (US$ 2.08
trillion), against the First Revised Estimates (FRE) of GDP for the year-2B82#2 Rs. 160.71 lakh crores (US$ 1.92

trillion). The growth inreal GDP during 20224 is estimated at 8.2% as compared to 7.0% in-2322 here are 113

unicorn startups in India, with a combined valuation of over US$ 350 billion. As many as 14 tech startups are expected
to list in 2024 Fintech sector poised to getterthe largest number of future unicorns in India. With India presently has

the thirdlargest unicorn base in the world. The government is also focusing on renewable sources by achieving 40% of
its energy from noifiossil sources by 2030. India is committi® achieving the country's ambition of Net Zero Emissions

by 2070 through afipr onged strategy, 6Panchamritod. Mor eover, I n
attractive index

According to the McKinsey Global Institute, India needs to boost its rate of employment growth and create 90 million
nonfarm jobs between 2023 to 2030 in order to increase productivity and economic growth. €Ehlogtment rate

needs to grow by 1.5% per annum from 2023 to 2030 to achiBve 8 % GDP gr owt h bet ween s ame
current account deficit (CAD) narrowed to 0.7% of GDP in FY24. The CAD stood at US$ 23.2 hillion for th24023
compared tdJS$ 67.0 billion or 2.0% of GDP in the preceding year. This was largely due to decrease in merchandise
trade deficit.

Exports fared remarkably well during the pandemic and aided recovery when all other growth engines were losing steam
in terms of their catnibution to GDP. Going forward, the contribution of merchandise exports may waver as several of

I ndi abs trade partners witness an economic sl owdown. ;
Affairs, Food and Public Distribution and Texsl#ir. Piyush Goyal, Indian exports are expected to reach US$ 1 trillion

by 2030.
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RECENT DEVELOPMENTS

India is primarily a domestic demawdiven economy, with consumption and investments contributing to 70% of the
economic activity. With an improvemeint the economic scenario and the Indian economy recovering from the-Tvid
pandemic shock, several investments and developments have been made across various sectors of the economy. According
to World Bank, India must continue to prioritise loweringguality while also putting growtbriented policies into place

to boost the economy. In view of this, there have been some developments that have taken place in the recent past. Some of
them are mentioned below.

i

According to HSBC Flash India PMI report,diness activity surged in April to its highest level in about 14 years as

well as sustained robust demand. The composite index reached 62.2, indicating continuous expansion since August
2021, alongside positive job growth and decreased input inflatiamiai) India's status as the fastgsbwing major

economy.

As of July 5, 2024, Indiabds foreign exchange reserves
In May 2024, India saw a total of US$ 6.9 billion in-FE investments.

Merchandise exports in June 2024 stoodda$ 35.20 billion, with total merchandise exports of US$ 109.96 billion
during the period of April 2024 to June 2024.

India was also nhamed as the 48th most innovative country among the top 50 countries, securing 40th position out of 132
economies in the I@bal Innovation Index 2023. India rose from 81st position in 2015 to 40th position in 2023. India
ranks 3rd position in the global number of scientific publications.

In June 2024, the gross Goods and Services Tax (GST) stood at highest monthly relectimn @il Rs. 1.74 lakh
crore (US$ 20.83 hillion) vs Rs. 1.73 lakh crore (US$ 20.71 billion)

Between April 2000March 2024, cumulative FDI equity inflows to India stood at US$ 97 billion.

In May 2024, the overall IIP (Index of Industrial Production) stab@54.2. The Indices of Industrial Production for
the mining, manufacturing and electricity sectors stood at 136.5, 149.7 and 229.3, respectively, in May 2024.

According to data released by the Ministry of Statistics & Programme Implementation (MoS@1), a 6 s Cons un
Price Index (CPI) based retail inflation reached 5.08% (Provisional) for June 2024.

Foreign Institutional Investors (Fll) inflows between Aghilly (202324) were close to Rs. 80,500 crore (US$ 9.67
billion), while Domestic Institutionalnvestors (DII) sold Rs. 4,500 crore (US$ 540.56 million) in the same period. As
per depository data, Foreign Portfolio Investors (FPIs) invested (US$ 13.89 billion) in India during-Jampuar§5th

July) 2024.

The wheat procurement during Rabi Markgt®eason (RMS) 20225 (till May) was estimated to be 266 lakh metric
tonnes (LMT) and the rice procured in Kharif Marketing Season (KMS)-2624as 400 LMT.

GOVERNMENT INITIATIVES

Over the years, the Indian government has introduced many initiative®rngtien the nation's economy. The Indian
government has been effective in developing policies and programmes that are not only beneficial for citizens to improve
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their financial stability but also for the overall growth of the economy. Over recent detratla’s rapid economic growth

has led to a substantial increase in its demand for exports. Besides this, a number of the government's flagship programmes,
including Make in India, Statdp India, Digital India, the Smart City Mission, and the Atal Miasior Rejuvenation and

Urban Transformation, is aimed at creating immense opportunities in India. In this regard, some of the initiatives taken by
the government to improve the economic condition of the country are mentioned below:

In February 2024, thEinance Ministry announced the total expenditure in Interim 2®dstimated at Rs. 47,65,768
crore (US$ 571.64 billion) of which total capital expenditure is Rs. 11,11,111 crore (US$ 133.27 billion).

On January 22, 2024, Prime Minister Mr. Narendra Maodiounced the 'Pradhan Mantri Suryodaya Yojana'. Under
this scheme, 1 crore households will receive rooftop solar installations.

On September 17, 2023, Prime Minister Mr. Narendra Modi launched the Central Sector Scheme PM
VISHWAKARMA in New Delhi. The newscheme aims to provide recognition and comprehensive support to traditional
artisans & craftsmen who work with their hands and basic tools. This initiative is designed to enhance the quality, scale,
and reach of their products, as well as to integrata thith MSME value chains.

On August 6, 2023, Amrit Bharat Station Scheme was launched to transform and revitalize 1309 railway stations across
the nation. This scheme envisages development of stations on a continuous basis witbrenleisjpon.

On June?2 8 , 2023, the Ministry of Environment, Forest s, a
Trading Scheme, 20236.

From April 1, 2023, Foreign Trade Policy 2023 was unveiled to create an enabling ecosystem to support the philosophy
of O0AaharanBhaédratdé and 6Local goes Global 6.

To enhance I ndiads manufacturing capabilities by incr
of India has introduced the Production Linked Incentive Scheme (PLI) for Pharmaceuticals.

Prime Ministe 6 s Devel op me nt -EdstrRiedion @PkiewWNE) waannoeed in the Union Budget
202223 with a financial outlay of Rs. 1,500 crore (US$ 182.35 million).

Prime Minister Mr Narendra Modi has inaugurated a new food security scheme for prdvégdingod grains to
Antyodaya Ann Yojna (AAY) & Primary Household (PHH) beneficiaries, called Pradhan Mantri Garib Kalyan Ann
Yojana (PMGKAY) from January 1, 2023.

The Amrit Bharat Station scheme for Indian Railways envisages the development of stetia@mtinuous basis with
a longterm vision, formulated on December 29, 2022, by the Ministry of Railways.

On October 7, 2022, the Department for Promotion of Industry, and Internal Trade (DPIIT) launched Credit Guarantee
Scheme for Stattips (CGSS) aimip to provide credit guarantees up to a specified limit by-atest facilitated by
Scheduled Commercial Banks, NBanking Financial Companies and Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI)
registered Alternative Investment Funds (AIFs).

Telecom Techology Development Fund (TTDF) Scheme was launched in October 2022 by the Universal Service
Obligation Fund (USOF), a body under the Department of Telecommunications. The objective is to fund R&D in rural
specific communication technology applications atfsynergies among academia, stgus, research institutes, and

the industry to build and develop the telecom ecosystem.

Home & Cooperation Minister Mr. Amit Shah laid the foundation stone and performed Bhoomi Pujan of Tanot Mandir
Complex Project undéBorder Tourism Development Programme in Jaisalmer in September 2022.

In August 2022, Mr. Narendra Singh Tomar, Minister of Agriculture and Farmers Welfare inaugurated four new
facilities at the Central Arid Zone Research Institute (CAZRI), which has leeelening excellent services for more
than 60 years under the Indian Council of Agricultural Research (ICAR).

In August 2022, a Special Food Processing Fund of Rs. 2,000 crore (US$ 242.72 million) was set up with National Bank
for Agriculture and Rural Devepment (NABARD) to provide affordable credit for investments in setting up Mega
Food Parks (MFP) as well as processing units in the MFPs.

In July 2022, Deendayal Port Authority (DPA) announced plans to develop two Mega Cargo Handling Terminals on a
Build-OperateTransfer (BOT) basis under Pubktivate Partnership (PPP) Mode at an estimated cost of Rs. 5,963
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crore (US$ 747.64 million).

In July 2022, the Union Cabinet chaired by Prime Minister Mr. Narendra Modi, approved the signing of the
Memorandum of Uderstanding (MoU) between India & Maldives. This MoU will provide a platform to tap the benefits
of information technology for court digitization and can be a potential growth area for IT companies amgsstart

both countries.

India and Namibia entered Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) on wildlife conservation and sustainable
biodiversity utilization on July 20, 2022, for establishing the cheetah into the historical range in India.

In July 2022, the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) approved internatiatd settlements in Indian rupees (Rs.) to promote
the growth of global trade with emphasis on exports from India and to support the increasing interest of the global
trading community.

The Agnipath Scheme aims to develop a young and skilled armed fakedday an advanced warfare technology
scheme by providing youth with an opportunity to serve Indian Army foiyead period. It is introduced by the
Government of India on June 14, 2022.

In June 2022, Prime Minister Mr. Narendra Modi inaugurated andHaidoundation stone of development projects
worth Rs. 21,000 crore (US$ 2.63 billion) at Gujarat Gaurav Abhiyan at Vadodara.

Rajnath Singh, Minister of Defence, launched 75 newly developed Artificial Intelligence (Al) products/technologies
duringthe fiste ver 6 Al in Defenced (Al Def) symposium and exhi
Delhi on July 11, 2022.

In June 2022, Prime Minister Mr. Narendra Modi laid the foundation stone of 1,406 projects worth more than Rs. 80,000
crore (US$10.01 billion) at the grounbireaking ceremony of the UP Investors Summit in Lucknow. The Projects
encompass diverse sectors like Agriculture and Allied industries, IT and Electronics, MSME, Manufacturing,
Renewable Energy, Pharma, Tourism, Defence & Amros, and Handloom & Textiles.

The Indian Institute of Spices Research (IISR) under the Indian Council for Agricultural Research (ICAR) inked a
Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with Lysterra LLC, a Rubsised company for the commercialization of bio
capsule, an encapsulation technology for-fadilization on June 30, 2022.

As of April 2022, India signed 13 Free Trade Agreements (FTAS) with its trading partners including major trade
agreements like the IndldAE Comprehensive Partnership Agreement (CERBAd the IndigAustralia Economic
Cooperation and Trade Agreement (IndAus ECTA).

'"Mi ssion Shakti' was applicable with effect from April
security, and empowerment.

The Union Budget of 20223 was presented on February 1, 2022, by the Minister for Finance & Corporate Affairs, Ms.
Nirmala Sitharaman. The budget had four priorities PM GatiShakti, Inclusive Development, Productivity Enhancement
and Investment, and Financing of Investments. IrLthien Budget 20223, effective capital expenditure is expected

to increase by 27% at Rs. 10.68 trillion (US$ 142.93 billion) to boost the economy. This will be 4.1% of the total Gross
Domestic Production (GDP).

Strengthening of Pharmaceutical Indug®?l) was launched in March 2022 by the Ministry of Chemicals & Fertilisers

to provide credit linked capital and interest subsidy for Technology Upgradation of MSME units in pharmaceutical
sector, as well as support of up to Rs. 20 crore (US$ 2.4 midext) for common facilities including Research centre,
testing labs and ETPs (Effluent Treatment Plant) in Pharma Clusters, to enhance the role of MSMEs.

Under PM GatiShakti Master Plan, the National Highway Network will develop 25,000 km of new highwagskne
which will be worth Rs. 20,000 crore (US$ 2.67 billion). In 222 Increased government expenditure is expected to
attract private investments, with a productlmked incentive scheme providing excellent opportunities. Consistently
proactive, gaded, and measured policy support is anticipated to boost the Indian economy.

In February 2022, The Ministry of Social Justice & Empowerment launched the Scheme for Economic Empowerment
of Denotified/Nomadic/SemiNomadic tribal communities (DNTs) (SEErtwide basic facilities like good quality
coaching, and health insurance. livelihoods initiative at a community level and financial assistance for the construction
of houses.
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In February 2022, Minister for Finance and Corporate Affairs Ms. Nirmala Sitlaaraaid that productivity linked
incentive (PLI) schemes would be extended to 14 sectors to achieve the mission of Aatmanirbhar Bharat and create 60
lakh jobs with an additional production capacity of Rs. 30 trillion (US$ 401.49 billion) in the neytfvs.

In the Union Budget of 20223, the government announced funding for the produditideed incentive (PLI) scheme
for domestic solar cells and module manufacturing of Rs. 24,000 crore (US$ 3.21 billion).

In the Union Budget of 20223, the governmearmannounced a productidimked incentive (PLI) scheme for Bulk Drugs
which was an investment of Rs. 2,500 crore (US$ 334.60 million).

In the Union Budget of 2022, Minister for Finance & Corporate Affairs Ms. Nirmala Sitharaman announced that a
scheme fodesignled manufacturing in 5G would be launched as part of the PLI scheme.

In September 2021, Union Cabinet approved major reforms in the telecom sector, which are expected to boost
employment, growth, competition, and consumer interests. Key reformsglénchtionalization of adjusted gross
revenue, rationalization of bank guarantees (BGs), and encouragement of spectrum sharing.

In the Union Budget of 20223, the government has allocated Rs. 44,720 crore (US$ 5.98 billion) to Bharat Sanchar
Nigam Limited(BSNL) for capital investments in the 4G spectrum.

Minister for Finance & Corporate Affairs Ms. Nirmala Sitharaman allocated Rs. 650 crore (US$ 86.69 million) for the
Deep Ocean mission that seeks to explore vast marine living adivimgrresources. Dgartment of Space (DoS) has

got Rs. 13,700 crore (US$ 1.83 billion) in 2622 for several key space missions like Gaganyaan, Chandrayaad

Aditya L-1 (sun).

In May 2021, the government approved the produdtited incentive (PLI) scheme for manufadng advanced
chemistry cell (ACC) batteries at an estimated outlay of Rs. 18,100 crore (US$ 2.44 billion); this move is expected to
attract domestic and foreign investments worth Rs. 45,000 crore (US$ 6.07 billion).

Minister for Finance & Corporate Afiis Ms. Nirmala Sitharaman announced in the Union Budget of-2082Bat the
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) would issue Digital Rupee using blockchain and other technologies.

In the Union Budget of 20223, Railway got an investment of Rs. 2.38 trillion (U&$88 hillion) and over 400 new
high-speed trains were announced. The concept of "One Station, One Product" was also introduced.

To boost competitiveness, Budget 2622has announced reforming theyigarold Special Economic Zone (SEZ) act.

In June 2021the RBI (Reserve Bank of India) announced that the investment limit for FPI (foreign portfolio investors)
in the State Development Loans (SDLs) and government securitiesc@p would persist unaffected at 2% and 6%,
respectively, in FY22.

In November 200, the Government of India announced Rs. 2.65 trillion (US$ 36 billion) stimulus package to generate
job opportunities and provide liquidity support to various sectors such as tourism, aviation, construction, and housing.
Also, India's cabinet approvedetiproductiodinked incentives (PLI) scheme to provide ~Rs. 2 trillion (US$ 27 billion)

over five years to create jobs and boost production in the country.

Numerous foreign companies are setting up their facilities in India on account of various Govénitiagnes like

Make in India and Digital India. Prime Minister of India Mr. Narendra Modi launched the Make in India initiative with

an aim to boost the country's manufacturing sector and increase the purchasing power of the average Indian consumer,
which would further drive demand and spur development, thus benefiting investors. The Government of India, under its
Make in India initiative, is trying to boost the contribution made by the manufacturing sector with an aim to take it to
25% of the GDP fronte current 17%. Besides, the government has also come up with the Digital India initiative, which
focuses on three core components: the creation of digital infrastructure, delivering services digitally, and increasing
digital literacy.

On January 29, 202the National Asset Reconstruction Company Ltd (NARCL) will acquire bad loans worth up to Rs.
50,000 crore (US$ 6.69 billion) about 15 accounts by March 31, 2022. India Debt Resolution Co. Ltd (IDRCL) will
control the resolution process. This will cleanlumdi aés f i nanci al system, hel p f
economy.

National Bank for Financing Infrastructure and Development (NaBFID) is a bank that will provideammse
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infrastructure financing and is expected to support projects frofirshguarter of FY23; it is expected to raise Rs. 4
trillion (US$ 53.58 billion) in the next three years.

By November 1, 2021, India, and the United Kingdom hope to begin negotiations on a free trade agreement. The
proposed FTA between these two coustitelikely to unlock business opportunities and generate jobs. Both sides have
renewed their commitment to boost trade in a manner that benefits all.

In August 2021, Prime Minister Mr. Narendra Modi announced an initiative to start a national missachtthe US$
400 billion merchandise export target by FY22.

In August 2021, Prime Minister Mr. Narendra Modi launched a digital payment solutRWUPE a contactless and
cashless instrument for digital payments.

In April 2021, Dr. Ahmed Abdul Rahman AlBaa, Ambassador of the UAE to India and Founding Patron of IFIICC,
stated that trilateral trade between India, the UAE and Israel is expected to reach US$ 110 billion by 2030.

India is expected to attract investment of around US$ 100 billion in develtpngl and gas infrastructure during
201923.

The Government of India is expected to increase public health spending to 2.5% of the GDP by 2025.
ROAD AHEAD

In the second quarter of FY24, the growth momentum of the first quarter was sustaineighgretjuency indicators

(HFIs) performed well in July and August of 2023. India's comparatively strong position in the external sector reflects the
country's positive outlook for economic growth and rising employment rates. India ranked 5th in fosgigimdestment

inflows among the developed and developing nations listed for the first quarter of 2022.

India's economic story during the first half of the current financial year highlighted the unwavering support the government
gave to its capital expeitdre, which, in 202324, stood 37.4% higher than the same period last year. In the budget-of 2023
24, capital expenditure took lead by steeply increasing the capital expenditure outlay by 37.4 % in-BE t80RS.10

lakh crore (US$ 120.12 billion) oveRs. 7.28 lakh crore (US$ 87.45 billion) in RE 2622 The ratio of revenue
expenditure to capital outlay increased by 1.2% in the current year, signalling a clear change in favour-qfiddigher
spending. Stronger revenue generation because of impravedmpliance, increased profitability of the company, and
increasing economic activity also contributed to rising capital spending levels. In February 2024, the Finance Ministry
announced the total expenditure in Interim 2@84estimated at Rs. 47,66& crore (US$ 571.64 billion) of which total
capital expenditure is Rs. 11,11,111 crore (US$ 133.27 billion).

Since Indiabés resilient growth despite -highestragelwidhbagdar pan d ¢
overyear (YoY) growthof 8.39% in merchandise exports and a 29.82% growth in service exports till April 2023. With a
reduction in port congestion, supply networks are being restored. ThR€ @Ration reduction from June 2022 already

reflects the impact. In September 2023(fsional), CPIC inflation was 5.02%, down from 7.01% in June 2022. With a
proactive set of administrative actions by the government, flexible monetary policy, and a softening of global commodity
prices and suppighain bottlenecks, inflationary pressuiesndia look to be on the decline overall.

(Source: https://www.ibef.org/economy/india@conomyoverview)

SPICESINDUSTRY REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

Indiaisthew o r lladgéstspiceproducerlt is alsothelargestconsumerandexporterof spicesThe productionof
differentspiceshaseen growing rapidly over the last few years. Production in-2224tood at 10.87 million
tonnes. During 20223, the export o$picesfrom India stoodat US$3.73billion from US$3.46billion in 2021
22.

During 2021-22, thesinglelargestspiceexportedirom India waschilli followed by spiceoils andoleoresinsmint
productscuminand turmeric.

Indiaproducesabout75 of the 109 varietieswhich arelisted by the InternationalOrganizatiorfor Standardization
(ISO). Themosproduced and exported spices are pepper, cardamom, chilli, ginger, turmeric, coriander, cumin,
celery, fennel, fenugreek, garliztmeg& mace curry powder,spiceoils andoleoresinsOut ofthesespiceschilli,
cumin,turmeric, ginger andoriander makewgbout76% of the total production.
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Thelargestspicesproducingstatesn IndiaareMadhyaPradeshRajasthanGujarat, AndhraPradeshT elangana,
Karnatakaylaharashtra, Assam, Orissa, UtBaadesh, Wedtengal, TamiNaduandKerala.

India spice production (million tonnes)
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Source: DGCI & S, Spices Board of India, *TAdvance Estimate

EXPORTS TREND

Indiais thelargestexporterof spiceandspiceitems.During 202223, the countryexportedspicesvorth US$ 3.73billion.

In July 2023,the exportsof spicesfrom India increasedo US$ 298.77million from US$ 293.84million in June2023.
Indiaexported
1.53million tonneof spicesFrom201718t0 202122, thetotal exportedquantityfrom Indiagrewata CAGRof 10.47%.

ForFY23,totalvolumesof chilli, cumin,turmeric,andgingerexportswere0.51,0.18,0.17and0.05million tonnes.

During 202021, the export of chilli, ginger, cardamom (small & large), coriander, turmeric, celery, cumin, fennel,
fenugreek, otheseeds such as ajwain seed, mustardseed, nutmeg & mace; other spices such as asafoetida,
tamarind, etc., expanded both in valurel volume as compared to 2640. Even the export of valeedded products
such as spice oils & oleoresins grew both in termgabfe and volume; the export ofirry powder/paste increased

in terms of value and the export of mint products increased in termadushe.IndiaexportedJS$4.1 billion worth

of spicesn FY22.FromthisshareUS$1.8billion constituteccorespices driedchilli, cumin,andturmeric, followed

by overUS$1.2 billionin exportsof mint products spice oilsandoleoresins.

India spice exports trend (Million USS$)
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Source: DGCI&S, RBI

MAJOR EXPORT DESTINATIONS

Indiaexportedspicesandspiceproductgo 180destinations worldwidasof 2022.Thetop destinationemongthem
wereChina,theUSA, Bangladesh, Thailand, the UAE, Sri Lanka, Malaysia, the UK, Indonesia, and Germany. These
nine destinations comprisedorethan70% of the total exporearningsn 202021.
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Spices worth 6,39,164.48akh (US$767.74million) were exportedto Chinain 202223. USA importedspices

worth 4,46,739.8fakh (US$ 536.61 million) in 2022 3 . Bangl adesh i mported spices
(US$ 249.44 million) from the countyring the aboveperiod. UAEimportedspicesworth 1, 941akh98. 80
(US$ 233.74 million) fronindia in202223.

Chilli wasthe mostexportedspicefrom India. During2022-23, ChinaimportedUS$409.44million in chilli. During
the sameeriodthe USA importedUS$96.38million in chilli.

Themainproductamportedby the USA arecelery,cumin,currypowder fennel,fenugreekgarlic, chilli, and
mint products.

GOVERNMENT INITIATIVES

Export Developmentand Promotion of Spices

Thisinitiative by the SpicesBoardof Indiaaimsto supporttheexporterto adopthigh-techprocessingechnologies
andupgradeheexisting level of technology for the development of industry and to meet the changing food safety
standards of the importingountries. The initiative provides benefits of infrastructure development, promoting
Indian spice brands abroad, settinginfpastructurdan the majorspicegrowingcentrespromotingorganicspices
andspecialprogrammedor north-easterrentrepreneurs.

Settingup and maintenanceof infrastructure for commonprocessing(SpicesParks)

Spices Board has launched eight especific Spices Parks in key production/market centres intending to facilitate
the farmers to getn improved price realization and wider reach for their produce. The purpose of the park is to have
an integrated operam for cultivation, postharvesting, processing, vakagldition, packaging and storage of spices

and spice products. The common procesfniities for cleaninggrading packing,andsteansterilizationwill help
thefarmersto enhancehequality of the produce resultinginbetter price realization.

SpiceComplex Sikkim

The SpicesBoardsubmitteda projectproposalto thes t a ¢ekkfdr settingup a SpiceComplexin Sikkim seeking
financialassistander facilitatinganddemonstratingommonprocessingndvalueadditionin spicego helpfarmers
andotherstakeholderi the state.

GOVERNING BODY

SpicesBoard of India

The Spices Board of India is set up for the development and global promotion of Indian spices. It acts as a link
betweerindianexporters and importers abroad. The main activities of the board involve promotion, maintenance
and monitoring of qualitydevelopment of better production methods, guidance, financial and material support to
growers, infrastructure facilitation amedsearchThisboardhasbeenspearheadingctivitiesfor the excellenceof
Indianspicesjnvolving everysegmenbf theindustry.
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OUR BUSINESS

Some of the information in this section, including information with respect to our planstrateies, contain
forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Before deciding to invest in the Equity Shares,
Shareholders should read this entideaft Letter of Offer. An investment in the Equity Shares involves a high degree

of risk. For a discussion of certain risks in connectigth investmentn the Equity Sharesyoushouldreadfi Ri s k

F a c t onpageR4, for a discussiorof therisksanduncertaintieselatedo thosestatementsaswellasfi Fi nanc i al
St at e an@dmMa a g eDiseusdiomrsdAnalysisof Financial ConditionandResultefOp e r a tompages 0

98 and 99, respectivelyfor a discussiorof certainfactorsthat mayaffectour businessfinancial condition oresults

of operations. Our actual results mdiffer materially from those expressed in or implied by these forhzaking
statementsUnlessotherwisestated, thefinancial information usedn this section isderived from ourFinancial
Statements.

OVERVIEW

Our Company was originally incorporatedMaxwell Traders & Exporters Limited under the Companies Act, 1956
with the Registrar of Companies, Kolkata and consequently a certificate of incorporation dated August 26, 1980.

Later, the name of the company wasLiomhareged tfor dich GCMaxowd |
fresh certificate of incorporation conseqgquent upon <c¢h
Subsequently the name of the Company was changed from
Limiteddreisth certificate of incorporation consequent u

The Company may carry on business as of traders/exporters, agents, representatives, dealers, producers, stockers,
importers or distributors, of various commodities.

It can carry purchase, acquire, hold and dispose of or otherwise deal and invest in activities in any Shares, Debenture
and other Securities in or of any company or companies and real estate or properties out of owned or borrowed funds.

The Company may sb carry on the business of manufacturers, producers, processors, Importers, Exporters, Buyers,
Sellers of and dealers in all kinds of fibers, fabrics and textile and hosiery goods, prepared or manufactured from
cotton etc.

The Company can also deal inkdthds of metals, plastics, melamine, aluminum, steel, aluminum foil and aluminum
raw materials and products.

IGC Industries Limited, headquartered in Kolkata, specializes in the trading of agro commodities with a strong focus
on the Kolkata market. Led bgn experienced management team, the company leverages extensive industry
connections to facilitate transactions and maintain a significant presence in bulk trading. The company primarily
operates offline, dealing with prominent merchants in the region.

IGC Industries specializes in loose packaging and offers a range of core products, including organic fennel seed,
organic jeera (cumin), cotton, and turmeric. The compses
relationships and efficiencyithin the market. Compliance with organic certification standards ensures that the
company adheres to quality and ethical practices.

IGC Industries Limited's market approach centers on reliability, transparency, and leveraging the promoters' industry
experence to sustain a leading position in the agro commodities trading sector. The company's operations are geared
towards practicality, responsiveness to market demands, and maintaining a stronghold in the competitive Kolkata
spices market.
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SWOT ANALYSI S

Strengths:

ExperiencedPromoterandManagement:

0 The company benefits from a leadership team
extensive experience in the agro commodities tra
sector.

0 The seasonednanagementan leveragetheir industry

knowledge to make informed decisions amavigate
challenge®ffectively.

Strategid_ocationin Mumbai:

Weaknesses:

MarketVolatility:

0 The agrocommodities market is often characterizad
price volatility dueto factorslike weatherconditions,
globaldemandandgeopoliticalevents.

0 High volatility poses a challenge for the company

termsof predictingandmanagingpricefluctuations.

Dependencen ExternalFactors:

0 The businesss heavily influenced byexternalfactors

0 Mumbai's status as a financial hub and proximity| such as climate conditions, government policies,
majorportsprovidesalogisticaladvantagéor importing internationakrade regulations.
and exportingagro commodities. 0 Dependence on these external variables may lea

uncertaintiesindrisksbeyondthecompany'sontrol.

0 Access to a well-developed infrastructure and | Threats:
transportation facilities enhances the company's
operational efficiency. GlobalEconomicConditions:

0 DiverseAgro CommoditiesPortfolio:

0 Economicdownturnsor recessionsanimpactconsumer

6 The company's involvement in trading a varietygfo purchasingpower and demandfor agrocommodities,
commodities diversifies its revenue streams a affectingthe company'sevenue.
mitigatesrisks associatedvith fluctuationsin specific 0 Fluctuations in exchange rates and international t
markets. tensiongnayalsoposerisks.

0 A broadportfolio allows the companyto capitalizeon 0 RegulatonChanges:
emergingopportunitiesn differentagriculturalsectors.

0 Changesn governmentpolicies relatedto agriculture,
MarketNetworksandRelationships: trade, or environmental regulations caignificantly
impactthe company'sperations.

0 With an experienced team, the company likely 0 Stayinginformed and adaptableto evolvingregulatory
established strong relationships with key playerghin landscapess crucialfor long-termsustainability.
agrocommoditiegndustry,includingfarmerssuppliers,
anddistributors. CompetitivePressure:

0 Robustnetworkscan provide the companywith better
negotiation power and acces¢s a wider range o 0  Intensecompetitionwithin theagrocommoditiegrading
commodities. sectormay leadto pricing pressuresndreduced profit

margins.
Opportunities: 0  Adaptingto changingmarketdynamicsanctontinuously

Diversificationinto Value-AddedProducts:

0 The company can explore opportunities to add vaiu
its agro commoditiesby investing in processingand
packaging facilities.

0 Diversifying into valueadded products can enhang
profit marginsandcreatea competitiveadvantage.

TechnologyAdoption:

0 Embracingtechnologicaladvancement agriculture,
logistics, and trading platformscanimprove efficiency
and reduceperationaktosts.

0 Implementing digital solutions for supply chain

managementand market analysis can provide a
competitiveedge.

GlobalMarketExpansion:

innovating can help the company stahead of
competitors.
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0 Leveraging the expertise of the management,the
company can explore opportunities to expand its
presencen internationaimarkets.

0 Identifying new markets andestablishing strategi

partnershipscan open up avenuesfor growth and

increased revenue.

OUR BUSINESSSTRATEGY

1. Exploiting Industry Connections:

Leveraging Established Relationships: Utilize the extensive industry connectionsof the experienced
promotersto strengtherelationshipswith key playersin the agro commodities marketincluding farmers,
suppliersandprominent merchania Kolkata

StrategicPartnershipsCollaborate withindustrystakeholderso createstrategicpartnershipshatenhancehe
company'ositiorin the market andorovideaccesgso awider range oEommodities.

. Focuson Offline B2B Trading in Kolkata Markets:

Localized PresenceMaintain a strong physical presencein Kolkata marketsto foster direct relationships
with localmerchants.This localized approachhelps in understandingmarket dynamics, ensuringtimely
transactionsand buildingtrust.

TailoredOfferings:Customizeproductofferingsbasenthe specificneedsandpreferencesf thelocal market.
Thispersonalizedpproackenhancesustomersatisfactiorandloyalty amongB2B clients.

Efficient Supply Chain Management:Streamlinethe supply chain by establishingefficient logistics and
distribution channelswithin Kolkata Timely deliveries and reliable servicesontribute to the company's
reputationin the market.

. Strengthening Operational Excellence:

Quality Assuranceimplementrigorous quality control measurego ensurethat the agro commoditiesmeet
industry standards.Thiscommitmentto quality enhancesthe company'scredibility and fosters long-term
relationshipswith buyers.

OptimizedIinventoryManagementtmplementefficientinventorymanagemerpracticego minimize holding
costs and respondjuickly to market demandsThis agility is crucial in a dynamic market like agro
commodities.

RiskManagementDeveloprobustrisk managemergtrategies$o navigatemarketfluctuations,ncludingpricing
risksandchangem commoditysupply. Regulamarketanalysisand proactive decisiommaking are essential
component®f risk management.

. Marketing Initiatives:

Word-of-Mouth Marketing:Leveragepositive relationships an@xperiencesvith existing client¢o generate
word-of-mouthreferralswithin the industry. This organic form of marketing cansignificantly contributeto
business growth.

Participationin Local Trade Events: Activelyparticipatein local trade events,exhibitions, and industry
conferencego showcasthe company'sproductsand servicesNetworking at sucheventscanlead to new
busines®pportunitiesand partnerships.

PromotionalMaterials:Developinformativeand visuallyappealingoromotionalmaterials, suclasbrochures
andbusinesgardsto leave a lastingnpressionwith potentialclientsandcollaborators.
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DETAILS OF THE MARKET

The agricultural commaodity trading market in India is a robust and multifaceted sector deeply rootedumthes
agrarianlandscape. India's diverse climate and fertile lacwi#tribute to a varied array of crops, including rice,
wheat, spices, and pulsesaking it a key player in the global agro trading arena. The market dynamics are intricately
linked to factors such as monsgoatternsgovernmenagricultural policies, anthternationademand.

Facilitated by both traditional marketplaces and emerging online platforms, agro commodity trading in India involves
a complexnhetwork connecting farmers, traders, and exporters. Traditional agricultural mandis (markets) coexist with
modern digital platformsfostering seamless transactions and trade across regions. These platforms have not only
enhanced market accessibility but gisovided reatime informationon pricesandmarket trends.

However thesectorfaces challengesotebly pricevolatility influencedby factors likeweatherconditions andjlobal
marketfluctuations.The Indian governmenplays a pivotal role throughpoliciesthat aim to stabilizepricesand
supportfarmers.

Despite challenges,innovationsin logistics and technologyare transformingthe landscape Agtech solutions,
warehousing@dvancements, and efficient supply chain practices contribute to the resilience of India's agro commodity
trading market. Integral tthe nation's economic fabric, this sectortommally adapts to evolving market dynamics,
ensuring the reliable provision of agricultyredduceto bothdomestic andnternationalmarkets.

PLACE OF BUSINESSOF THE COMPANY

We operateour businessrom thefollowing location:

S.No. | Description State Ownedhby Location Status Validity
1 Registere Kolkata | Sanhita 12 Government Plag NOCfor running |08/08/2024
dOffice Vanijya (East), 1st Floor Former| Registered Officel
Pvt. Ltd. | Hemanta Basu Saraf months

Kolkata-400069.
OUR PRODUCTS
Product Description
Commodities organic fennel seed, organic jeera (cumin), cotton, ar

turmeric, Chana, grain items etc.

COMPETITIVE LANDSCAPE

The competitive dynamics are influenced by factors such as pricing strategies, suppiyfchainties, technological
adoption, andhe ability to navigateregulatoryframeworks.As the market evolvegparticipants musadaptto
changingconsumeipreferencesglobatradedynamics,and advancemenis agtechto maintaina competitiveedge
in India'sagro commodityradinglandscape.

1. Traditional Mandis:

0 Localagriculturalmarketsor mandiscontinueto playacrucialrole, servingashubsfor farmersand
tradergo engagén physical transactions.

2. Exporters and Importers:

0 Established andmerging exporters and importers actively participate in the market, facilitating the
crossbordermovemenbf agrocommodities.
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3. Online Trading Platforms:
0 Digital platformsandmarketplacebavegainedprominencepffering a convenientandtransparent

avenuefor farmerstraders, and buyers to conduct transactions. Examples include platforms that

provide realtime pricing informatiorand facilitate online auctions.
4. GovernmentAgencies:
0 Governmenbodiesand agenciesontributesignificantly throughpolicies, subsidiesand market
interventionsaimedat stabilizingpricesandsupportingfarmers.

5. Warehousingand Logistics Providers:

0 Companies specializing in warehousing and logistics play a critical role in ensuring the efficient

storage antransportatiorof agrocommodities.

6. Financial Institutions:

0 Banks and financial institutions provide funding and financial services, facilitating smooth

transactions and offerimgsk managemenbolsto participantsn theagrocommoditymarket.

7. AgtechCompanies:

0 Technologydriven firms focusing on agriculture (Agtech) contribute with innovations such as farm

managemergystemssupplychainsolutions,anddata analyticsgnhancingoverall efficiency.

8. Traditional Traders and Brokers:

0 Traditional traderand brokers continue to be key intermediaries, utilizing their industry experience

and networks tfacilitatetransactiongndnegotiations.

PLANT AND MACHINERY

As of thedateof this Draft Letter of Offer, the Companydoesnot currentlypossesanyplantandmachinery asit
operatesolelyasatradingbusiness.

COLLABORATIONS
TheCompanyhassofar notenterednto anytechnicalor financialcollaboratioragreement.

INSTALLED CAPACITY AND CAPACITY UTILISATION
Sinceour Companyis notinvolvedin anymanufacturingactivities,installedcapacityandcapacityutilizationis not
applicableto us.

REVENUE BREAK -UP
Ourrevenuebreakup onfinancialstatementsvhichtheyearsendingMarch31, 2024 andunauditedimited review
periodJune30, 2024

is asfollows:
( "in Lakhs)
S.No. | Particular Period June 30,2024 Year Ending March 31,2024
1. IncomeFromOperations 0.00 0.00
2. Otherincome 0.00 0.00
Total 0.00 0.00

SUBSIDIARIES/ ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

TheCompanydoesnot haveanysubsidiarie®r associateompaniesason dateof this Draft Letter of Offer.

EXPORT AND EXPORT OBLIGATION
TheCompanydoesnothaveanyexportsalesor exportobligations,ason dateof this Draft Letter of Offer.

UTILITIES & INFRASTRUCTURE FACILITIES
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Infrastructure Facilities

Our registered office is situatdd® Government Place (East), 1st Floor Formerly Hemanta Basu Sarani, Kolkata
400069 West Bengal, Indiand is well equipped with adequate equipment and other facilities which are required for
our business operations.

Power

Our Company requires power for the normal requirement of the factory and for lighting, Computer systems etc.
Adequate power isvailabke which is met throughthe commercial electrisupply by Local Electriaty Supply
Department of Government

Water

The Company does not require water facilities required for business purposes. The requirements are fully met for
human consumptioatthe exising premises.

HUMAN RESOURCES

We have a qualified and professional employee base of 3 fulltime employees as on date of this Draft Letter of Offer.
Our majorityworkforce are skilled workmen. Many of our employees, particularly the senior managemebgédmave
working with our Companyinceinception.Our manpowelis a prudentmix of the experiencednd youngpeople

which givesusthe dual advantagef stability andgrowth, execution of services within time and quality, we believe
human capital is one ¢ifie most valuable assets of our Companthas technicalknow-how andskill setsposition
usatacompetitiveadvantageverour competitordn providing someof our services.

INSURANCE
No insurance isequiredby the Companyfor its currentbusinessictivities.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

OurCompanyhasintellectualpropertyasunder:

S.No. Nature of IP Particular Status
1. Nil Nil Nil
DOMAIN NAME

www.igcindustriesltd.com

INDEBTEDNESS

For detailsof indebtednespleaseaeferto fiFinancial Informationo onpage69 of this Draft Letter of Offer.
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OUR MANAGEMENT
Our Board of Directors

Our Articles of Association require us to have not less than threaif@3)ot more than fifteen (15) Directors. As on
date of this Drattetterof Offer, we haveFour(04) Directorsonour Board,whichincludesthree(02) Additional Non-
ExecutiveDirectorand (02) Additional Executive Director.

Sr. | Name,DIN, Date of Birth, Qualification, Designation,Occupation,

No.| Address,Nationality and Term UEF Pl e e

1| SALMAN MAHIBUB SAYYAD

Designation ManagingDirector

Address At Post, Awati Tal Karmala, Awati, Solapur, No. 5, Amrit SGSKRESEARCH AND
Vihar, Burari, Karmala, Maharashtr&13203
Date of Birth : 14/03/2000 INNOVATIONS LLP

Occupation: Business

DIN i 09837263

PAN - MMFPS9969D

Nationality: Indian

Date of First Appointment: 26/03/2024

2.| AVANI SAVJIBHAI GODHANIYA

Designation Additional IndependenDirector

Address Sai Sahara Apt Room No 17 Tulinj Road Vasai Mahara, Exlieag,
Vasaj Maharashtra401209 MARKOBENZ

Date of Birth : 21/05/2001 VENTURES LIMITED
Occupation: Business

Nationality : Indian

DIN: 10387729

PAN - DNNPG2362A

Date of First Appointment: 04/03/2024

HEMLATA

Designation Additional Independent Direct@xddressiC/O Satish
Chander Notiyal, Khasra N0.18/161ABI No. 5, AmritVihar, Burari,
Delhi 110084 NA
Date of Birth : 04/06/1984
Occupation: Business
Nationality : Indian

DIN: 10417881

PAN - AKQPR2752Q
Dateof First Appointment:
04/03/2024

4.| SUPRIYA DILIP GAIKWAD SGSK RESEARCH AND
Designation Additional Executive Director & ChieFinancial Officer INNOVATIONS LLP
Address: C-10/41, Building No. C/10, Sahayadri Nag@harkop, Dr.
Ambedkar Marg, Suburban Mumb#iandivlai West, Maharashtrad00067
Date of Birth : 16/05/1991

Occupation: Business

DIN 7 09837251

PAN - BLLPG1524J

Nationality: Indian

Date of First Appointment: 16/04/2024
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Brief Profile of our Directors

Ms. Avani Savjibhai Godhaniyah ol ds a Master 6s Degree in Commerce and
accounts, finance and taxation areas. Subsequently, considering her wide knowledge and skill in the commodities industry
to achieve accelerated growth in the company. Ingeition of his strong dedication and involvement and with a view

to accord representation to the employees at Board level, the Management has inducted him as a Director of the Company.

Ms. Hemlatah ol ds a Master 6s Degr ee i rsof@xpeneneerirctrading in dariosishageash a s
Subsequently, considering her wide knowledge and skill in the agro and chemical industry to achieve accelerated growth
in the company, the management has inducted her as a Director of the Company.

Ms. Supriya Dilip Gaikwad aged 28 years havingvast experience in field of Accounts and Finance. She is responsible
for to oversight the compliances of all financial matter and other compliances, rules and regulations as may be applicable
to the Company from time to tien

Mr. Salman Mahibub Sayyadis B.com graduate in Accounting & Finance with 5 years of experience. He comes with
rich experience of different functions across organizations right from Manufacturing, Design, Operational excellence,
Product management, Busss development, international sales & technologypie He has implemented many modern
management concepts to build growth & sustainable organizations through TOC implementation, Lean management,
Strategic sourcing & supply chain management and Buskhesslence model.

Confirmations

0 Noneof our Directorsof our Company havéeldor currentlyhold directorshipin anylisted companwhose
shareshavebeeror were suspended from being traded on any of the stock exchanges in the five years
preceding thedate of filing of this DraftLetter of Offer, duringthe termof his/ her directorshipin such
company.

0 Further, none of our Directors of our Company are or were associated in the capacity of a director with
any listed comparnwhich hasbeendelistedfrom anystockexchange(s) at anymein the past.

Our Key Managerial Personnel

We areproviding belowherewiththe detailsof our Key ManagerialPersonnefson the dateof filing of
this Draft Letterof Offer:

Sr. Name of Key Managerial Associated with the Current Designation
No. Personnel and Senior Company Since

ManagementPersonnel
1 SALMAN MAHIBUB SAYYAD 26/03/2024 ManagingDirector

DIN 7 09837263
PAN - MMFPS9969D

2 SUPRIYA DILIP GAIKWAD 16/04/2024 ChiefFinancialOfficer
DIN 7 09837251
PAN - BLLPG1524J

3 ARPIT JAIN 01/03/2024 CompanySecretang
ICSI Mem. No. A 69607 Compliance Officer
PANT ALTPJ5193R
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ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE

Board of Directors

Company Secretar
and Compliance
Officer

ManagingDirector

ChiefFinancial
Officer
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For details of the related party transactions, during the last three Fiscals as per the requiremetite velésant
accounting standards and as reported in the Audited Fi
page 69 of this Draft Letter of Offer.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The declaration and payment of dividends will be recommended bRBdhed of Directors and approved by the
Shareholders, at their discretion, subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association and applicable law, including
the Companies Act. The dividend, if any, will depend on a number of factors, including bintitext, consolidated

net operating profit after tax, working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements, cash flow required to meet
contingencies, outstanding borrowings, and applicable taxes payable by our Company. In addition, ow paility t
dividends may be impacted by a number of factors, including restrictive covenants under loan or financing arrangements
our Company is currently availing of or may enter into to finance our fund requirements for our business activities.

Dividends paid on Equity Shares:

Our Company has not declared dividends on the Equity Shares in each of the Financial Years ending 2023, 2022 and
2021. The amount paid as dividends in the past is hot necessarily indicative of our dividend policy or dividend amount, if
any, in the future and there is no guarantee that any dividends will be declared or paid or that the amount thereof will not
be decreased in future.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION AUDITED & UNAUDITED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

SECTION V

S. No.

Details

Page Number

I ndependent Auditorso6é Report and St
ended March 31, 2@along with Limited Review Report and Unaudited Financ
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I ndependent Auditords Report
To
The Members of
IGC Industries Limited
(Formerly known as IGC Faoils Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of IGC Industries Limited ,( 6t he Companyod) ,
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive

income), Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended and notes to the financial

statement, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid

financial statements give the informatonrequi red by the Companies Act, 2013 |
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under

section 133 of the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the

Company as at March 31, 2024, the profit & Loss statement, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and

its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the standards on auditing (sas) specified

under section 143(10) of the act. OQur responsibilities wu
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the

company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI)

together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the

provisions of the act and the rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the | CAlI &8s Code ¢
obtained is sufficient and appropriat e to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

Note No. 5(e) and 9(b) to the financial statements, in respect of Loans & Advances and Unsecured Loans, external
confirmations of the balances are not available. Dueto non-availability of confirmation of balances, we are unable

to quantify the impact, if any, arising from the confirmation of balances.

Note No.4 to the financial statements, in respect of Inventories Verification of the Inventories are not available.

Due to non-availability of confirmation of balances, we are unable to quantify the impact, if any, arising from the

confirmation of balances.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters (O6KAMO6) are those mat t er Sgnificdneetinouri n owur
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on th ese matters. We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate in this report.

Other Matters

The Company has various litigations pending before various authorities, the outcome of which are material but
not practicable for the Company to estimate the timings of cash outflows, as well as per Legal opinions obtained
by the management of the Company, it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation.

Our report is not mo dified in respect of the above matters.

I nformation Other than the Financial Statements and Audi
The Companyds Board of Directors is responsible for t h
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information comprises the informati on i ncluded in the Management Di scussi
including Annexures to Board6s Report, Business Responsi
I nformation, but does not include stepodthdrdomanci al st at emen

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a no material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management ds Responsibility for the Financi al St at ement s

The Co mp eardyf®Bect®s is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
impl ementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the financial statements that give atrue and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

I n preparing the financial statements, management i
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matérs related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

es

The Board of Directors are responsible foroversee ng t he Companyds financi al report

Auditords Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financi a

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whet her due to fraud or error, and to issue
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance

with SAs will always detect a material misstatement whe n it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

9 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,

design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one r esulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

1 Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

1 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and

related disclosures made by Management.
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T Conclude on the appropriateness of managementds unse of
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company®6s ability to continue
uncertainty exists, we are requiredt o dr aw attention in our auditords rep
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtai ned .Hpweven futurdeventsd artcanditions our a
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

1 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes
it probable that the economic decisions of a reasmably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of a ny identified misstatements in the
financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in  internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of

most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditords rep
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

2) As required by t he Companies (Audi tords Report) Order, 202

Government in terms of Sect i oAnnekwe3N 6l 1a sotfa ttehmee nAc to,n wet
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

3) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:
a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, p roper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, Statement
of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind - AS specified under Section 133 of
the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
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f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of sAumetureBont©wid sr,epef
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and ¢
financial controls over financial reporting.

g With respect to the other matters to be included i
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended. In our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors
during the year is in accordance with the provisions of sectio n 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the expla nations given to us:

i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position as at 31stMarch
2024 in its financial statements, if any
i) The Company did not have any long -term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.
iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.
iv)
(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and bdief, no funds (which are
material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to
or in any other person or entity, incl udi ng foreign entity (o0l nter
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoeverbyoron behal f of the Company (oUltimate Benef.i
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which
are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any
person or entity, including foreign entity (O0Func
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indi rectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (oUltimate Beneficiariesd) or provi
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the aulit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations
under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above contain any material
misstatement.

For and on behalf of

ADV & Associates

Chartered Accountants
FRN.128045W

Sd/-

Prakash Mandhaniya

Partner

Membership No: 421679

Place: Mumbai; Date: 22.04.2024
UDIN: 24421679BKFSVR1813
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ANNEXURE 0A6 TO THE KANDEARBORODENREPORT
(Referred to in our report to the member of IGC Industries Limited of even date)

To the best of our knowledge and information, according to the explanations provided to us by the Company, the
audit procedures followed by us and examination of the books of account and records examined by us in the
normal course of audit, we state that:

MIn respect of the Companyds Fixed Assets:

(i) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including Quantitative details and
Situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.
(i) The company has no intangible assets.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us as on the basis of our examination of the records
of the company, the company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, Plants and
Equipment by which all property, plants, equipment are verified in a phased manner over the period of
three years. In accordance with this programme, certain property, plants equipment was verified during
the year. In our opinion, thi s of physical verifications is reasonable having regards the size of company and
nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verifications.

(c) According to information and explanation given to us, the records examined b y us and based on examination
of the documents provided to us, we report that, as at the Balance Sheet date in respect of Leasehold Land,
The Lease Agreement stands in the Name of the Company. The Company does not own any other
Immovable property in respec t of which title deeds are required to be held by the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanation given to us and the basis of our examination of the records of
the company, the company has not revalued its property, plants and equi pment (including right to use
assets) or intangible assets or both during the year, hence sukclause 3(i) (d) of the Companies (Auditors
Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable to the company.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property
under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 as Amended and rules made thereunder, hence sub
clause 3(i)(e) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable to the company.

(ii)
(@) According to information and explanation given to us, management is not provided appropriate data of
inventories, due to no-availability of data of balances, we are unable to quantify to impact, if any.

(b)  According to information and explanation given to us, the records examined by us and based on
examination of the documents provided to us The Company has been not sanctioned working capital limits
in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from bank on the basis of security of current assets. In our

opinion, the quarterly returns or statement filed by the company with such banks are in agreement with the
books of account of the company.

(iii) In respect of Loans, Advances, Investment and Guarantee

a) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the investments made
and terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans provided are,
prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company. The Company has not provided any
guarantee or given any security during the year.

b) In respect of loans and advances in the nature of loans, no schedule of repayment of principal and
payment of interest has beenstipulated. Therefore, we cannot comment on the same.

¢) According to information and explanation given to us, the records examined by us and based on
examination of the documents provided to us. The amount is not overdue for more than 90 days since

it is repayable on Demand, hence subclause 3(iii) (d) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2020
is not applicable to the company.
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(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

d) According to information and explanation given to us, the records examined by us and based on
examination of the documents provided to us. There is no loan given falling due during the year, which
has renewed or extended or fresh loans given to settle the overdue of existing loans given to the same
party, hence sub-clause 3(iii)(e) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable to the

e)

company.

According to information and explanation given to us, the records examined by us and based on
examination of the documents provided to us. The company has not given any loans either repayable
on demand or without specify ing any terms or period of repayment, hence sub-clause 3(iii) (f) of the
Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable to the company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has comp lied
with the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of grant of loans, making investments and
providing guarantees and securities, as applicable.

The Company has not accepted deposits from the public or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Hence clause 3(v) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 is not applicable to the
Company.

The maintenance of the cost records has not been specified by central government under the subsection (1)
of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out by the company, hence
Reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 is not applicable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of Statutory Dues.

(a) The Company has been generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goo ds and

Services Act, Provident fund, Employees State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of
Customs, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities
during the year. According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amount
payable in respect of the aforesaid dues were outstanding as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more than
six months from the date they became payable. Except Following,

Name of Status Nature of Dues Period to which | Amount From Where
amount relates (InRs.) Dispute is
Pending
Income tax Act, 1961 Income Tax AY 2014-15 1,19,950 Commissioner
of Income-Tax
Income tax Act, 1961 Income Tax-Interest AY 2014-15 10,112 Commissioner
of Income-Tax
Income tax Act, 1961 Income Tax AY 201516 19,40,490 Commissioner
of Income-Tax
Income tax Act, 1961 Income Tax-Interest AY 201516 1,55,312 Commissioner
of Income-Tax
Income tax Act, 1961 Income Tax AY 2016-17 6,34,840 Commissioner
of Income-Tax
Income tax Act, 1961 Income Tax-Interest AY 2016-17 50,864 Commissioner

of Income-Tax
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(viii)

(ix)

a)

b)

d)

e)

Income tax Act, 1961 Income Tax AY 2017-18 6,76,74,350 Commissioner
of Income-Tax

Income tax Act, 1961 Income Tax-Interest AY 2017-18 54,14,024 Commissioner
of Income-Tax

Income tax Act, 1961 Income Tax AY 201819 4,26,94,410 Commissioner
of Income-Tax

Income tax Act, 1961 Income Tax-Interest AY 201819 34,15,632 Commissioner
of Income-Tax

Income tax Act, 1961 Income Tax AY 201920 93,54,430 Commissioner
of Income-Tax

Income tax Act, 1961 Income Tax-Interest AY 201920 7,48,352 Commissioner
of Income-Tax

Income tax Act, 1961 Income Tax AY 201920 2,24,610 Commissioner
of Income-Tax

Income tax Act, 1961 Income Tax-Interest AY 201920 18,048 Commissioner
of Income-Tax

Income tax Act, 1961 Income Tax AY 2020-21 85,43,993 Commissioner
of Income-Tax

Income tax Act, 1961 Income Tax-Interest AY 2020-21 21,35,975 Commissioner
of Income-Tax

(b) According to information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of GST, Provident fund,
Employees State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Customs, duty of Excise, Value
Added Tax, Cess and other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities during the year.

There are no transactions that were not recorded in the books of account, and which has been surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (Section 43
of 1961), hence sukclause 3(viii) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable to the
company.

In respect of Term Loans

According to the information and explanations given to us, The Company has not defaulted in repayment
of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender, hence reporting under sub-
clause 3(ix)(a) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable to the company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not been declaed wilful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority, hence reporting
under sub-clause 3(ix)(b) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable to the company.

According to information and exp lanation given to us, the records examined by us and based on
examination of the documents provided to us. The company has not borrowed any term loans during the
year, hence reporting under sub-clause 3(ix)(c) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2020 is not
applicable to the company.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that no funds raised on
short-term basis have been used for longterm purposes by the company, hence reporting under sub-clause
3(ix)(d) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable to the company.

According to information and explanation given to us, the records examined by us and based on
examination of the documents provided to us. The company has not taken any funds from any entity or
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)

(xi)
(@)

(b)

(©

(xi)

(xii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

@)

(b)

(©

person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries or joint ventures, hence sub-clause 3(ix)(e)
of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable to the company.

According to information and explanation given to us, the records examined by us and based on
examination of the documents provided to us. The company has not raised loans during the year on the

pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries or joint ventures, hence reporting under sub -clause 3(ix)(f) of the

Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable to the company.

The company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer / further public offer (including
debt instruments) and not made any preferential allotmen t / private placement of shares / fully / partly /
optionally convertible debentures during the year under review, hence reporting under clause 3(x) and sub -

clause (a) and (b) of the Companies (Auditords Report

According to information and explanation given to us, the records examined by us and based on
examination of the documents provided to us. No fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the year, hence sub-clause 3(xi)(a) of the Companies (Auditors Report)
Order, 2020 is not applicable to the company.

According to information and explanation given to us, the records examined by us and based on
examination of the documents provided to us. No report under sub -section (12) of section 143 of the
Companies Act has been filed by us in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government and hence clause 3(xi)(b) of the Companies (Auditors
Report) Order 2020 is not applicable to the company.

According to information and explan ation given to us, the records examined by us and based on
examination of the documents provided to us. No whistle -blower complaints have been received during
the year by the company, hence subclause 3(xi)(c) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order, 2020is not
applicable to the company.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence clauses 3(xii) of the Companies (Auditors Report) Order
2020 is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and expl anations give to us, the company is in compliance
with section 177 and 188 of the companies Act, 2013 where applicable, for all transactions with the related
parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed in the Financial Statemeats as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

As per section 138 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 13 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the
Company is required to appoint Internal Auditor, but company has not made any appointment o f Internal
Auditor during the year.

In our opinion and based on our examination. The company has not entered into any non -cash transactions
with its directors or persons connected with its directors, hence sub-clause 3(xv) of the Companies (Auditors
Report) Order, 2020 is not applicable to the company.

According to information and explanation given to us, the records examined by us and based on
examination of the documents provided to us. The company is not required to registered under section 45
IA of the reserve bank of India Act, 1934. Hence this Clause is not applicable to company.

The Company has not conducted the non-banking financial activities without a valid Certificate of
Registration ('CoR") from the RBI as per the RBIAct. The Company has not conducted any housing finance
activities and is not required to obtain CoR for such activities from the RBI.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company ('CIC") and hence reporting under paragraph 3(xvi)(c) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(xvii) On an examination of the Statement of Profit and Loss account, we are of the opinion that the Company has

incurred cash losses of Amount Rs.39.04 lacs during the current financial year as Compare to immediately
preceding financial year of Rs. 17.34 Lacs.

(xviii) There is no resignation of the previous statutory auditors during the year as per section 140 of company Act,

(xix)

(xx)

(xxi)

2013 Clause (3)(xviii) Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020 is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment
of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty
exists as on the date of the audit report that the company is not capable of meeing its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.
We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state
that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee
nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will
get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

According to the information and explanations given to us, although the Company fulfilled the criteria as
specified under section 135(1) of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Rules, 2014, however, in theabsence of average net profits in the immediately three preceding years, there
is no requirement for the Company to spend any amount under subsection (5) of section 135 of the Act.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable t o the Company.

According to information & explanation given to us there is no group of companies, hence not required to
report in Companies (Auditors Report) Order 2020.

For and on behalf of
ADV & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN.128046W

Sd/ -

Prakash Mandhaniya

Partner

Membership No: 421679
Place: Mumbai

Date: 22.04.2024

UDIN: 24421679BKFSVR1813
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Annexure 0B6 to the Independent Auditords Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) wunder O6Report on Ot her Le
to the Members of The IGC Industries Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) o f Sub-section 3 of Section
143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (0the Act o)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of The IGC Industries Limited ( 0t he

Companyo6) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our a
year ended on that date.
Management ds Responsibility for I nternal Financial Contr

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls

based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Intern al Financial Controls Over Financial

Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its busi ne
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness

of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the

Companies Act, 2013.

Auditords Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the

Company based onour audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financi al Control s Over Financi al Reporting (the o0Gui d
Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribe d under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013,

to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require

that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasona ble assurance about

whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such

controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence a bout the adequacy of the internal financial

controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls

over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls ove r financial

reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.

The procedures selected depend aithe asbessmentuoflthet ricks 6f snatgrial d g e me
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion on the internal f inancial controls system over financial reporting of the Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A companyds internal financi al control over financi al r
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted account:i

over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that,

in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as neasary to permit preparation of financial

statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the

company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the comp any;

and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,

or disposition of the companyds assets that could have a
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Limitations of Internal Financial C ontrols Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur
and not be detected.

Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate bec ause of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in
all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria estab lished by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For and on behalf of
ADV & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN.128045W

Sd/ -

Prakash Mandhaniya

Partner

Membership No: 421679
Place: Mumbai

Date: 22.04.2024

UDIN: 24421679BKFSVR1813
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IGC INDUSTRIES LIMITED
(Formerly Known As IGC FOILS LIMITED

CIN-LO1100WB1980PLCO032950

Balance Sheet as at 31March 2024

(Rs.In lakh)

Particulars

Note
No.

As At
31st March 2024

As At
31st March 2023

ASSETS
1 Non-current assets

R
o

JQ "0 Q00T

i
i

Property, Plant and Equipment
Capital work-in-progress

Investment Property

Goodwvill

Other Intangible assets

Intangible assets under development
Biological Assets other than bearer plants
Financial Assets

i Investments

i Trade receivables

iii Loans & Advances

iv.  Others financial assets

Deferred tax assets (net)

Other non-current assets

Current assets
a Inventories

b

c
d

Financial Assets

i Investments

i Trade receivables

i Cash and cash equivalents

iv Bank balances other than (ii) above
Vv Loans and Advances

vi Others

Current Tax Assets (Net)

Other current assets

55.71
0.12
0.69

954.59

11.21

55.71

0.12

0.53

900.22

6.31

Total Assets

1,042.52

1,501.33

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
A Equity

1 Equity Share capital
2 Other Equity
Liabilities

1 Non-current liabilities

B

a Financial Liabilities
i Borrowings
ii Trade payables
iii Other financial liabilities
b Provisions
c Deferred tax liabilities (Net)
d Other non-current liabilities

2 Current liabilities

a Financial Liabilities
i Borrowings
ii Trade payables
a Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises; and
b Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises; and
i Other financial liabilities
b Other current liabilities
c Provisions
d Current Tax Liabilities (Net)

7b

224.00
(153.41

4.06
957.62

8.12

224.00
(113.99

1,380.70

8.49

Total Equity & Liablities

1,042.52

1,501.33

Significant Accounting Policies
Notes to Financial Statements
As per our report attached

For and on behalf of
ADV & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 128045WwW

Prakash Mandhaniya

Partner

Membership No. 421679
Date:22.04.2024

Place : Mumbai
UDIN:24421679BKFSWF2003

For and on behalf of the Board

IGC Industries Limited

Salman Mahibub Sayyad

(Director)
DIN:09837263

CS Arpit Jain
Company Secretary
AB69607

Supriya Dilip
Gaikwad
(Director & CFO)
DIN:09837251

81



IGC INDUSTRIES LIMITED
(Formerly Known As IGC FOILS LIMITED
CIN-LO1100WB1980PLC032950

Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year Ended 3% March 2024

(Rs.In lakh)

. Note As At As At
Particulars No 31st March 31st March
1 INCOME FROM OPERATIONS
a) Revenue From Operations 1la - -
b)Other Income 11b - 0.10
Total Income - 0.10
2 EXPENSES
a)Cost of materials consumed
b)Purchases of Stock-in-Trade - -
c)Changes in inventories of finished goods, Stock-in -Trade and| WIE2 - -
d)Employee benefits expense 13 5.34 7.0]
e)Finance costs 14 0.20 0.11
f)Depreciation and amortization expense 0.39 0.54
g)Other expenses 15 33.50 11.05
Total expenses 39.42 18.78
3 Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (1-2) (39.42 (18.68
a4 Exceptional Items - (0.79
5 Profit/(loss) before tax (4-5) (39.42 (17.88
6 Tax expense:
a) Current tax
b)Deferred tax 8 0.002 -
c)Excess/Short provision of tax - -
7 Profit (Loss) for the period from continuing operations (5-6) (39.43 (17.88
8 Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations - -
9 Tax expense of discontinued operations - -
10 |Profit/(loss) from Discontinued operations (after tax) (8-9) - -
11 |Profit/(loss) for the period (7+10) (39.43 (17.88
12 |Other Comprehensive Income
() Iltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
(i) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit
loss - -
() Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
(i) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or lgss - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the period
13 |(Comprising Profit (Loss) and Other Comprehensive Income for (39.43 (17.88
the period)
14 |Earnings per equity share (for continuing operation): 17
a) Basic (1.76 (0.80
b) Diluted a.7e (0.80
Number of Shares at the End of the Year 22.40 22.40
Earnings per equity share (for discontinued operation):
a) Basic .76 (0.80
b) Diluted a.7e (0.80
Number of Shares at the End of the Year 22.40 22.40
Earnings per equity share(for discontinued
& continuing operations)
a) Basic (1.76 (0.80
b) Diluted a.7e (0.80
Number of Shares at the End of the Year 22.40 22.40
Significant Accounting Policies 1
Notes to Financial Statements " 2-28

As per our report attached

For and on behalf of
ADV & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 128045wW

Prakash Mandhaniya

Partner

Membership No. 421679
Date:22.04.2024

Place : Mumbai
UDIN:24421679BKFSWF2003

For and on behalf of the Board

IGC Industries Limited

Salman Mahibub Sayyac

Director
DIN:09837263

CS Arpit Jain
Company Secretary
ABG9607

Supriya Dilip
Gaikwad
Director & CFO
DIN:09837251
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IGC INDUSTRIES LIMITED
(Formerly Known As IGC FOILS LIMITED
CIN-LO1100WB1980PLC032950
Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 31st March 2024

(Rs.In lakh

Particulars As At As At
31st March 2024 31st March 2023

A. |[CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Profit / (Loss) before tax (39.42 (18.68
Add : Extraordinary items -

Exceptional items - (0.79

(39.42 (17.88

Adjustment for :
a)Depreciation 0.39 0.54

b)Finance costs 0.20 0.11

0.59 0.65

OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES (38.84 (17.22

Changes in working capital:

Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in operating assets:
a)lnventories - -
b)Trade receivables - 0.13
c)Short-term loans and advances (54.37 17.45
d)Long-term loans and advances - 0.23
e)Other current assets (4.90 -
f)Other non-current assets -

Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in operating liabilities:
a)Trade payables 4.06 (0.77
b)Other current liabilities - -
c)Other Financial liabilities (423.08 -
d)Short-term provisions (0.37 -
e)Long-term provisions - 0.02

(478.66 17.06

(517.50 (0.16
Cash flow from extraordinary items - -
Cash generated from operations (517.50 (0.16
Net income tax (paid) / refunds - -

NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (517.50 (0.16

B. |CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
a)Capital expenditure on fixed assets, including capital advances - -
b)Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 517.86 -
c)Movement in long-term Investments - 0.10
d)Interest received - -
e)Purchase of Mobile Phone - -
f)Purchase of Plant & Machinery at VValsad - -
g)Dividend received - -
h)Other reservers - -

Net income tax (paid) / refunds

NET CASH FLOW IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES - 517.86 0.10

C. |CASH FLOW FROM FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
a)lnter Corporate Deposits - -
b)Movement in Borrowing - -

c)Finance cost (0.20 (0.11
NET CASH FLOW IN FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (0.20 (0.11
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash (A+ B + C) 0.16 (0.18
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 0.53 0.71
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note 4c) 0.69 0.53

As per our report of even date

For and on behalf of For and on behalf of the Board
ADV & Associates IGC Industries Limited
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 128045WwW

Salman Mahibub Supriya Dilip
Prakash Mandhaniya Sayyad Gaikwad
Partner Director Director & CFO
Membership No. 421679 DIN:09837263 DIN:09837251

Date:22.04.2024

Place : Mumbai

UDIN:24421679BKFSWF2003
CS Arpit Jain
Company Secretary
A69607
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IGC INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes forming parts of financial statements for the Year Ended 31st March 2024
Note 02: Property, Plant & Equipment
. . Furniture and Computer &
Gross Canying Amount March 31, 2023 Mobile Phone . Computer Total
Fixtures .
Equipments
Opening Gross Carrying Amount 1.87 0.89 0.29 3.05
Exchange Difference - - - -
Acquisition of Subsidy - - - -
Additions - - - -
Assets Classified as held for sale - - - -
Disposals - - - -
Tranfers - - - -
Closing gross carrying amount 1.87 0.89 0.29 3.05
Opening Accumulated Depreciation 0.60 0.10 0.09 0.80
Depreciation charged during the year 0.40 0.07 0.06 0.54
Impairment Loss - - - -
Disposals - - - -
Exchange Difference - - - -
Assets classified as held for sale - - - -
Closing Accumulated De preciation 1.00 0.18 0.15 1.34
Net carrying amount March 31, 2023 O.87| 0.71 0.13 l.71|
Capital-Work-in Progress (CWIP) / Intangible assets under development (ITAUD) as on 31-03-2023
Rs in Lakh.)
CWIP/ITAUD Amount in CWIP for a period of
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Projects in progress - - 517.86 517.86
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
. : Fumiture and Computer &
Gross Canying Amount March 31, 2024 Mobile Phone . Computer Total
Fixtures .
Equipments
Opening Gross Carrying Amount 1.87 0.89 0.29 3.05
Exchange Difference - - - -
Acquisition of Subsidy - - - -
Additions - - - -
Assets Classified as held for sale - - - -
Disposals - - - -
Tranfers - - - -
Closing gross carrying amount 1.87 0.89 0.29 3.05
Opening Accumulated Depreciation 1.00 0.18 0.15 1.34
Depreciation charged during the year 0.28 0.07 0.04 0.39
Impairment Loss - - - -
Disposals - - - -
Exchange Difference - - - -
Assets classified as held for sale - - - -
Closing Accumulated De preciation 1.28 0.25 0.20 1.72
Net carrying amount March 31, 2024 0.59| 0.64| 0.09| 1.33
Capital-Work-in Progress (CWIP) / Intangible assets under development (ITAUD) as on 31-03-2024
Rs in Lakh.)
CWIP/ITAUD Amount in CWIP for a period of
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Projects in progress

Projects temporarily suspended
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IGC INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN-L01100WB1980PLC032950

Notes forming parts of financial statements for the Year Ended $iMarch 2024

Note No. 3 Non-Current Financial Assets

Particulars

As At
31st March 2024

As At
31st March 2023

(Rs. In Lakh)

(Rs. In Lakh)

a |Investments

Investments in Equity Instruments -Unquoted
Investment in Preference Shares
Investments in Government or trust securities
Investments in debentures or bonds
Investments in Mutual Funds

Investments in partnership firms

Other investments

18.8Y

Total

Note No. 4 Inventories

Particulars

As At
31st March 2024

As At
31st March 2023

Raw materials
Work-in-progress
Finished goods
Stock-in-trade
Stores and spares
Loose tools
Others

Total

@=pooop

(Rs. In Lakh)

(Rs. In Lakh)

L 55.7

Note No. 5 Current Financial Assets

Particulars

As At
31st March 2024

As At
31st March 2023

(Rs. In Lakh)

(Rs. In Lakh)

Investments

Investments in Equity Instruments
Investment in Preference Shares
Investments in government or trust securities
Investments in debentures or bonds
Investments in Mutual Funds

Investments in partnership firms

Other investments

Total (a)

5a.

Trade Receivables

Secured Considered Good
Unsecured Considered Good
Doubtful

Covered under section 188/189
Total (b)

5b.

18.8Y

Trade Receivables ageing schedule as at 31st March,2024

(Rs. In Lakh)

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6
months

6 months to 1
year

1to 2 years

1-2 years

2 to 3 years

More than
3 years

() Undisputed Trade receivables -considered good

0.12

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables -considered doubtful

(i) Disputed trade receivables considered good

(iv) Disputed trade receivables considered doubtful

Total

Trade Receivables ageing schedule as at 31st March,2023

(Rs. In Lakh)

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6
months

6 months to 1
year

1to 2 years

1-2 years

2 to 3 years

More than
3 years

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables -considered good

0.12 -

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables -considered doubtful

(iii) Disputed trade receivables considered good

(iv) Disputed trade receivables considered doubtful

Total

85




5c. |Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances With Banks 0.3 0.1p
Cheques, Drafts on hand
Cash on hand 0.38 0.38
Others Cash and Cash Equivalents
Total ¢ 0.6 0.53
5d | Bank Balances Other than stated above - -
5e. |Loans
Secured, considered good
Security Deposits - 0.8p
Loans to related parties - -
Other loans 954.59 899.42
Covered by section 188/189 - -
954.59 900.22
Unsecured, considered good
Security Deposits - -
Loans to related parties - -
Other loans - -
Covered by section 188/189 - -
Doubtful
Security Deposits - -
Loans to related parties - -
Other loans - -
Covered by section 188/189 - -
Total e 954.59 900.27
5f |Others - -
Total Current Financial Assets 955.4 900.84
Note No.6 Other Current Assets
As At As At
Particulars 31st March 2024 | 31st March 2023
(Rs. In Lakh) (Rs. In Lakh)
a. |Capital Advances
b. |Advances other than capital advances - -
c. |Security Deposits 0.8p -
d. |Advances to related parties - -
e. |Other advances 10.42 -
f. |GST With Government 6.3[L
g. |Covered by section 188/189 - -
Total 11.2] 6.31
Note No.8 Deffered Tax Liability
As At As At
Particulars 31st March 2024 | 31st March 2023
(Rs. In Lakh) (Rs. In Lakh)
Deferred tax assets 2.18 2.18
Add:During the year 0.0p
Total 2.14 2.13
Note No.9 Current Financial Liabilities
As At As At
Particulars 31st March 2024 | 31st March 2023
(Rs. In Lakh) (Rs. In Lakh)
9a |[Trade payables (Unsecured)
Due to Micro and Small Enterprises - -
Others 4.06 -
Total b 4.0 -

Note H : Steps have been taken to identify the suppliers who qualify under the definition of micro and small enterprises, as defined under the Micro, Small 4
Enterprises Development Act 2006. Since no intimation has been received from the suppliers regarding their status under the said Act as at 31st March 20|
March 2024, disclosures relating to amounts unpaid as at the year end, if any, have not been furnished. In the opinion of the management, the impact of in
that may be payable in accordance with the provisions of the Act, is not expected to be material.
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Trade Payables ageing schedule as at 31st March,2024

(Rs. In Lakh]
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than 1 year 1to 2 years 1-2 years 2 to 3 years Mor;e::rzn 8
() MSME - - - - -
(i) Others 4.06 - - - -
(iii) Disputed dues- MSME - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - -
Total 4.06 - - - -
Trade Payables ageing schedule as at 31st March,2023
(Rs. In Lakh
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than 1 year 1to 2 years 1-2 years 2 to 3 years More than 3
years
() MSME - - - - -
(i) Others - - - - -
(ii)) Disputed dues- MSME - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - -
Total - - - - -
9b |Other financial liabilities
Current maturities of long-term debt - -
Current maturities of finance lease obligations - -
Interest accrued - -
Unpaid dividends - -
Application money received for allotment of securities
the extent refundable and interest accrued thereon - -
Unpaid matured deposits and interest accrued thereo - -
Unpaid matured debentures and interest accrued thergon - -
Others 957.62 1,380.7
Total ¢ 957.64 1,380.7(
Total 961.6 1,380.7¢
Note No. 10 Provisions
As At As At
Particulars 31st March 2024 | 31st March 2023
(Rs. In Lakh) (Rs. In Lakh)
a. |Provision for employee benefits - -
b. |Provision for Audit Fee 0.5p 0.89
C. Provision For Tax (0.14) (0.14)
d |other provisions-Provision for doubtful debts 7.75 7.75
Total 8.17 8.49
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IGC INDUSTR

IES LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Note No. 7 Equity

Statement of changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March 2024

A(i). Equity Share Capital (Authorised)

FY 2022-23
Particulars Balance at the Changes in Balance at the end o
beginning of the Authorised Equity | the reporting period
reporting period | Share Capital during
the year
1,00,00,000 (PY 1,00,00,000 ) Equity shares of Rs.10 eagh 1,000.0p 1 1,000.0
FY 2023-24
Particulars Balance at the Changes in Balance at the end o
beginning of the Authorised Equity | the reporting period
reporting period | Share Capital during
the year
1,00,00,000 (PY 1,00,00,000) Equity shares of Rs.10 each 1,000.00 1 1,000.0

A.(ii) Equity Share Capital (Issued,Subscribed and Paid Up)

FY 2022-23
Particulars Balance at the Changes in Equity | Balance at the end o
beginning of the | Share Capital during | the reporting period
reporting period the year
22,40,000 (PY 22,40,000) Equity shares of Rs.10 each 224.00 1 224.0
FY 2023-24
Particulars Balance at the Changes in Equity | Balance at the end o
beginning of the | Share Capital during | the reporting period
reporting period the year
22,40,000 (PY 22,40,000) Equity shares of Rs.10 each 224.00 E 224.00!
B. Other Equity
FY 2022-23
Particulars Reserves and Surplus
Securities Premiun]  Retained Eamings | Remeasurements o] Otheritems of Total
Reserve the net defined Other
benefit plans Comprehensive
Income (specify
nature)
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 120.0 (215.34) - - (96.11]
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors - 1 - - -
Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting period - q - - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year . 1 - - -
Dividends - 1 - - -
Transfer to retained earning§rom Profit & Loss Account) E (17.88) - - (17.88
Balance at the end of the reporting period 120.00 (233.2R) - - (113.99
FY 2023-24
Reserves and Surplus
Securities Premiun]  Retained Eamings | Remeasurements o] Otheritems of Total
Particulars Reserve the net defined Other
benefit plans Comprehensive
Income (specify
nature)
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 120.00 (233.2R) - - (113.99
Changes in accounting policy or prior period errors - 1 - - -
Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting period - E - - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - 1 - - -
Dividends - 1 R B R
Transfer to retained earning&rom Profit & Loss Account) - (39.48) - - (39.43
Balance at the end of the reporting period 120.00 (272.64) - - (153.41]
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Details of Shareholders holding more than 5% in the Company

As 0n 31.03.2024
) | %Ch during th
Names of the Shareholders No of Equity Share Percentage Holding ’ angsarunng ¢
DISHA ABHISHEK MEHTA 14,67,025.0p 65.49
JR SEAMLESS PRIVATE LIMITED 3,41,623.0 15.2p
VRB CAPITAL SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 2,10,000.0p 9.38
As on 31.03.2023
) | %Ch during th
Names of the Shareholders No of Equity Shareq Percentage Holding ’ ans:arunng ¢
DISHA ABHISHEK MEHTA 14,67,025.0p 65.49
ANIL JAIKISHANDAS MISTRY 1,17,325.0 5.24
INDIGO TECH-IND LIMITED 2,10,000.0p 9.38
|VRB CAPITAL SERVICES INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED 2,10,000.0p 9.38
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IGC INDUSTRIES LIMITED
CIN-LO1100WB1980PLC032950

Notes forming parts of financial statements for the Year Ended $iMarch 2024

Note No. 11 Income From Operations

Particulars

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

(Rs. In Lakh)

(Rs. In Lakh)

10a |Revenue From Operations
a. Sale of products

b. Sale of services

C. Other operating revenues

Total

10b |[Other Income

a. Interest Income

b. FD Interest

C. Other non-operating income

Total

Total Income From Operations

0.1

0.1

Note No. 12 Changes in Inventories

Particulars

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

(Rs. In Lakh)

(Rs. In Lakh)

a Stock at the begning of the year
Finished Goods
Work-in-Progress
Stock in Trade

Total

b Stock at the end of the year
Finished Goods
Work-in-Progress
Stock in Trade

Total

Changes In Inventories (a-b)

55.71 55.7
55.71 55.7]
55.71 55.7
55.71 55.7]

Note No. 13 Employee Benefit Expenses

Particulars

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

(Rs. In Lakh)

(Rs. In Lakh)

a. Salaries and wages 0.20 2.5
b. Contribution to provident and other funds - -
C. Share based payment to employees - -
d. Staff welfare expense - -
e Director Remuneration 5.14 4.5

Total 5.34 7.07
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Note No.14 Finance Cost

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
(Rs. In Lakh) (Rs. In Lakh)
a. |Interest - -
b. |[Dividend on redeemable preference shares - -
Exchange differences regarded as an adjust
Cc. |to borrowing costs - -
d. |Bank charges 0.20 0.1
e. |Other borrowing costs - -
Total 0.2( 0.1
Note No.15 Other Expenses
As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
(Rs. In Lakh) (Rs. In Lakh)
a. |Payments to the auditor as
1 |For Statutory Audit 0.68 0.6
2 |For taxation matters - -
3 |For other services - -
4 |For reimbursement of expenses - -
0.63 0.64
b. [Other Expenses
1 |Registrar Fees 0.6D 0.2
2 |CDSL Expenses 0.11 0.2
3 |Rent - 1.8
4 |BSE Expenses 3.84 3.0
5 |Bad Debts W/off - 0.1
6 |Legal & Professional Fees 4.45 2.5
7 [Nsdlfees 0.1p 0.1
8 |Advertisment Expense 0.10 0.2
9 |E - Voting Charges 0.08 0.0
10 |Miscellaneous Expenses - 0.1
11 |Loss on sale of property 23.68 -
12 |Income tax - 0.2
13 |Property tax - 1.6
Total 33.5( 11.04

91

THIS PAGEHAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY KEPT BLANK




16

17

18
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a)

b)

IGC INDUSTRIES LIMITED
Notes for the Year Ended 31st March 2024

No contract on capital account remains to be executed

Eaming per share

Year ended
31st March 2024

Year ended
31st March 2023

Net Profit after Tax (39.43) (17.88)
Weighted average number of equity shares of R 22.40 22.4p
10/- each (Nos)

EPS - Basic and Diluted ( per share in Rs.) (1.76) (0.80)

Particulars As on 31.03.2024 As on 31.03.2029
Contingent Liabities Nil Nil
Foreign Exchange Difference (Net) Debited to Pr
and Loss for the Year Nil Nil

Balances of Sundry Customers, Suppliers , Loan-Given and Taken , Deposits-Given and Taken
Advance to Suppliers and others are subject to confirmation

The Company has not received information from suppliers regarding their status under the Micro
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 and hence disclosures, if any, relating to amou
as at the year end together with interest paid/payable and other disclosures to be made u/s 22 ¢

Act have not been given.

In determining Earning Per Share (EPS)(IND AS 33) , the Company has considered net profit a
The Number of Shares used for determining Basic EPS is the total Number of Shares issued an

up as at 31.03.2024 and for Year Ended 31.03.2024

N o di scl osur e i s

requi

red under |

ND AS 10

Operations as the Company has not discontinued any line of its activity /product during the year

Il nd AS

2 4 T

Rel at ed

Party D]

Related Parties particulars pursuant to Ind AS 24-Related Party Discloures

List of Related Parties as defined under IND AS 24

Name of Related Parties

Nature of Relationship

Prachi Rajesh Marwah

Managing Director (upto 25.03.2024)

Prachi Rajesh Marwah

Chief Financial Officer (upto 25.03.2024)

Vinod Kacharu Mokal

Director ( upto 06.03.2024)

Vishal Jagannath Sonawane

Director ( upto 06.03.2024)

Jayalal Rajaram Pathak

Director (upto 15.04.2024)

Shailesh Muknak

Director

Disha Abhishek Mehta

Promoter

Supriya Dilip Gaikwad

Additional Director (with effect from 16.04.2024

Supriya Dilip Gaikwad

Chief Financial Officer (wi

th effect from

Avani Savjibhai Godhaniya

Additional Director (with effect from 04.03.2024]

Hemlata Additional Director (with effect from 04.03.2024
Salman Mahibub Sayyad Additional Director (with effect from 26.03.2024
Arpit Jain Company Secretary (with effect from 01.03.20]

Transactions with the related parties for the year ended

Related party

Nature of transaction

Amount for the year|
end 31st March 2024

Amount for the year
end 31st March 2023

Prachi Rajesh Marwah Remuneration Q.50 0.21
Vinod Kacharu Mokal Remuneration Q.60 0.28
Vishal Jagannath Sonawane Remuneration Q.30 -

Jayalal Rajaram Pathak Remuneration 3.59 3.63
Shailesh Muknak Remuneration 1.15 0.41
TOTAL §.14 4.53
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24

25

26

27

28

| OPERATING SEGMENTS

[ IND AS 108

The Company does not have any reportable segments

Managerial Remuneration

Particulars FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23

Directors Remuneration 5.14 4,53
Sitting Fees - -

Total 5.14 4.53
Particulars As on 31.03.2024 As on 31.03.2023
CS Rashmi Purohit - 0.47
Total - 0.47

Cash Flow Statement is prepared in accordance with the requirements of IND AS 7 Statement

Flows.

Figures of Previous years have been regrouped and reclassified where ever necessary for bette
presentation and to comply with disclosure requirements of IND AS

Additional Regulatory information

Ratio Basis As at As at Variance
31st March 2024 | 31st March 2023

Current Ratio (In times) Current assets / Current 1.0 0.69 0.36
liabilties

Debt Equity Ratio (In times) Net Debt / Equity - - -

Debt service coverage ratio (in times) Earning for debt - - -
service/Debt Services

Return on equity ratio (in %) Profit after Tax/shareholde (0.56 0.17 -0.39
Equity

Inventory turnover Ratio (in times) Cost of Goods sold/Avera - - -
Inventory

Trade receivables turnover ratio (in times) Revenue From - - -
operations/Average Trade
Receivables

Trade payables turnover ratio (in times) Cost of operations/Averag - - -
Trade payables

Net capital turnover ratio (in times) Revenue From - - -
operations/Working Capitg|

Net profit ratio (in %) Net Profit/(Loss) after Tax - - -
/Revenue From operation

Return on capital employed (in %) Earnings Before Interest al (0.56) 0.17 -0.39
Tax /capital Employed
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1. Additional Notes:

A. During the year the Company has not revalued its Property Plant & Equipment.

B. No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2
for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016)
and rules made thereunder.

C. The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or a
government authority.

D. As per the Information available with the Company, there is no such Companies which has been struck, ofi
or from which any amount is payable or recoverable.

E. The Borrowed Funds from Banks and / or Financial Institutions have been utilized for the purpose for whict
it was Borrowed.

F. The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

G. The Company does not have any pending creation of charge and satisfaction as well as registration
with ROC.

H. To the best of the knowledge and belief of the Company, no funds (which are material either individually or
the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or ar
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity

i 0)1 OAOI AAEAOEAGAQqh xEOE OEA O1 AAOOOAT AET ¢ch xEAO
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
xEAOOT AOAO AU 10 11 AAEAI £ 1 &£ OEA #1 1 DPAT U j O51 OF
like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

I. To the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate)
EAOA AAAT OAAAREOAA AU OEA #1 1 PATU £O01i ATU PAOOI
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or
indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
&OT AET ¢ 0AOOU | O51 OEi AGA " AT AEEAEAQOEAOG6Q 10 BOI C
Beneficiaries.

J. The Company does not have any Subsidiary or Associate of Joint Venture hence the number of layers
prescribed under Section 2(87) of the Companies Act,2013 read with Companies (Restriction on Number of
Layers) Rules, 2017.is not applicable.

K. Since the Company has not entered any Scheme of Arrangements in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Company is not required to disclose the whether effect of such Scheme of Arranger
have been accounted for in the Books of Accounts in accordance with 'Scheme " and in accordance with the
3AEAT A AT A c¢cET AAAT OAAT AA xEOE AAAT O1 OET ¢ OOAT AA

L. The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 19

THIS PAGEHAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY KEPT BLANK
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UNAUDITED FINANCIAL RESULT OF JUNE, 2024 QUARTER

|l ndependent Auditordés Review Report on the Q
Company Pursuant to the Regulations 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, emmended

Review Report to

The Board of Directors

IGC Industries Limited

(Formerly known as IGC Foils Limited)

1. We have reviewed the accompanying statement of unaudited financial results of 1IGC
Industries Limited (Formerly known as IGC Foils Limited ) (the o0CGCdonpeany6)
Quarter & Three Month Ended 30mnJ une, 2024 (0the Statementado),
submitted by the Company pursuant to the requirement of Regulation 33 of the SEBI

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, as amended (the Listing
Regul ati onsod) .

2. The CsoMapagemgnd is responsible for the preparation of the statement in
accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in Indian
Accounting Standard 34 o0lnterim Financi al Re

section 133 of the Comparies Act, 2013, as amended, read with relevant rules issued
thereunder and other accounting principles generally accepted in India and in compliance
with Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations. Our responsibility is to express a report on
the financial statements based on our review.

3. We conducted our review of the Statement in accordance with the Standard on Review
Engagements (SRE) 2410 OReview of I nterim F
|l ndependent Auditor of t heted Ghaiteteg Accountastsafi ed b
India. This standard requires that we plan and perform the review to obtain moderate
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. A review

is limited primarily to inquiries of company pe rsonnel and analytical procedures applied

to financial data and thus provides less assurance than an audit. We have not performed

an audit and accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

4. Based on our review conducted as above, nothing has come toour attention that causes
us to believe that the accompanying statement of unaudited financial results prepared in
accordance with applicable accounting standards and other recognized accounting
practices and policies has not disclosed the information required to be disclosed in terms
of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 including the manner in which it is to be disclosed, or that it contains any
material misstatement.
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5. Other Matter

Attention is drawn to the fact that the figures for the 3 months endedl&th, 2024 as reported in

these financial results are the balancing figures between audited figures in respect of the full previous
financial year and the published year to date unaufijades up to end of the third quarter of the
previous financial year which were subjected to limited review by us. Our conclusion is not modified
in respect of this matter.

For and on behalf of
ADV & Associates
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 128045W

Sdt

Prakash Mandhaniya
Partner

Membership No. 421679
Date: 16.07.2024

Place: Mumbai

UDIN: 24421679BKFSWI13201
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IGC INDUSTRIES LIMITED
(Formerly known as IGC Foils Limited)
CIN: L51909WB1980PLC032950
Reg. Office: Imax Lohia Square, Office No. 4B, 4th Floor, Premises No.23,Gangadhar Babu Lane,
Kolkata, West Bengal-700012.
Email ID: igcfoils@gmail.com
Unaudited Financial Results for the Quarter Ended 30th June, 2024
Prepared In Compliance with the Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS)

Scrip Code-539449 (Rs in Lakhs,unless otherwise stated)
Quarter Ended Quarter Ended Quarter Ended Year Ended
Particulars 30.06.2024 31.03.2024 30.06.2023 31.03.2024
Unaudited Audited Unaudited Audited
1. Income from operations
a) Revenue from operations 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
b) Other operating Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Total Income from Operations (Net) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
2. Expenses
a) Cost of Materials consumed 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
b) Purchase of Stock in Trade 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
c) Changes in inventories of finished goods, work in progress an
stock in trade 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
d) Employee benefits expense 0.00 0.15 0.00 5.34
e) Finance Cost 0.00 0.11 0.00 0.20
e) Depreciation and amortisation expenses 0.00 0.12 0.10 0.39
f) Other expenses (any item exceeding 10% of the total expenses]
relating to continuing operations to be shown separately) 0.04 0.93 4.53 33.50
Total Expenses 0.04 1.30 4.63 39.42
3. Proﬂt(los_s) from operations before other income, finance costs -0.04 -1.30 4.63 39.42
and exceptional items
4. Other Income 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
5. Prof_lt(I05§) from ordinary activities before finance costs and -0.04 1.30 4.63 39.42
exceptional items
6. Finance costs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
7. Profit(loss) _from (_)rdlnary activities after finance costs but -0.04 1.30 4.63 39.42
before exceptional items
8. Exceptional items 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
9. Profit(loss) from ordinary activities before tax -0.04 -1.30 -4.63 -39.42
10. Tax expense
Current Tax 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Deffered Tax 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
11. Net Profit / (Loss) from ordinary activities after tax) -0.04 -1.30 -4.63 -39.42
12. Extraordinary items (net of tax expense) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
13. Net Profit/(Loss) for the period -0.04 -1.30 -4.63 -39.42
14. Paid up Equity Share Capital 224.00 224.00 224.00 224.00
15. Reserves excluding Revaluation Reserve as per Balance Sheet off
previous accounting year 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
16. Earnings Per Share (before / after extraordinary items)
(Rs.10/- each)
Basic 0.00 -0.06 -0.21 -1.76
Diluted 0.00 -0.06 -0.21 -1.76

Note:

1) The financial results of the company for the quarter ended June 30,2024 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee and subsequently apprd
by Board of Directors at their meeting held on 16th July, 2024. These results are reviewed by the Satutory Auditors of the Company.

2) The financial results have been prepared in accordance with the principles of Indian Accounting Standards ("IND AS") prescribed under secti
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with relevant rules (as amended) issued thereunder and the other accounting principles genereally acceptd
India.

3) Segment Reporting under IND AS is not applicable to the company since the entire operations of the company relates to single segment.

4) Previous year/quarter figures have been regrouped/ recasted wherever necessary.
5)The above is an extract of the unaudited Financial Results for quarter ended on 30th June, 2024 filed with the Stock Exchanges under Regulat
of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. The full format of the said unaudited Financial Results are available on the Stock Exchange websites vi
www.bseindia.com and company's website www.igcfoils@gmail.com

For and On Behalf of the Board of Directors
IGC Industries Limited

Salman Mahibub Sayyad
Director

Place: Kolkata DIN:09837263

Dated: 16.07.2024
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MA NA GE ME NDISCSSSIONAND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

You should read the following discussion of our financial condition and results of operations together with our Audited
Financial Information as of and for the Fiscals 2023, 2022 and 2021 all prepared in accordance with the Copanies

and Ind AS and iaccordancevith the SEBIICDR Regulationsincludingtheschedulesannexuregandnotestheretoand

the reportsthereon,includedinthe sectiontitted i Fi nahwr i al man fpagech. nlessotherwisestated,the
financialinformationusedin this chapteris derivedrom the Auditedrinancial Statementsf our Company.

This discussion contains forward looking statements and reflects our current views with respect to future events and
financial performance. Actual results malyffer materially from those anticipated in these forw#rdking statements

as a result of certaifactorssuchasthosesetforthin thesectiongitledi R i Fsakc t andfisFoo r wiaakidgSt at e ment s 0
onpagex3andl18respectively.

Our fiscal year endson March 31 of eachyear, soall referencego a particular i f i g e adndi F i s aratd the
twelve(12)monttper i od ended March 31 of that fiscal year . Ref e
this chapter refer tdGC Industriedimited, asapplicable intherelevantfiscal period,unlessotherwisestated.

OVERVIEW OF OUR BUSINESS

Our Company was originally incorporated as Maxwell Traders & Exporters Limited under the Companies Act, 1956 with
the Registrar of Companies, Kolkatad consequently a certificate of incorporation dated August 26, 1980. Later, the

name of the company was changed from AMaxwell Traders &
of i ncorporation consequeernrt nuwp dNNCRd hCa\Nn g3e2 960 O alme 5/ FRPB® .| €
the Company was changed from Al GC Foils Ltdo to its pr

i ncorporation consequent upon change of name dated Octo

The Company maygarry on business as of traders/exporters, agents, representatives, dealers, producers, stockers,
importers or distributors, of various commodities.

It can carry purchase, acquire, hold and dispose of or otherwise deal and invest in activities in anjp&banture and
other Securities in or of any company or companies and real estate or properties out of owned or borrowed funds.

The Company may also carry on the business of manufacturers, producers, processors, Importers, Exporters, Buyers,
Sellers of ad dealers in all kinds of fibers, fabrics and textile and hosiery goods, prepared or manufactured from cotton
etc.

The Company can also deal in all kinds of metals, plastics, melamine, aluminum, steel, aluminum foil and aluminum raw
materials and products

IGC Industries Limited, headquartered in Kolkata, specializes in the trading of agro commaodities with a strong focus on
the Kolkata market. Led by an experienced management team, the company leverages extensive industry connections to
facilitate transadns and maintain a significant presence in bulk trading. The company primarily operates offline, dealing
with prominent merchants in the region.

IGC Industries specializes in loose packaging and offers a range of core products, including organicefnmejegec

jeera (cumin), cotton, and turmeric. The companyds str
and efficiency within the market. Compliance with organic certification standards ensures that the company adheres to
guality and ethical practices.

IGC Industries Limited's market approach centers on reliability, transparency, and leveraging the promoters' industry
experience to sustain a leading position in the agro commodities trading sector. The company's operatiaes! are gea
towards practicality, responsiveness to market demands, and maintaining a stronghold in the competitive Kolkata spices
market.

SIGNIFICANT FACTORS AFFECTING OUR RESULTS OF THE OPERATIONS
Our financial condition and resultsof operationsare affected by numerousfactors and uncertainties,ncluding those

discussed n t he s e Risk Factorée notni tplaegde 623 of this Draft Letter of
certain factorthathave hadand weexpectwill continueto have,a significanteffecton ourfinancial conditionandresult
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so ofoperations:

O¢ O¢ O¢C O¢C O O O« O« O¢ O« O« O« O¢ O¢ O«

O« O«

Any adversehangesn centralor stategovernmenpolicies;

Lossof oneor moreof ourkey customersnd/ormaintenanceontractors;

Changeén technologyandour ability to manageanydisruptionor failure of ourtechnologysystems;

Our ability to attractandretainqualified personnel;

Change#n politicalandsocialconditionsn Indiaor in countrieshatwe mayenter themonetarnandinterestatepolicies

of India andother countries, inflation, deflation, unanticipated turbulence in inter estates, equity prices or other rates
or prices;

Theperformancef thefinancialmarketsn Indiaandglobally;

Any adverseutcomein thelegalproceeding#n which we areinvolved,;

Occurrencesf naturaldisaster®r calamitiesaffectingtheareasn which we haveoperations;
Marketfluctuationsandindustrydynamicsbeyondour control;

Our ability to competeeffectively, particularlyin newmarketsandbusinesses;

Delaysin collectionof dues/receivablesomthe market

Otherfactorsbeyondourcontrol;

Our ability to manageisksthatarisefromthesefactors;

Conflictof interestwith, Individual Promotersandotherrelatedparties;

Change#n domesticandforeignlaws, regulationsandtaxesandchange$n competitionin ourindustry;

Terminationof customercontractswithoutcauseandwith little noticeor penalty;and

Inability to obtain, maintain or renew requisite statutory and regulatory permits and apgawalgance with and
changes in, safety, health and environmental laws and other applicable regulations, may adversely affect our business,
financialcondition, result®f operationsaandprospects.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Theaccountingpolicieshavebeenappliedconsistentiyto the periodspresentedn the Audited FinancialStatements-or
detailsof our significantaccountingpolicies, pleaseefer sectiontitled fiFinancial Informatiord on page 69.

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES IN PREVIOUS 3YEARS

Exceptas mentioneth chapterfiFinancial Informatiordo on page69,therehasbeenno changeén accountingpoliciesin last
3 years.

RESERVATIONS, QUALIFICATIONS AND ADVERSEREMARKS

For details,seesectiortitled fiFinancial Informatiord on page69.

KEY COMPONENTSOFC OMP A N YR@FIT AND LOSSSTATEMENT

Revenues

Dz

Revenudrom operations

OurC o mp a meverduss primarily generatedrom thebusines®sf trading.

Dz

Otherincome

Ourotherincomeis almostnegligible.

Expenditure

Dz

Inventory

Beingatradingcompanyyraw materiallike knittedclothandsilver ornamentsetc.is inventoryfor our Company.

Dz

Employmenbenefitexpenses

It includesSalariesandwagesandotherexpenses.
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Dz Otherexpenses

It mainly includes business promotion expenses, travelixgenses, rent, inspection expenses, professional & legal
charges, officexpenseandotherexpenses.

Dz Financecosts
Ourfinancecostsmainlyincludebankcharges.
Dz Depreciation

Depreciation has been provided as per the useful life prescribed under s¢hefltiie Companies Act, 2013 on written
down valugWwDV) methodon a proratabasis.

RESULT OF OPERATIONS

Thefollowing tablesetsfor theperiodis indicated certainitemsfrom our Audited Financialstatementsn each
casealso statedsa percentage obur total income:

Profit and Loss

(  [Lakhs)
Particulars 315T March 2024 315" March 2023
Income
Revenudrom operations 0.00 0.00
Otherincome 0.00 0.10
Total Income 0.00 0.10
EXxpenses
Purchasesf stockin-trade 0.00 0.00
Changesn inventories 0.00 0.00
Employeebenefitexpense 5.34 7.07
Financecost 0.20 0.11
Depreciatiorandamortisatiorexpense 0.39 0.54
Otherexpenses 33.50 11.05
Total Expenses 39.42 18.78
Profit/(Loss) beforetax (39.42) (17.88)
Tax expense
Currenttax 0.00 0.00
Deferredtax (benefit)/charge 0.02 0.00
Total tax expense 0.00 0.00
Profit/(Loss) after tax (39.43) (17.88)
-Basicanddilutedearnings/(losspershare (1.76) (0.80)

CashFlows

( 7in Lakhs)
Particulars 315T March 2024 315T March 2023
NetCashfrom OperatingActivities (517.50) (0.16)
NetCashfrom InvestingActivities 517.86 0.10
NetCashusedin FinancingActivities (0.20) (0.11
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INFORMATION REQUIRED ASPERITEM (Il) (C)(l) OF PART A OF SCHEDULE VI TO THE SEBI
REGULATIONS:

1. Unusualor infrequent eventsor transactions
Exceptasdescribedn this Draft Letterof Offer, duringthe periodsunderreviewtherehavebeenno transactionsr
eventswhichin our besjudgment,would be consideredinusualor infrequent.

2.  Significant economicchangesthat materially affected or are likely to affect income from continuing operations
Ot her than as described in the nRterkof®fer,daoarkmmwleddee gi nni
there are n&nownsignificanteconomiacchangeshathaveor hador areexpected tdavea materialadversempact
onrevenue®rincomeofour Companyfrom continuingoperations.

3. Known trends or uncertainties that have had or are expectedto have a material adverseimpact on sales,
revenueor incomefrom continuing operations
Ot her than as described in this Draft Letter of Offer
Discussiorand AnalysisoF i nanci al Condi tion and Results of Operati
knowledge, there are known trends or uncertainties that are expected to have a material adverse impact on our
revenues or income from continuingerations

4. Incomeand Saleson accountof major product/main activities

Revenues 31t March 2024 30" June 2024
Revenue from Operation 0.00 0
Otherincome 0.00 0
Total 0.00 0

5. Future relationship betweenCostsand Income
OurC o mp a futyrécestsandrevenuesvill bedeterminedy thegrowthof theindustryin which we operate.

6. Extentto which material increasedn net salesor revenueare dueto increasedsalesvolume, introduction of
new productsor servicesor increased salegrices.
Increase# ourrevenuesreby andlargelinked to increase i thevolumeof business.

7.  Statusof any publicly announcednew products or businesssegments
Our Companyhasnot announcedany new servicesand productand segment’ scheme other than particularly
in the AOurBusines® on pagesH9 anddisclosedn this Draft Letter of Offer.

8. Theextentto which the business
isseasonal

Ourbusinesss moderatelyseasonah
nature.

9.  Any significant dependenceon a singleor few suppliersor customers
Our Company is significantly dependentafew suppliers and customers. For further details, refer to the
¢ h a pt e Riskfadtoto Andfur Busines® page24 and59 of Draft Letter of Offer.

10. Competitive Conditions
Competitiveconditionshavebeendiscussed isectiongitled AOur Busines® andAOur Industryd on pages$9 and51 of
this DraftLetter ofOffer.
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MARKET PRICE INFORMATION

OurC o mp a Bqyity SharehavebeenlistedandactivelybeingtradedonBSEfrom 16-12-2015
Yearis a Financial Year;
Averagepriceis theaverageof thedaily closingpricesof the Equity Sharedor the year,or the month,asthecasemaybe;

High price is the maximum of the daily high prices and low price is the minimum of the daily low prices of the Equity
Shares, as tlrasemaybe,for theyear, or thenonth, aghe casenaybe; and

In caseof two days withthesamehigh/ low / closingprice,thedatewith higher volumenhasbheen
consideredstockMarket Data othe EquityShares

Thehigh, lowand averagenarketclosingpricesrecordednthe StockExchangesluringthelastthreeyearsandthe
numberof EquitySharegradedonthese dayare statedbelow:

BSELimited
Financial | High ( Date No. of | Total Lo Dateof low| No. of | Total Avera
Year ofhigh | shares | volume w shares | volume ge
traded | tradedon | ( ) traded | oftraded price
on date | dateof high| * on date | ondate for the
of high : of low | of year
(in ) low(in )| ( ) *
D d
2024 59.22 oR 14122 | 795505 25.05 | 2% 2678 70372 38.03
January February,
2024 2024
d h
2023 30.45 22 15 456 27.55 | 0% 1 3581 29.30
August, January,
2022 2023
h h
202 46.3 09" July| 2 92 27.9 10" June 4 117 35.78
2021 2021

(Sourcewww.bseindia.coin

Notes:High, low andaveragepricesare basedon thedaily closingprices.
In caseof two dayswith the samehigh or low price, thedatewith the high volumehasbeenconsidered.
Market Pricesfor the last six calendar months

Thetotalnumberof daystradingduringthepastsix months, frontebruary 20240 July 2024was116. Theaveragesolume
of EquitySharedradedonthe BSEduringpasté monthswas30359.68erday.

Thehighand lowpricesandvolumeof Equity Sharedraded ortherespectivelateonthe BSEduringthelastsix months
precedinghedateof filing of this Draft Letterof Offer areasfollows:

BSE Limited
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Total Total
I volume I volume Avere;ge
Volume | traded on Volume | traded on| Price for
Month D.ate Of H|gh ( (NO Of date Of Dt Of Low ( (NO Of date Of the
high ¢ low
shares) | high shares) | |ow month
. in ) | C )~
(in )
Feb2024 [01st 42.9 126 2 23rd 25.05 2678 44 33.71
February February,
2024 2024
March 26th March35.93 4002 9 04th March26.34 3967 33 30.63
2024 2024 2024
April-2024 30th April [37.27 421 3 16th April 30.76 61 1 33.003
2024 2024
May- 2024 [13th May, |44.88 28029 13 03rd May (38.01 9417 34 42.407
2024 2024
June2024 [26th June [50.00 86168 314 18th June $42.3 1275 14 45.87
2024 2024
July-2024 |01st July, |42.68 4717 36 31st July, [31.13 116358 280 37.29
2024 2024

(Sourcewww.bseindia.coin

* High, low andaveragepricesare baseddaily closingprices.

In theeventthe highor low or closingprice of the Equity Sharesarethe sameon morethanoneday,thedayon which
therehasbeerigher volume ofradinghasbeenconsideredor the purposesf this chapter.

The Board of our Company has approved the Issue at their meeting heldyost § 2024. The high and low prices of our
C o mp a sharéssquotedon the BSE on Novemberl3, 2023, the day on which the trading happened immediately
following the dateof the Boardmeetingis asfollows:

Date Volume HighestPrice( ) Low price ()
(No of Equity Shares)
13-Nov-23 30,143 39.00 36.96

Sourcewww.bseindia.com

THIS PAGEHAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY KEPT BLANK
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SECTION VI
LEGAL AND OTHER INFORMATION

OUTSTANDING LITIGATION AND MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS

Except as stated in this sectidhere are no outstanding (1) criminal or Civil proceedings (I) actions taken by statutory
or regulatoryauthorities,(11l) disciplinary actionincludingpenaltyimposedy the SEBlor stockexchangeggainstour
Promotersin thelastfive

(5) Financial Years, including outstanding action, (IV) claims related to direct and indirect taxes in a consolidated
manner,in eachcaseinvolving our CompanyPromotersand Directors (thefi R e | ePvaa rt tiUalessstatedto the
contrary, theinformationprovidedn this sectionis as of the date of this Draft Letter of Offer. All termsdefinedin a
summarypertainingto a particular litigation shall beconstrued only imespectof the summary othe litigation where
suchtermis used.

It is further clarified thafor the purposes of this Draft Letter of Offer, pitegation notices received by the Company,
SubsidiariesPirectors or Promoters shall, unless otherwise decided by the Board, not be considered as litigation until
such time that our Comparyr any of its SubsidiariesDirectorsor Promotersasthe casemaybe, is impleadedasa
defendanin litigation beforeanyjudicial forum.

I. LITIGATIONS INVOLVING THE COMPANY: NIL
1) Litigation involving

Criminal LawsNIL

2) Litigation Involving Actionsby
Statutory/RegulatonputhoritieNIL

3) Disciplinary

Actionsby Authorities
NIL
4) Litigation involving TaxLiability
Name of Status Nature of Dues Period to | Amount From Where
which amount (in Rs.) Dlspgte is
relates Pending
Income tax Act, 1961 | Income Tax AY 2014-15 1,19,950 Commissioner

of Income-Tax

Income tax Act, 1961 | Income Tax-Interest AY 2014-15 10,112 Commissioner
of Income-Tax

Income tax Act, 1961 | Income Tax AY 2015-16 19,40,490 Commissioner
of Income-Tax

Income tax Act, 1961 | Income Tax-Interest AY 2015-16 1,55,312 Commissioner
of Income-Tax
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5) OtherPendingLitigation basedon Materiality Policy of our CompanyNIL

Il. LITIGATIONS INVOLVING THE PROMOTERS OF THE COMPANY: NIL
1) Litigation involvingCriminal Laws - NIL

2) Litigation Involving Actionsby Statutory/Regulatorpauthorities NIL

3) Disciplinary Actionsby Authorities-NIL

4) LitigationinvolvingTaxLiability - NIL

5) OtherPendingLitigation basedon Materiality Policy of our Company NIL

. LITIGATIONS INVOLVING THE DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY OTHER THAN PROMOTERS OF
THECOMPANY

1) LitigationinvolvingCriminal Laws- NIL

2) Litigation InvolvingActionsby Statutory/Regulatonpauthorities- NIL

3) Disciplinary Actionsby Authorities- NIL

4) Litigation involvingTaxLiability-NIL

5) OtherPendingLitigation basedon Materiality Policy of our CompanyNIL
IV. LITIGATIONS RELATING TO THE HOLDING COMPANY - NA
1) Litigation involvingCriminal LawsNIL

2) Litigation Involving Actionsby Statutory/RegulatonputhoritiesNIL

3) Disciplinary Actionsby AuthoritiesNIL
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